-

shEl Loutit District Library
Expanding Horizons. Enriching Minds. Engaging
Community.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

Date: Tuesday, June 13, 2023
Time: 5:30 p.m.
Place: Loutit District Library, Program Room B

AGENDA
1. CALLTO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. PUBLIC HEARING: PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 LIBRARY MILLAGE RATES
A. Open
B. Discussion
C. Close

4. PUBLIC HEARING: PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 LIBRARY BUDGET
A. Open
B. Discussion
C. Close

5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approve the regular meeting minutes of May 9, 2023

B. Approve May invoice payments in the amount of $ 83,835.51

C. Approve the following Purchase Orders for FY 2023/24: $587,488
(some are contracts attached as 5-C)

PO Name

2350 Priority Health for FY 2023/24 Insurance Premiums
2351 Lakeland Library Cooperative Services FY 2023/24
2352 City of Grand Haven Finance & HR Services FY 2023/24
2353 Vredeveld Haefner LLC for June 30, 2023, Auditing Services
2354 MCLS for Overdrive FY 2023/24 for E-Books
2355 Overdrive Advantage E-Books FY 2023/24
2356 BHS Insurance for Property & Liability Insurance FY 2023/24
2357 GHAPS Technology Services FY 2023/24

2358 Spring Lake District Library — Share of Ferrysburg Penal Fines
2359 Howard Miller Library — Zeeland School District

407 Columbus Avenue, Grand Haven, Ml 49417
Phone (616) 850-6900 ~ www.loutitlibrary.org

Pages 1-3

Pages 4-8

Pages 9-13
Pages 14-15
Pages 16-46

Amount
$113,000.00
$30,000.00
$55,000.00
$9,000.00
$27,800.00
$36,000.00
$13,150.00
$56,000.00
$10,500.00
$43,500.00



2360 Dykstra —Landscape Services (Snow Removal & Lawn Care) FY 2023/24 $17,013.00
2361 Michigan Gas Utilities FY 2023/24 $19,000.00
2362 City of Grand Haven Board of Light & Power FY 2023/24 $75,000.00
2363 OAISD Broadband Internet $ 1,400.00
2364 Hoopla Electronic Database FY 2023/24 $20,000.00
2365 Office Machines Company (Copying Charges) FY 2023/24 S 1,875.00
2366 Envisionware Service and Software Licensing FY 2023/24 $9,250.00
2367 Foster Swift Collins & Smith PC Legal Services FY 2023/24 $5,500.00
2368 Kanopy, LLC Electronic Database FY 2023/24 $6,000.00
2369 Delta Dental for FY 2023/24 Insurance Premiums $15,000.00
2370 T-Mobile Hotspots — FY 2023/24 $8,000.00
2371 Van Dyken Mechanical for HVAC Services — FY 2023/24 $8,000.00
2372 City of Grand Haven — Water Utilities FY 2023/24 $7,500.00

6. PUBLIC COMMENT
This is the time when members of the qudience may address the Library Board of Trustees regarding any topic, including items
on the agenda. Please limit your remarks to no more than three minutes. When oddressing the Librory Board of Trustees, please
state your name, address, and the subject of the comment.

7. TREASURER’S REPORT

A. General Fund Financial Report as of May 31, 2023 Pages 47-49
B. Maintenance Fund Financial Report as of May 31, 2023 Page 50
C. Debt Service Fund A Financial Report as of May 31, 2023 Page 51
D. Debt Service Fund B Financial Report as of May 31, 2023 Page 52
E. Bank Account Report as of May 31, 2023 Pages 53-57
F. Update on LDL to City transition

8. TRUSTEE COMMENT

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

10. NEW BUSINESS {Budget Summary) Pages 58-84

A. Consideration of a motion to approve a resolution to set the 2023 property tax levy for Page 85

operating purposes at .9523 mill and to set the 2023 property tax levy for debt retirement
purposes at .1150 mill

B. Consideration of a motion to approve a resolution to adopt a Budget for Loutit District Library  Pages 86-87
for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year and to appropriate funds for said purposes, as follows:

Revenue Expenditure
General Fund 2,934,119 3,092,005
Maintenance Fund 10,000 80,000
Debt Service A Fund 297,515 258,200
Debt Service B Fund 326,600 326,600

Page 2 of 4



1.

12.
13.

14,

15
16

17

C. Consideration of a motion to establish the following annual
compensation rates for full-time employees opting out of the
library’s heaith insurance plan, pursuant to section 11.1a, Insurance
Waiver, of the library’s Personnel Policy:
Family Coverage $1,000
Double Coverage $750
Single Coverage $500
These payments are distributed bi-weekly as part of the employee’s pay.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
Building and Grounds Committee
Executive Committee
Minutes from the meeting of May 30, 2023
Finance
Personnel
Policy
DIRECTOR'S REPORT
PRESIDENT'S REPORT
PUBLIC COMMENT
. TRUSTEE COMMENT

.UNION BARGAINING COMMITTEE

. Executive Director’'s Evaluation (closed session)

18. NEXT REGULAR MEETINGS

Board Meeting: July 11, 2023, 5:30 p.m.
Executive Committee Meeting: June 27, 2023, 5:00 p.m.

19. ADJIOURNMENT

Page 3 of 4

Page 88

Pages 89-92



Loutit District Library
Board of Trustees
Public Comment Guidelines for LDL Board and Committee Meetings

The agenda for each regular meeting designates two "Public Comment" opportunities for individuals or groups wishing to address the Board. During
these times community members are invited to publicly comment on any library-related topic, whether or not it appears on the agenda. For the
sake of order, we ask that public statements, presentations, or reports be made only during these times in the meeting. A board member may ask
the person making a comment to clarify his/her thoughts, but at no time is a board member or employee obligated to immediately respond to the
person making comment.
To facilitate this process, please adhere to the following guidelines. Citizens wishing to speak must:

1. Be recognized by the chalr.

2. Clearly state his/her name, address, and the subject of the comment.

3, At the discretion of the chair, limit their time to three minutes,

4, Comment only once per public comment portion of the Agenda.

5. Direct all comments to the Board chair,
The Board will not allow the following and will respectfully interrupt and ask the person speaking to cease:

1. Public comments directed to any employee of the district or to anyone else in the audiencea,

2. Debates with people making comments.

3. Inappropriate comments {unrelated to the agenda or to the activities of the board or library) or of a parsonal nature attacking any board

member or any employee of the library or their job performance. Comments of this nature must be submitted in writing to the board and can

be reviewed in a closed session or open sesslon at a tater date, at the discretion of the person to whom the complaint is directad.
Persons wishing to make public comment and requesting a response should submit their guestions in writing to the chair, along with contact
information. The board chair will then deliver that statement to the appropriate person for a thorcugh review and possible answers, Contact will be
made either in writing or in person,

Page 4 of 4




|| Loutit District Library
P Expanding Horizons. Enriching Minds. Engaging
Community.
¥

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

Date: Tuesday, June 13, 2023
Time: 5:30 p.m.
Place: Loutit District Library, Program Room B

AGENDA
1. CALLTO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. PUBLIC HEARING: PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 LIBRARY MILLAGE RATES
A. Open
B. Discussion
C. Close

4. PUBLIC HEARING: PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 LIBRARY BUDGET
A. Open
B. Discussion
C. Close

5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approve the regular meeting minutes of May 9, 2023

B. Approve May invoice payments in the amount of $ 83,835.51

C. Approve the following Purchase Orders for FY 2023/24: $587,488
(some are contracts attached as 5-C)

PO Name

2350 Priority Health for FY 2023/24 Insurance Premiums
2351 Lakeland Library Cooperative Services FY 2023/24
2352 City of Grand Haven Finance & HR Services FY 2023/24
2353 Vredeveld Haefner LLC for June 30, 2023, Auditing Services
2354 MCLS for Overdrive FY 2023/24 for E-Books
2355 Overdrive Advantage E-Books FY 2023/24
2356 BHS Insurance for Property & Liability Insurance FY 2023/24
2357 GHAPS Technology Services FY 2023/24
2358 Spring Lake District Library — Share of Ferrysburg Penal Fines
2359 Howard Miller Library —Zeeland School District

407 Columbus Avenue, Grand Haven, Ml 49417
Phone (616) 850-6900 ~ www.loutitlibrary.org

Pages 1-3

Pages 4-8

Pages 9-13
Pages 14-15
Pages 16-46

Amount
$113,000.00
$30,000.00
$55,000.00
$9,000.00
$27,800.00
$36,000.00
$13,150.00
$56,000.00
$10,500.00
$43,500.00



2360 Dykstra — Landscape Services (Snow Removal & Lawn Care) FY 2023/24 $17,013.00
2361 Michigan Gas Utilities FY 2023/24 $19,000.00
2362 City of Grand Haven Board of Light & Power FY 2023/24 $75,000.00
2363 OAISD Broadband Internet S 1,400.00
2364 Hoopla Electronic Database FY 2023/24 $20,000.00
2365 Office Machines Company (Copying Charges) FY 2023/24 $ 1,875.00
2366 Envisionware Service and Software Licensing FY 2023/24 $9,250.00
2367 Foster Swift Collins & Smith PC Legal Services FY 2023/24 $5,500.00
2368 Kanopy, LLC Electronic Database FY 2023/24 $6,000.00
2369 Delta Dental for FY 2023/24 Insurance Premiums $15,000.00
2370 T-Mobile Hotspots — FY 2023/24 $8,000.00
2371 Van Dyken Mechanical for HVAC Services — FY 2023/24 $8,000.00
2372 City of Grand Haven — Water Utilities FY 2023/24 $7,500.00

6. PUBLIC COMMENT
This is the time when members of the audience may address the Library Board of Trustees regarding any topic, including items
on the agenda. Please limit your remarks to no more than three minutes. When addressing the Librory Board of Trustees, please
state your name, address, and the subject of the comment.

7. TREASURER’'S REPORT

A. General Fund Financial Report as of May 31, 2023 Pages 47-49
B. Maintenance Fund Financial Report as of May 31, 2023 Page 50
€. Debt Service Fund A Financial Report as of May 31, 2023 Page 51
D. Debt Service Fund B Financial Report as of May 31, 2023 Page 52
E. Bank Account Report as of May 31, 2023 Pages 53-57
F. Update on LDL to City transition

8. TRUSTEE COMMENT

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

10. NEW BUSINESS (Budget Summary) Pages 58-84

A. Consideration of a motion to approve a resolution to set the 2023 property tax levy for Page 85

operating purposes at .9523 mill and to set the 2023 property tax levy for debt retirement
purposes at .1150 mill

B. Consideration of a motion to approve a resolution to adopt a Budget for Loutit District Library Pages 86-87
for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year and to appropriate funds for said purposes, as follows:

Revenue Expenditure
General Fund 2,934,119 3,002,005
Maintenance Fund 10,000 80,000
Debt Service A Fund 297,515 258,200
Debt Service B Fund 326,600 326,600

Page 2 of 4



€. Consideration of a motion to establish the following annual
compensation rates for full-time employees opting out of the
library’s health insurance plan, pursuant to section 11.1a, Insurance
Waiver, of the library’s Personnel Policy:
Family Coverage $1,000
Double Coverage $750
Single Coverage $500

These payments are distributed bi-weekly as part of the employee’s pay.

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS
Building and Grounds Committee
Executive Cornmitiee
Minutes from the meeting of May 30, 2023
Finance
Personnel
Policy
12. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
13. PRESIDENT’S REPORT
14. PUBLIC COMMENT
15. TRUSTEE COMMENT
16. UNION BARGAINING COMMITTEE

17. Executive Director’s Evaluation (closed session)

18. NEXT REGULAR MEETINGS
Board Meeting: july 11, 2023, 5:30 p.m.
Executive Committee Meeting: June 27, 2023, 5:00 p.m.

19. ADIOURNMENT

Page 3 of 4

Page a8

Pages 89-92



Loutit District Library
Board of Trustees
Public Comment Guidelines for LDL Board and Committee Meetings

The agenda for each regular meeting designates two "Public Comment" opportunities for individuals or groups wishing to address the Board. During
these timas community members are invited to publicly comment on any library-related toplc, whether or not It appears on the agenda. For the
sake of order, we ask that public statements, presentations, or reports be made only during these times in the meeting. A board member may ask
the person making a comment to clarify his/her thoughts, but at no time is a board member or employee obligated to immediately respond to the
person making comment.
To facilitate this process, please adhere to the following guidelines, Citizens wishing to speak must:

1. Be recognized by the chair. ’

2. Clearly state his/her name, addrass, and the subject of the comment.

3. At the discretion of the chalr, limit their time to three minutes.

4, Comment only once per public comment portion of the Agenda.

5. Direct all comments to the Board chair.
The Board will not allow the following and will respectfully interrupt and ask the persen speaking to cease:

1. Public comments directed to any employee of the district or to anyone else in the audience.

2. Debates with people making comments.

3. Inappropriate comments (unrelated to the agenda or to the activities of the board or library) or of a personal nature attacking any board

member or any employee of the library or their job performance. Comments of this nature must be submitted in writing to the board and can

be raviewed in a closed session or open session at a later date, at the discretion of tha person to whom the complaint is diracted.
Persons wishing to make public comment and requesting a response should submit their questions in writing 1o the chair, along with contact
information. The board chair will then deliver that staternent to the appropriate person for a thorough review and possible answers. Contact will be
made either In writing or in parson.

Page 4 of 4




LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
PROPOSED 2023-2024
MILLAGE RATE

The Board of Trustees of the Loutit District
Library will hold a public hearing on Tuesday,
June 13, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. at the Loutit District
Library, Program Room B, 407 Columbus
Avenue, Grand Haven, Michigan, to receive oral
and written comments on the proposed property
tax millage rate of the Loutit District Library for
the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending
June 30, 2024.

The property tax millage rate proposed to be
levied to support the proposed budget will be
a subject of this hearing.

A copy of the proposed 2023-2024 millage rate
will be available for public inspection and can be
viewed online at www.loutitlibrary.org.

LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
PROPOSED 2023-2034 BUDGET
The Board of Trustees of the Loutit District
Library will hold a public hearing on Tuesday,
June 13, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. at the Loutit District
Library, Program Room B, 407 Columbus
Avenue, Grand Haven, Michigan, to receive oral
and written comments on the proposed budget of
the Loutit District Library for the fiscal year
beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30,
2024.
A copy of the proposed 2023-2024 budget will
be available for public inspection and can be
viewed online at www.loutitlibrary.org.

June 2, 2023
Mary Jane Belter
Secretary



N

chigan Depariment of Treasury

4 (Rev. 01-23)

ORIGINAL TO: County Clerk(s)
COPY TO: Equalization Department(s)
COPY TO: Each township or city clerk

hﬁNw Tax Rate _Nwﬂ_.._mmﬂ {This form must be completed and submitted on or before September 30, 2023)

MILLAGE REQUEST REPGRT TO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
This form is issued under authority of MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34 and 211.344. Filing is mandatory; Penalty applies.

L-4029

Carefully read the instructions on page 2.

County{ies} Where the Local Government Unit Levies Taxes 2023 Taxable Value of ALL Properties in the Unit as of 5-22-2023
Ottawa 2,637,553,464
Local Government Uit Requesting Millage Levy Far LOCAL School Districts: 2023 Taxable Value excluding Principal Residence, Qualified Agricutiural, Qualified Forest, industrial
. . . . Personal and Commercial Personal Properties.
Loutit District Library
This form must be completed for each unit of government for which a property tax is levied. Penalty for non-filing is provided under MCL Sec 211.119. The following tax rates have been
authorized for levy on the 2023 tax roll.
4 {(5) ™ {7 {8)
Original 2022 Millage Rate {6) 2023 Millage Sec. 211.34 Truth (12)
Miliage Permanently 2023 Current | Rate Permanently | in Assessing or {9) (10} {11) Expiration
@ {3) |Authorized by| Reduced by MCL | Year "Headlee” | Reduced by MCL Equalization Maximum Millage Miliage Date of
(1} Purpose of | Date of Election 211.34d Millage Reduction 211.34d Millage Rollback Allowable Requested to | Regquested to be Millage
Source Millage Election | Charter, etc. "Headlee" Fraction "Headlee™ Fraction Millage Levy * | be Levied July 1| Levied Dec. 1 Authorized
To be levied in the Cily of Grand Haven gnd City of Ferrysburg
VOTE OPERATING | 4118/2000| 1.0000 | 0.9523 1.0000 0.9523 N/A 0.9523  |0.9523 NONE
To be levied in Grand [Haven Township, Robinson Township, and Port S8heldon Township
VOTE OPERATING l4/18/2000( 1.0000 | 0.9523 1.0000 0.9523 N/A 0.9523 0.9523 NONE
VOTE DEBT  |simr2007 | N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.1150 12/31/26
Prepared by Telephone Mumber Title of Preparer Date
Nichclas Brown (616) 842-3210 Treasurer

CERTIFICATION: As the representatives for the local govemment unit named above, we certify that these requested tax levy rates have been
reduced, if necessary fo comply with the state constitution (Article 8, Section 31), and that the requested levy rates have also been reduced, if
necessary, to comply with MCL Sections 211.24e, 211.34 and, for LOCAL school districts which levy a S8upplemental (Hold Harmless) Millage,

380.1211(3).

] cler
m Secretary

D Chairperson

‘ President

Signature Print Name Daie
Mary Jane Belter

Signature Print Name Date
Burton H Brooks

* Under Truth in Taxation, MCL Section 211.24e, the governing body may decide fo levy a rate which will not exceed the maximum authorized rafte
allowed in cofumn 9. The requirements of MCL 211.24e must be mef prior to levying an aperating levy which is larger than the base tax rafe but not

larger than the

rate in column 8.

* IMPORTANT: See instructions on page 2 regarding where to find the millage rate used in column (5).

mithligusnsicnly
Total

._?._ 16

Rates to be Levied {HH/Supp
and NH Oper ONLY)

School District O.nmﬂmm:m

For Principal Residence, Qualified
Ag., Qualified Forest and Industrial

Personal

For Commercial Personal

For all Other




OTTAWA COUNTY 2023 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

Our Tax Authority has completed the following steps as required by M.C.L .211.24e (Truth in Taxation)

O

OR

OR
X

A separate Truth-in-Taxation hearing is not necessary. Our Tax Authority complies with Sec. 16
of the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act (M.C.L. 141.436). Notice, advertising, and print size
must conform to stated requirements, (M.C.L. 141.412)

and

Our meeting was completed by October 1, *Date of meeting was

Our Board, or Commission, or Council has met and adopted a resolution proposing an additional
operating millage rate and proposing a hearing date. (M.C.L. 211.24e, subsection 7)

and

Our Board, or Commission, Council or Authority has published a hearing notice and posted the
same at the principal office of our taxing unit. This notice contained the proposed additional
millage rate, the percentage increase in operating revenue and the percentage increase over the
preceding year if not approved which would be generated from permitted ad valorem tax levies
and the Notice was published at least 6 days before the hearing date, (M.C L. 211.24e, subsections 6 &
9)

and

Our Board, or Commission, Council or Authority held a public hearing pursuant to the hearing
notice. (M.CLL. 211.24e, subsection 6)  *Date of meeting was
and

Not more than 10 days after the public hearing, a taxing unit has approved the levy of an
additional millage rate but has not approved an additional millage rate that is greater than a
proposed additional millage rate that was published and on which the public hearing has been
held.

Our Tax Authority is exempt from M,C.L. 211.24¢ because we levied 1 mill or less in the
concluding fiscal year for operating purposes.

A Truth-in-Taxation hearing was not necessary because we will not be levying an operating levy
which is larger than the base tax rate.

Our Taxing Authorily has verified any Debt Levy being requested on the Tax Rate Request Form(I1.4029)

[
X

We are not requesting a debt levy
We are requesting a debt levy and have incloded a report or other document showing the amount
of principal and interest that the requested debt levy is intended to retire.

NAME OF TAX UNIT Loutit District Library

BOARD, COUNCIL OR COMMISSION:
Clerk or Secretary (Signature)

Mary Jane Belter

Print or Type Name

Chairperson, Mayor,
President or Supervisor (Signature)

Print or Type Name Burton H Brooks

Dated this day of ,2023.
Please return to the Ottawa County Equalization Director with the L-4029 form.




Loutit District Library
FY2023/24
Budget Overview

REQUESTED FY23/24 GENERAL FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

REVENUES: Requested

FY23-24 % of Total
Property Taxes 2,512,600 85.63%
County Penal Fines 120,000 4,09%
Appropriated from Property Sale 72,490 2.47%
Transfers In Maintenance Fund 80,000 2.73%
State Aid 39,604 1.35%
Library Fines and Fees 11,000 0.37%
Donations and Grants 93,125 3.17%
Other 5,300 0.18%
TOTAL REVENUES 2,934,119 100.00%
EXPENDITURES: Requested

FY23-24 % of Total
Employee Wages and Benefits 1,846,400 59.72%
Building/Grounds and Equipment Expenses 328,010 10.61%
Professional/Contractual, Services, Fees 168,725 5.46%
Transfers Out 383,100 12.39%
Library Collections and Programs 241,295 7.80%
Other 124,475 4.03%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,092,005 100.00%



Loutit District Library
FY2023/24
Budget Overview

REVENUES Appropriated from Property Sale
$72,490
County Penal Fines_ 7\ _
\ Transfers In Maintenance Fund
$120,000 “ \
\ N $80,000
N / State Aid

$39,604

Library Fines and Fees
$11,000

N

Donations and Grants
$93,125

L Other
~ $5,300

Property Taxes
$2,512,600.

EXPENDITURES e

$124,475

Library Collections and Programs
$241,295 =~

Transfers Out

$383,100~_
\‘

Professional/Contractual,
Services, Fees
$168,725

Building/Grounds and _
Equipment Expenses
$328,010
Employee Wages and Benefits
$1,846,400



NEW GL NUMBER

271-040-402.01
271-040-402.02
271-040-402.04
271-040-402.05
271-040-402.06
271-040-403.03
271-040-412.00
271-040-414.00
271-040-437.00
271-040-445.00
271-040-528.00
271-040-528.10
271-040-528.20
271-040-541.00
271-040-544.00
271-040-544.01
271-040-585.00
271-040-585.01
271-040-629.00
271-040-645.00
271-040-658.00
271-040-659.00
271-040-665.00
271-040-666.00
271-040-673.01
271-040-675.00
271-040-674.01
271-040-674.02
271-040-674.03
271-040-674.04
271-040-674.05
271-040-674.06
271-040-699.06
271-040-699.19

271-790-702.00
271-790-703.00
271-790-704.00
271-790-705.00

271-790-706.00
271-790-707.00
271-790-708.00
271-790-709.00
271-780-711.00
271-790-711.01
271-750-711.03
271-790-712.00
271-790-713.00
271-790-714.00
271-790-716.00
271-790-716.01
271-790-716.02
271-790-717.00

Loutit District Library 6
FY2023/24
Budget Overview
Original Projected Requested
Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget % Change
QLD ACCT # 20-21 21-22 22-23 22-23 23-24 (+/-)
040.101 OPERATING REVENUE
402.01 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN TWP PT 836,480 872,577 519,000 921,250 982,000 6.59%
402.02 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - ROBINSON TWP PT 260,401 271,004 288,200 288,000 307,000 6.60%
402.04 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - PORT SHELDON PT 275,833 260,736 266,400 262,750 280,000 6.57%
402.05 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - FERRYSBURG PT 189,960 196,903 207,300 206,300 220,000 6.64%
402.06 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN CITY PT 570,098 581,762 616,300 617,900 659,000 6.65%
403.03 PERSONAL PROP TAX STATE REIMBURSEMENT PT 53,671 60,686 60,000 57,575 60,000 4.21%
403.00 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX PT 1,138 692 500 300 200 -33.33%
PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTMENTS PT 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
403.01 IFT - INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX PT 4,088 3,797 3,300 2,550 3,400 33.33%
403.02 PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES PT 1,105 1,035 1,000 830 1,000 20.48%
FEDERAL GRANTS DG 0
FEDERAL GRANTS - IMLS DG 0
FEDERAL GRANTS - IMLS TECHNOLOGY DG 0
STATE GRANTS DG 0
544.01 STATE AID - LIBRARY SA 15,412 19,327 19,200 19,200 19,802 3.14%
544.00 STATE AID - LIBRARY COOP SERVICE SA 15,412 19,328 19,200 19,200 19,802 3.14%
675.04 LOCAL GRANTS DG 27,650 13,649 15,000 22,025 15,000 -31.90%
LOCAL GRANTS - GHACF DG 0 35,000
650.00 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 0 252 2,626 300 630 300 -56.52%
649.90 PRINTING & FAX LFF 2,753 6,384 6,000 6,375 6,000 -5.88%
655.00 PENAL FINES CPF 109,628 116,153 112,000 120,000 120,000 0.00%
657.00 FINES & PENALTIES - LIBRARY MATERIALS LFF 5,153 5,811 5,000 5,200 5,000 -3.85%
665.00 INTEREST INCOME 0 2,678 2,020 5,000 37,000 5,000 -86.49%
DIVIDENDS o} 250
673.01 SALE OF ASSETS 0 0 831 150 0 0 #DIV/0!
675.03 DONATIONS TO LIBRARY DG 13,379 40,820 40,000 13,000 40,000 207.69%
FRIENDS - ASSIGNED DONATIONS DG 50 50
FRIENDS - UNASSIGNED DONATIONS DG 750 750
ASSIGNED DONATIONS DG 1,750 1,750
UNASSIGNED DONATIONS DG 400 400
OWED TO FRIENDS DONATIONS DG 25 25
ENVISIONWARE DONATIONS DG 150 150
699.06 TRANSFERS |IN BOARD COMMITTED ROBBINS RD PROCEEDS APS a 0 72,490 72,490 72,490 0.00%
699.04 TRANSFERS IN MAINTENANCE FUND Tl 77,515 61,153 80,000 8,905 80,000 798.37%
Total 040.101 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 2,462,607 2,537,294 2,736,340 2,684,915 2,934,119 9.28%
Total Operating Revenue 2,462,607 2,537,294 2,736,340 2,684,915 2,934,119 9.28%
SALARIES/BENEFITS & OPERATING EXPENDITURES
101.790 EMPLOYEE SALARIES
701.000 SALARIES & WAGES
702.00 FULLTIME WAGES W8 777,502 827,466 781,900 735,000 910,000 23.81%
703.00 PART TIME WAGES WB 214,084 259,446 423,425 410,000 436,000 6.34%
704.00 OVERTIME WB o] 547 500 0 0 #DIV/0!
705.00 MERIT PAY wa 0 11,235 0 0 0 n/a
Total 701.000 TOTAL EMPLOYEE SALARIES 991,586 1,098,693 1,205,825 1,145,000 1,346,000 17.55%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
706.00 VACATION PAY WB 0 0 Q 20,000 20,000 0.00%
707.00 SICK PAY wBa 4,730 57,445 5,200 60,000 20,000 -66.67%
HEALTH INSURANCE QPT OUT W8 0 o] 0 540 1,500 177.78%
709.00 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE Wwe 594 648 1,100 750 14,500 1833.33%
711.00 HEALTH INSURANCE ER Wwe 108,683 118,369 114,060 105,000 118,500 12.86%
711.01 VISION INSURANCE ER WB 1,830 2,095 2,065 1,600 2,000 25.00%
711.03 HSA PRETAX ER WB 5,500 12,500 127.27%
712.00 DENTAL INSURANCE ER WB 12,156 12,293 12,165 11,500 15,000 30.43%
710.50 LIFE AND DISABILITY INSURANCE ER WB 2,670 2,461 2,600 3,200 3,500 9.38%
714.00 WORKERS COMP INSURANCE ER WB 2,017 2,017 2,100 2,300 2,500 8.70%
716.00 MERS DB PENSION ER WB 75,085 122,918 146,000 131,000 146,500 11.83%
716.03 MERS 401A DCER wB 10,244 10,621 2,000 11,500 20,500 78.26%
716.02 MERS 457 ER W8 11,201 11,673 15,650 10,500 15,500 47.62%
717.00 FICAER wa 74,472 84,295 93,000 88,500 104,000 17.51%
Total 706.000 TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 303,682 424,835 395,940 451,890 496,500 9.87%
TOTAL SALARIES/BENEFITS EXPENDITURES 1,295,268 1,523,528 1,601,765 1,596,890 1,842,500 15.38%




NEW GL NUMBER

OLD ACCT #

271-790-741.00
271-790-741.01
271-790-741.02
271-790-741.03
271-790-741.03
271-790-741.50
271-790-742.00
271-790-743.10
271-790-743.20
271-790-743.30
271-790-743.40
271-790-743.41
271-790-743.42
271-790-743.43
271-790-744.03
271-790-744.10
271-790-744.11
271-790-744.12
271-790-744.20
271-790-744.30
271-790-744.31
271-790-744.32
271-790-744.33
271-790-744.34
271-790-745.00
271-790-745.01
271-790-745.02
271-790-745.03
271-790-745.04
271-790-745.05
271-790-746.00
271-790-746.01
271-790-746.02
271-790-746.03
271-790-747.00
271-790-748.00
271-790-748.10
271-790-748.20
271-790-748.30
271-790-748.40
271-790-748.50
271-790-749.00
271-790-749.01
271-790-750.00
271-790-751.10
271-790-751.11
271-790-751.12
271-790-751.20
271-790-751.30
271-790-751.31
271-790-801.00
271-790-801.01
271-790-801.02
271-790-801.03
271-750-803.00
271-790-804.00
271-790-805.00
271-790-805.01
271-790-805.02
271-790-805.03
271-790-806.00
271-790-807.00
271-790-808.00
271-790-810.00
271-790-850.00
271-790-850.01
271-790-852.00
271-790-860.00
271-790-800.00

271-790-520.00
271-790-921.00
271-790-922.00
271-790-924.00
271-790-930.00
271-790-956.00
271-790-957.00

721.000
743.50

743.52
743.06
743.03
743.00
743.01
743.02

749.00

744.00
746.00

743.07

745.00

743.55
743.51
743.56

755.02

750.00

730.00
730.02

730.04
730.94
730.82

956.01
733.00
731.00

811.00
712.50
812.00
860.00
790.00
730.93

820.00
933.00
956.00
870.00

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
LIBRARY DONATIONS EXPENSE
FRIENDS ASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
ASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
UNASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
FRIENDS UNASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
LIBRARY DONATIONS GRANTS EXPENSE
ELECTRONIC DATABASES
BOOKS ADULT FICTION
BOOKS ADULT NON FICTION
BOOKS YOUTH
BOOKS REFERENCE
GENERAL REFERENCE
GENEALOGY REFERENCE
PROFESSIONAL COLLECTION
VIDEO GAMES
AUDIOBOOKS
ADULT AUDIOBOOKS
YOUTH AUDIOBOOKS
MUSIC
VIDEOS
FEATURE FILMS
DOCUMENTARY FILMS
CHILDREN'S FILMS
TV SERIES
ELECTRONIC MATERIALS
OVERDRIVE EBOOKS & AUDIOBOOKS
OVERDRIVE ADVANTAGE (FOR LDL PATRONS)
OVERDRIVE MAGAZINES

HOOPLA EBOOKS, EAUDIOBOOKS, MUSIC, VIDEO

KANOPY VIDEOS (STREAMING MEDIA)
PERIODICALS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
NEWSPAPERS, FINANCIAL JIOURNALS
MAGAZINE SERVICE
CONSUMER'S REPCRT
LIBRARY OF THINGS
PROGRAMMING
ADULT PROGRAMMING
YOUTH PROGRAMMING
LIBRARY-WIDE PROGRAMMING
SUMMER READING PROGRAMMING
GENEALOGY PROGRAMMING
COLLECTION MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES
ARCHIVAL SUPPLIES
OPERATING MATERIALS, COSTS & SUPPLIES
TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE
QPERATING SOFTWARE & SUBSCRIPTIONS
LIBRARY SOFTWARE & SUBSCRIPTIONS
TECHNOLOGY EQUIPMENT
TECHNOLOGY MISCELLANEQUS
TECHNOLOGY SERVICE & MAINTENANCE
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTUAL
PROF/CONT - LAKELAND LIBRARY COOP
PROF/CONT - IT SERVICE & SUPPORT
PROF/CONT - SERVICE CONTRACTS
EMPLOYMENT RELATED EXPENSES
CUSTODIAL SERVICE & SUPPLIES
BUILDING & GROUNDS
BUILDING & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

BUILDING & GROUNDS EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES

BUILDING & GROUNDS SERVICE CONTRACTS
BANK AND CREDIT CARD FEES
AUDITING & ACCOUNTING SERVICES
LEGAL FEES
TRASH SERVICES
TELEPHONE

CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT
INTERNET
TRANSPORTATION, LODGING & MEALS
PRINTING, MARKETING & PROMOTIONS
UTILITY COSTS (OLD)

ELECTRICITY

NATURAL GAS

WATER & SEWER

POSTAGE

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
MISCELLANEQUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Loutit District Library

FY2023/24

Budget Overview

LCP
LCP
LCP
Lcp
LCcP
LCP
Lce
Lce
LCP
Lcp
Lce
Lce
LCP
LcP
LCcP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP

LCP

Oo0OO0OO0OCQCOO0OO0O

o

PCSF
PCSF
PCSF
PCSF

BGE
BGE
BGE
BGE
BGE
PCSF
PCSF
PCSF
BGE

wB

o

BGE
BGE
BGE
BGE

BGE

7

Original Projected Requested
Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget % Change
20-21 21-22 22-23 22-23 23-24 (+/-)
8,132 12,615 40,000 5,000 0 -100.00%
500 500 0.00%
5,950 0 -100.00%
150 0 -100.00%
700 0 -100.00%
22,966 15,823 15,000 500 15,000 2900.00%
19,920 21,050 19,885 19,885 12,085 -39.23%
27,500 26,713 28,500 28,500 28,500 0.00%
19,294 20,000 20,000 20,000 18,000 -10.00%
16,926 17,802 18,000 16,000 18,000 12.50%
1,137 2,500 3,000 500 0 -100.00%
800 675 -15.63%
9200 675 -25.00%
30 650 2066.67%
0 1,250
10,647 11,000 0 250 0 -100.00%
9,250 9,200 8,000 -13.04%
1,750 1,000 500 -50.00%
1,200 1,125 1,200 100 1,200 1100.00%
11,360 11,258 0 10,500 0 -100.00%
5,000 0 5,000 #DIV/0!
2,300 0 2,300 #DIV/0!
1,500 0 1,500 #DIV/0!
2,700 Q 2,700 #DIv/0!
75,033 87,354 0 6,500 0 -100.00%
27,800 27,800 27,800 0.00%
36,000 30,000 36,000 20.00%
3,450 3,450 3,450 0.00%
20,000 31,000 20,000 -35.48%
6,000 4,500 6,000 33.33%
5,648 4,337 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
2,950 4,500 2,950 -34.44%
3,500 2,500 3,000 20.00%
50 60 60 0.00%
0 0 a #DIV/0!
5,177 5,280 5,000 5,500 5,000 -9.09%
4,189 6,500 5,000 3,500 5,000 42.86%
o] 0 14,000 6,350 5,000 -21.26%
0 9,000 9,000 0.00%
1,500 0 1,500 #DIV/0!
3,860 5,000 6,500 6,000 6,500 8.33%
Q o] o] 0 0 #DIV/0!
21,531 20,873 17,975 26,075 17,975 -31.06%
600 0 0 #DIV/0!
8,825 12,900 18,035 39.81%
1,300 1,800 1,900 5.56%
25,300 10,000 10,000 0.00%
1,000 0 500 #DIV/0!
2,500 1,575 3,475 120.63%
6,334 21,742 2,100 45,000 6,300 -86.00%
24,268 24,360 29,200 22,000 30,000 36.36%
50,000 56,000 56,000 0.00%
9,375 40,150 57,675 43.65%
6,118 7,500 375 8,000 500 -93.75%
49,685 54,420 60,200 60,200 4,000 -93.36%
61,814 71,774 5,000 40,000 0 -100.00%
26,010 26,010 26,010 0.00%
2,000 1,500 2,000 33.33%
36,000 36,000 36,000 0.00%
1,327 960 2,250 1,750 2,250 28.57%
6,900 7,150 7,400 8,125 9,000 10.77%
3,822 3,812 5,500 19,000 7,500 -60.53%
2,500 3,500 3,500 0.00%
1,335 1,200 1,200 5,000 1,200 -76.00%
4,680 3,800 0 3,900 3,900 0.00%
1,149 1,050 1,400 13,400 7,400 -44.78%
176 470 5,500 3,000 5,500 83.33%
7,421 7,775 9,725 9,725 9,725 0.00%
85,743 104,109 #DIv/o!
75,000 75,000 75,000 0.00%
17,500 17,000 15,000 11.76%
7,500 7,500 7,500 0.00%
7,746 7,965 8,500 5,000 8,500 70.00%
50,072 50,822 55,900 5,000 10,000 100.00%
3,532 4,339 500 6,000 500 -91.67%
6,347 6,000 13,000 5,000 10,000 100.00%



NEW GLNUMBER  OLD ACCT #
271-790-958.00 785.00
271-790-958.01
271-790-958.02
271-790-958.03
271-790-958.04
271-790-960.00 960.00
271-790-965.00 910.00
271-790-971.00 970.10
271-790-971.01 970.00
271-790-980.00 964.00
271-790-995.01 965.01
271-790-995.02 965.02
271-790-995.05 965.05

Loutit District Library

MEMBERSHIPS, DUES, SUBSCRIPTIONS
PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
LOCAL MEMBERSHIPS
GENEALOGY

PROFESSIONAL BOOKS & PERICDICALS

PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTMENTS

PROPERTY/LIABILITY INSURANCE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

FINES TRANSFER QUT

TRANSFERS QUT SPRING LAKE LIBRARY

TRANSFERS OUT ZEELAND LIBRARY

TRANSFERS OQUT DEBT SERVICE FUND

Total 721.000 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

TOTAL SALARIES/BENEFITS & OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures

Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

8

FY2023/24
Budget Overview
Original Projected Requested
Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget % Change
20-21 21-22 22-23 22-23 23-24 (+/-)
(0] 5,774 5,950 0 6,000 o] -100.00%
0 4,565 50 4,565 9030.00%
0 2,450 1,000 2,450 145.00%
(0] 250 0 250 #DIV/0!
0 0 0 o] #DIV/0!
[0} 251 545 2,000 100 2,000 1500.00%
0 13,360 13,909 13,150 13,325 13,500 1.31%
BGE 77,711 46,480 80,000 90,000 145,000 61.11%
BGE 30,953 33,853 25,300 20,000 Q -100.00%
TO 483 477 1,000 1,000 1,000 0.00%
TO 10,638 10,185 12,300 12,000 12,000 0.00%
TO 40,169 41,960 41,500 43,416 43,500 0.19%
TO 326,250 323,250 330,150 330,150 326,600 -1.08%
1,088,577 1,125,186 1,303,635 1,353,276 1,249,505 -7.67%
2,383,844 2,648,714 2,905,400 2,950,166 3,092,005 4.81%
78,762 (111,420) (169,060) (265,251) (157,886)
1,564,951 1,643,713 1,532,293 1,532,293 1,267,042
1,643,713 1,532,293 1,363,233 1,267,042 1,109,156



23-31

23-32

LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
May 9, 2023

1. The meeting was called to order at 5:38 p.m. in Program Room B by President Brooks.

Board members present: Burton Brooks, Caryn Lannon, Marc Longstreet, Cathy Rusco, Penni DeWitt,
Lisa Menerick, Nancy Collins

Board Members absent: Mary Jane Belter

Library Staff present: Elizabeth Smyka, Kerry Fitzgerald, Ellen Peters, Kim Rice, Anne Harrison
City of Grand Haven Staff present: Emily Greene

Members of the Public present: None

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion by Menerick, seconded by DeWitt to approve the agenda as revised. The motion was carried
7-0.
Discussion
A. Add Naturalization Ceremonies, Room Reservations, and Public Hearing Date to New Business
B. Move section 14. Union Bargaining to 5.1.

3. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approve the April 11, 2023 regular meeting minutes
B. Approve the April 2023 invoice payments of $641,821.72

Motion by Menerick, seconded by DeWitt, to approve the consent agenda as revised. The motion was
carried 7-0.

Discussion:

Brooks requests grammatical edits to match APA format.

Menerick asked to add “endowment donations” to Item Al under Unfinished Business to clarify wording.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
None

5. TREASURER’S REPORT

Financial report: Emily Greene, City of Grand Haven:

Greene gave a brief overview of the April finances, and explained that they might look different because
of the transition to the new accounting system. She said she tried to include everything that was
available for previous reports, and offered to include anything else they wanted to review going forward.
Brooks requested that the reports be available sooner for the board to review. Peters explained that we
were not able to get the financial report early enough to mail, because Marianne Case does not have
access to the new reports yet. Greene apologized and hopes to get things done earlier in the week going
forward, Lahnon asked if we moved money over to Huntington Bank. Greene confirmed the money was



transferred from the Robbins Road account to Huntington Bank to make the bond payments, And the
money from the matured CD from Lake Michigan Credit Union was moved to Michigan Class.

General Fund Financial Report as of April 30, 2023
Maintenance Fund Financial Report as of April 30, 2023
Debt Service Fund A Financial Report as of April 30, 2023
Debt Service Fund B Financial Report as of April 30, 2023
Bank Account Report as of April 30, 2023

April Finance reports attached

Discuss Changes to financial reports

US Bank Bond Balances and payment schedule

Union Bargaining (closed session)

—Temmon®»

23.33 Motion by Lannon, seconded by Collins that we enter a closed session.
Roli Cail Vote: 7-0
Brooks — yes
Collins - yes
Dewitt - yes
Lannon - yes
Longstreet — yes
Menerick - yes
Rusco - yes

Enter closed session at 5:57 p.m.
Resume after closed session at 6:60 p.m.

6. TRUSTEE COMMENT
Rusco reminded the board that it is the time of the year for reappointment. Brooks commented
that the board has to make recommendations and the city votes for approval. The term continues
until we have found a replacement. Rusco requests Longstreet talk to Frank to ask if he could be
reappointed. Lisa commented that John Martin would send letters out to any municipality to
suggest reappointments so the mayor could take that under consideration. Rusco also reminded
the board to fill out the director evaluation surveys for the next meeting. We will need to gointo a
closed session to discuss results with the director. She then recommends the board continue with
June director evaluations instead of every six months. And the board extends a welcome to Anne
Harrison,

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. Brooks’ Media Center/Community Foundation Update:
1. Peters spoke to Matt Deboer, who lives across the state, via Zoom and they discussed
budget updates. We need to ask the city for a building permit to start renovations, and
Deboer hopes to be here by the end of the month to look at everything in person. He
might be able to start work virtually in the meantime. Peters also talked to the Grand
Haven Community Foundation about the grant. She mentioned we would need to change
the wording in a way to “engage the elderly population” and to “include staff hours to
distribute funds into the community.” She said she could ask Consumers Energy about a
grant if the Community Foundation will not give us the money to finish the project.



11

8. NEW BUSINESS
A. Discussion of items reviewed by Personnel Committee for post-budget consideration

1.

Herrick is closing their genealogy resources, and we will become the main genealogy
resource for the county. This means our cataloging needs are increasing. Kerry Fitzgerald
loves cataleging and wants to move to full time cataloging. She currently splits her time
between cataloging and technology. Kate Tobin would like to take over her tech hours.
We currently have a Library Assistant || that we want to move to full time to take over
the hours Tobin currently works. Until he gets his master’s degree we would find an in
between wage, a $37,019 increase. Green has been looking at the numbers, and we are
only short $6,000 since he is at a $20/hr rate for the first year and we saved much more
with maintenance than we expected,

Lisa expressed concern about the wording of the job descriptions, specifically the phrase
“working off campus.” Peters explained that Tobin would be working primarily onsite,
but occasionally helps with programming offsite. Fitzgerald explains that she is already
being paid for this job. When she started, tech was about one third of her job. When she
became Head of Tech Services, it became half of her job. And since then it has increased
to two thirds of her time. We would just be redistributing hours between employees
without a pay difference. We also reduced our tech subscriptions to save $10,000.
Collins asked how these cuts will affect programming. Harrison and Peaters explained that
we cut subscriptions like LinkedIn Learning, which was not being used, Creativebug,
which was too complicated and people were preferring physical copies, and non-fiction
audiobocks usage has gone down, We also saved $2,500 on legal services because we
try to not have unnecessary consultations.

Lannon asked if the salaries of these position changes were included in the
documentation reviewed in the closed session. Peters confirmed that they were
included.

Consideration of a motion to approve recommendations to reorganize personnel
responsibilities as proposed by the director including Head of Cataloging, Emerging
Technologies, one Reference and Information Library Assistant Il to full time, and
increasing hours for three Library Assistant I's in Circulation.

23-34 Motion by Collins, second by Rusco. The motion was carried 7-0.

Discussion:

Menerick did not feel comfortable making this decision before the union discussed it. Lannon disagreed.
Kimberly Rice gave the green light to approve these changes ahead of union negotiations.

B. Consideration of serving alcohol at the Manhattan Film Festival at Central Park Place

1.

Peters explained that it is our program, but we are hosting it at the Community Center
because they have the theater and we will be promoting it. Concerns were voiced that it
would be too much liability, but the board was leaning towards not allowing alcohol.
Peters will ask Char Ocasio-Seise to come in for the next meeting for further discussion.

C. Comcast Project Discussion



23-35

12

1. Peters found out that Comcast is coming in to compete with Spectrum. Martin Lidacis
talked to Mike Fritz and convinced them to move construction to not interfere with our
entrance off of Fourth Street.

D. OVD Insurance Benefits Renewal

E.

F.

1. Peters asked if we could lower the deductible. Menerick wanted Peters to ask if we had
any savings to negotiate. The board agreed that this discussion needs to go to the union.

Naturalization Ceremonies

1. Menerick commented that a letter needs to go out to someone to resume having the
Naturalization Ceremonies held at the library. Ellen will connect with John Martin to find
out who to contact about this.

Online Reom Reservations

1, Menerick brought attention to the wording used on our website regarding room
reservations. It currently states that we are understaffed and that patrons cannot make
room reservations. Peters said we will work with tech services to update LocalHop on
the website. Peters also mentioned that we are currently taking room reservations if you
contact the front desk, but there will be an option to reserve a room anline in the future.

Motion to set the date of the budget hearing for June 13th at 5:00 p.m. with board meeting to follow
at 5:30 p.m. Motion by Lannon, seconded by Collins. Motion carried 7-0.
The hearing needs to be posted and published to the public.

9. COMMITTEE REPORT

A.

Building and Grounds Committee - No Report

Executive Committee

1. Covered inh New Business. The only topic not discussed was the news that we will hang pride
flags by our indoor display in honor of Pride month in June,

Finance Committee - No Report

Personnel

1. Peters covered everything earlier in the meeting.

Policy — no report

10. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A.

Peters briefly reviewed the report. The Summer Reading Kickoff Party Is June 3rd. Collins will
be attending as a greeter. Peters hopes the board will consider helping out as well,
Programming has been doing great, especially adult programming. Envisionware has been
installed and is running well. Peters has also been visiting schools and reading to local fourth
grade classes.

11. PRESIDENT'S REPORT - no report

12, PUBLIC COMMENT
Fitzgerald thanked the board for allowing the reconstructing of staff responsibilities. That
decision made six people really happy because they can use their skills to best serve the
community.



13

13. TRUSTEE COMMENT
Lannon said she loved the weekly calendars and the library engagement on TikTok. Menerick
asked about the possihility of adding community events to the printed calendar, Smyka
explained that the calendars already have limited space available for library programming, and
was concerned that the community might not want their events published to the public.

14, NEXT REGULAR MEETINGS
Public Hearing: June 13, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.
Board Meeting: June 13, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.
Executive Committee Meeting: May 30, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.

15. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 8:06 p.m.

Secretary President
Mary Jane Belter Burton Brooks

Prepared by Elizabeth Smyka, Marketing and Administrative Assistant



14

L5'GE8'€8 'sjuswasIngsig §9 Jo |ejo L
£e'668'LL ;53987 PIOA ¥ SS97
¥8'¥7£.'G6 :$)29YD) 6. 10 [B101
'81vLoL gs1at

00°08¢€ NAOQ ¥37109 11v2 ADIAYIS ONI TVYOINYHOIIN NIMAQ NYA (v)8se £202/92/50
00'€ey NOILY.LNISTHATIY ¥O4 NOILILAd  Od ‘HLINS 8 SNITI0D 'LdIMS 'H31S04 (v).s2 £202/92/50
zz'ose HIMIS/HTLYM 00006506C #LDIV NIAYH ANVYED 40 ALID (v)9sz £202/92/50
0009 sMoogolany 11nav ONI ONIHSITaNd FONVY 11149 (w)sse £202/92/50
G6'¥E sMoogolany L1navy "ONI 01Ny INOLSMOV1d (W)¥sz £202/92/50

A 0070 aloA (v)esz £202/92/50
29687 MTIVMAMOLS 90dd HLNOA 508493 077 HOTAVL ® y3ive (v)zsz £202/92/50
19°681L SIHAL1VE F1gvIDHVYHIIY ONI ‘'STDIAYTS TVLIdYD NOZVYINY (v)Lsz £202/92/50
00°00¢ JISNIN dYS 277 I THOHM 90802 £z02/52/50
6LLL Z2/82/1 L9FES MDIHD QIHSYONN INSSITH JINVHJILS 'NIMINHNYA 50802 £202/52/S0
00°00¥% 440M0IM d¥S ONILNIVd 30V J711IHOVH ‘NYAITINS #0802 £202/52/50
0,222 NOILVYLNISIHd HO4 IOVITIN INIY HITIN £0802 £202/52/50
00°€90'2 SayVvo 1S0d d¥s ONI ‘SSTHd 4v31 I1dVYIN z0802 £202/52/50
00'vL | 404 12/6/1 L 6¥202#1D AIHSYONN INSSITY AYYHElT dIHSNAMOL HH0d 1L080Z £Z02/52/S0
00°089 ¥e/LE/S OL €2/LY dIHSHIFWINITAYH ANVED FOHIANNOD 40 ¥3FINVHD 00802 £202/5¢2/S0

A 000 aioA (3osz £202/£2/50
A 000 aloAn (@e¥e £202/€2/50
PLLEL'Y (M) JOHSMHOM  DJ/VHVINO 40 MNVE TVNOILYN LSHId (Igve £202/£2/S0
99°1BE'Y ZVN 39avd INYN ‘ONITIVIN dHS ONI SINING H3A (W).¥T £202/2e/S0
00°000°¢ NOD H04 INNODJ2V NO 11IS0d3d ATHLINOW ONI IAINAH3IAO (v)ore £202/22/50
6% L anda 0771 3dVL L1SIMAIN (V)s¥e £202/22/S0
052180l 04 S3DIAYIAS TYNOISSIHA0Hd ONILTNSNOD "ONI ‘IHYMNOISIANT (W¥¥e £202/22/50

A 000 aloA (Were £202/22/50
A 000 aloA (W)eve £202/22/50
1Z2'22r'L S1vD D77 HOTAVL ® d3ve (WLve £202/22/G0
67°L1E'L ANIIH4 'dYS H04 S13S I3HL IVSNOg 09371 ONI ‘STDIAYIS TVLIdYD NOZVINY (v)ove £202/22/50
G662 NOY4 IDI-HOA-Y 14 ASYHOHN OL FDVITIN EIRENERNEEL 66,02 £202/61/50
G8'6 JOMYHD L¥0Od3Y ADONIDV NOILDOITI00 ALVHEEIT 3NV ONINAS 86,02 €202/61/50
00°05¢ 1 HLHOMSNIV ‘SHITHMAIHS DIYOLSIH 40 § 4 1AVHOIN "HILVYMSSYd 16102 £202/61/50
00'G6E £202 AYIN DNINYITD MOANIM ONINYITO MOANIM HSIH 96,02 £202/61/50
95°061 SMO009 LNIMd 39UV LNI¥d 393v1 LNIOd ¥31N3D §6.02 £202/61/50
.Gl sand 277 3dvL 1S3Malin (w)ege £202/S1/S0
Z22'S¥6'E £202 AVW- STDIAYEAS ADOTONHOIL STOOHIS 211dNd vIYVY NIAVH ANVHD (v)gez £202/51L/50
Junowy uonduasaq BWeN JOpUap ¥osuyD ayeq Moy

ziz  ebed

£202/1€/S0 - €202/10/50 INOYd 31vA HD3HD
AV LOIELSIA LILNOT HO4 Y3LS193d A03HD

Areigi noT g
ausalba :lasn

Nd 21:¢0 €20¢/1€/50



15

¥1°125'8 1HOI344 'I1aNNd SaT "ONI ‘TYYMNOISIANT (v)ige €202/5L/50
Z8°LSY sMoogolany L1navy "ONI OlaNY INOLSMOV1g (v)oez €202/51/S0

A 000 aloA (w)sez £202/51/60
A 000 aioA (W)vee €20Z/S /S0
ogLel'l sSand D77 HOTAYL ® H3Mve (V)eez €Z02/51/50
LY BSt'L "HOL23104d NIIHOS ‘SHIALYIANOD Ms3d ONI ‘STDIAYTS TVLIdVYI NOZYINY (Wizee £Z0Z/SL/50
00°L88'% JI¥dY S317ddNS ® SIDIAHIS TVIAOLSND JONYNILNIVIN ALITIOVA SYAHTZ 76102 £Z02/2 1150
0.6l SINIWADVYId ¥2-¥0  DNI ‘'STDIAYIS LNIWIDVYNVIA INDINN £6.02 £202/21/S0
00°0¥2 I3 YSSITEN HLIAM S3IN4Y3L1Ng ONILSCOH S3IT14YILLING ONILSOH 26102 £202/21/50
¥'6£2'9 2202 IddY LHOIT ALIMND3AS LO0LP8L/#1DIVIMOC ¥ LHOIT 40 ayvod NIAYH ANYED 16202 £202/21/50
9L'6LS sand D77 LNIWNIVLEILNT IONVYITIV 06102 £202/21/50

A 00°188'% TEdY STMddNS ® SIDIAHIS TVIAOLSND JONVYNILNIVIN ALITIOVH SYAH3Z 68202 £202/21/50
A 016l SININIOVY1d #2-#70  ONI ‘STADIAHIS LINIFWIDVYNVYIN INDINN 88/02 £202/Z1/50
A 00°0¥2 IMIT ¥SSIT3N HLIM S3IN4Y3ILING ONILSCOH S3AM4¥3LLING HONILSOH 18102 £202/21/50
A L¥'6ET'9 2202 I8dY LHDIT ALIMND3S L00P8L/#1DIVIMOC B LHOIT 40 a¥vOd NIAYH ANVHD 98102 £202/21/50
A 91L°6LS sand 277 LNIWNIVLYTILNT IONVYITIV G8.0T £202/21/50
€5 /€6 £/8968/96 37190N-1 (W)Lez £202/30/S0
0zZ'vee's sand D77 3dVL LSIMAIN (v)oez £202/80/50
0g 0tY TNYdY INI AdONWH (v)eee £202/80/50
G98L1 0Z N¥dY ONITTIE IDIAHIS LNV 1d ATHLNOWNI ONIdVYISLNY 1d HOIMILNI YA4IMI0H (v)gez £202/80/50
2270481 MOV IDIAEIS MONS/AdVYISANY1 £202/0202INI LNIWIDYNVYIN FdYISANYT VHLSHAC (w)/2z £202/80/50
ce'P89'y 334 NINQY ddV N3IAVYH ANVHD 40 ALID (v)9ze £202/80/S0
86°66 ZLE20L0Y09ZLSFZ8INILYHILO SNOILYIINNWINOD YT LYVYHD (w)see £202/80/50
0025 sSMoogolany L1nav ONI ONIHSITgNd IONY11I4E (W)¥ee £Z02/80/50
89'LZE ao NO SMo0golany L1navy "ONI OldNY INOLSHOV1d (Weege £202/80/50
A WA sand D77 HOTAYL ® H3aMvd (v)zee £202/20/50
10°68¢ 3SNO ANV QYVOgATIM ONI ‘SADIAYIS TVLIdYD NOZYINY (Wiee £202/80/50
Z0°068 £2/Leiv-zels 8,201 ONI ANVAINOD SANIHOVIN 321440 #8202 £202/50/50
00002 LSNYIOTOH H3TTIN INTHI :NOILYLNISTHd ENERIRIERRIL] £8/02 £202/50/50
90°Ze¥ 1L0000-90E89F¥0G0 #LDIVNOILYHOLHOD SAILITILA SYD NYDIHOIN 78,02 £202/50/50
00°6VE 7€1£0-209) LBE/-8960-1000 TYMINIY HVIA | ATIVa SSANISNEG S HOLSIANI 18202 £202/50/50
80°0€L DAIVIN 22/¥ ‘LEZ/Y 02/ 'IOVITIN SAVA € H13gvZI13 ‘NId418D 08.02 £202/50/50
8.v2T'L HITIHD "ONIMEOM LON 2V TIvD I2IAH3AS ONI TYDINYHIIN NIMAQ NVYA (WLLL £202/10/50
00°96€ ONILSOH Y1vd ¥2-0£/9-€2/0¢/9 ONI 3DHNOSNAS (W)oLL £20¢/10/50
85'6.2 6168.£0-0¥20-€ ONI SIDIAHEIS 2I1aNd3d (W)69l £Z02/10/50
000482 MNOHOLYM ILINS ALIMNDIS 2ISYE SHYIA €11 'SNOILNTOS ADOTONHITL NNYINHIY (w)89l £202/10/50
gy L€ sand 271 3dVL LSIAMAIN (W)291 £202/10/50
00'6¥% TOHLINOD 1S3d 11ddY TOHLINOD LS3d ALy3dlT (v)99L £202/10/50
00°0S€ LHOIT LIX3 "YIHSINDNILXT 81290608 #1D2VNOILITLOHd FHI4 STOHLNOD NOSNHOP (v)s9l £202/10/50
00°009 81290608 LOYHINOD ¥ITMNINASNOILDTLOHd FHId STOHLNOD NOSNHOr (W)¥9L £202/10/50
G6'PE an NO sMoogolany 11nav "ONI O1aNY ANOLSMOVYd (v)gal £202/10/50

A 000 aion (v)zolL £202/L0/50
90°'6.6'L sSand 077 HOTAVL % H3aMve (W)l £20¢e/10/50

A 000 aloAn (W)o9L £202/10/50
LO'6¥6 S1IHIVI ‘D1dV 0771 HOTAYL ® 43aMvd (V)6S1L £202/L0/50
0L°ZZe'L I0IL¥YNOA ATTINVLS INOYH SINTLI OONILNIN ONI ‘SADIAYIS TIVLIdYD NOZVYINY (v)gstL £202/10/50
LNIWISHNESIA LILNOT gs1aT yued

junowy/ uondiuosag aweN Jopusa Moayo ajeq osyo

cil

€20¢/LE/S0 - €202/10/50 WOHH 31vA MO3HD
AdYHdlT LOI™LSIA LILNOT Jd04 431S193d XO3HD

AleiqignoT :ga
ausalba :1asn

Nd 2120 €20¢/1.€/S0



n > o 9 /g afed £z/L0/90 - femauay Aelqi 10U1SIQ 1IN0 £202°T0°L0 - d4Y

16

902'11% | %00 TTES- | %e0- 1 568'0T$ | %80T 4 waung woid ¢ | o V
6EE'6S | 902'TTS 6EE'6S | TSB'00TS 6££'6% | LG0'ZITS Ad3d | s1500 enuuy
8. | vE6S T0.$ | Sop'ss 6..% | BEE'6S Wd3ad | sisoD Alyauopw

15'9%% | %00 15'97% 91'z$ | %S0 L v5'81rS 19878 | %L TT L S0'59r$ T 33 0 9v alinc SLWEIIIM
0£°22T$ | %00 0g'L2T% 56'2% | HE0 L 89'SPT'TS SZ0ETS | Wi IT 86'ZLZ'TS T 43 yL'6v -2 8F aysLear U3pIBM,
L0'€L$ | %00 L0'ESLS LT0T-5 | %S'T- 99°/59% 16'29% | %P6 ¥ °0EL$ T s34 ge-T 1€ aney uigoL
$T'00T$ | %00 +T'00T$ £6'55 | %20 9Z'106% 1090T$ | %8'TT L Ot"T00'TS T 103 TZ-T SS Apaquuny aoly
6T°L6% | %00 6T°L6% +8'T-% | Wz0o- v.'v.8% 9¢'56% | %6°0T L ¥6'TL6S T 103 vZ-T 95 allRYAN smald
ST LLTS | %00 ST'L.TS 82 12-% | WET- SE'V6S'TS 88'SSTS | %96 L TSTLLTS T s3 €L-T 09 uafg sigled
8£'8¢% | %00 8€'8ES 7265 | %92 4 SY'SPES ST'62% | %28 Z8'E8E% T 33 0 (£ unrep sioepri
£1'86% | %00 £I'8e% 916 | %92- 1 0Z'EvES 86'82% | %28 L ¥E'TBES T 33 0 9t auuy uosiireH
£e2L$ | %00 £ETLS 8r'gs | weTd 16'059% T8°08% | %9ZT L 0E€eLS T 33 0 95 Ay PRI
PT¥8% | %00 PI'v8% eS| 0T I 1T ISL% 163 | %TTT b ZrIves T 33 0 09 auuelen aseD
LUV | %00 LLVYS 6003 | %00 T6°20VS 98'vr$ | BITI 89°LFrS T 33 0 S¥ uosi|iy 1afog
69've$ | %00 69VES 22T | wro- 22TIES 8r'ees | %L 0TV 26'9vES T 33 0 62 aunayey Teeusydiy
sl VY aafojdwig $l%V Jafojdwig $lnV wniwaid ueld 4811 sjuapuadaq by FCITE 1seq
T - uondQ ue|d uo paseg 0062 OWHALoud - yesH Aond - Z

%06 :d3a %06 ‘33 2400T 0SEZ OWH YSHAIMOUd - yijeaH Ajuoud - T

%001 0S€Z VSH OINH 4110114 Ul P[[OIU [[E JT UMOYS
ue|d femauay - yijeaH Aiiold - z abed - uonnquiuod vov a@



9/g:@fed £z/20/90 - [emauay AiesqrT 1911S1Q 1IN0 £202'T0°L0 - d4d

dAo

17

EGT'TTS | %00

TIE3- | weo-

Zr8'0TE | %L 0T

waung woid $ | o

vEE'6$ | EST'TTS veE'eS | 1S8'00TS YEE6S | YOO'ZTITS Ad3d | siso) enuuy

8/% | 0g6S T0L$ | sov'es 8//% | #e<'sS Wd3d | 51500 AjLpuoy

8Z'9¥$ | %00 8Z'9v$ or'zs$ | %s'0 ¥S8TYS rrevs | %o TT b 28'Vors z 33 0 or alng swelfim
69'921$ | %00 69'92T% S62$ | %ED L 89°GHT'TS ¥9'62T$ | WETT J LEELTTS z 43 ¥I'6v-2 8F ansuear BEIEIY
€L2L% | %00 €L2US LT'OT-$ | %S'T- 99°L59% 95'29% | %6 6E'0ELS z s3 €e-1T 1E aney| uigoL
59'66% | %00 59°'66% £6'6% | %L 0L 9Z'T06$ 85°G0TS | WBTT J T6°000'T$ z 103 TZ-T SS Apaquury 201y
£1°96% | %00 €L°96% #8'1-% | %z 0- 1 L v8% 68'76% | %80T L IV TI63 Z 103 vZ-T vS EIETRIIN smald
0€'9.T% | %00 0E9.TS 82128 | WET- SEV6S'TS 20°55T$ | %96 |- 59°0.4'1$ z sS4 €/ -1T 09 ug||a slalad
0Z'88% | %00 02'8E% vZ2'6-% | %92- EI'GPES 96'82% | %28 £9°E8ES z =3 0 ‘€ uney SI9EpI]
S6°28% | %00 G6'/ES 9T'6-¢ | %92Z- 0Z'EvES 64823 | %z ST'I8ES z 93 0 9 auuy uospreH
86°T.$ | %00 86'TLS 8res | we'T 16'059% 9t'08% | %G'2T L S6'22L% z 33 0 95 Auay PleIROZIH
#2°€8% | %00 v.'€8% ZELS | %0T L Yrapasta: 90°T6% | %T'2T J TO'TY8S z 93 0 09 auuelep ase)
95'7r$ | %00 95'tirs 60°0% | %00 T6°20V$ S9tYE | WT'TT J Ak Zz 33 0 Sv uoslily 1afog
¥S¥ES | %00 PSYES 2TT$ | wr'o- 22'2IeS ze'ees | %0°0T L 9,'9vES z 33 0 62 auuaypey Teeuaydiy

aafojdwig Jafojdwz winiwaid ueld 191 sjuspuadag aby

0052 OWHAIIONd - YifesH Apoud - 2
%00T 0S£Z OWH YSHAIONG - YieaH fAuoud - T

T - uondg uejd uo paseg
%06 ‘d30 %06 33

00SZ OINH AILI011g Ul PI[[OIUD [[e JI UMOYS
uejd femauay - yijeaH Aluoud - g abed - uonnquuod yov




18

COMMERCIAL INSURANCE REQUEST FOR UPDATED
RENEWAL EXPOSURES

Loutit District Library

407 Columbus Street
Grand Haven, Ml 49417

For upcoming renewal term: 7/1/2023-7/1/2024

bhs

INSURANCE

THIS DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES YOUR INSURANCE. THIS IS NOT A CONTRACT. THE TERMS OF THE POLICY FORMS
WILL CONTROL THE INSURANCE CONTRACT WITHOUT REGARD TO ANY STATEMENT MADE IN THIS SUMMARY.



19
GENERAL INFORMATION

Population:

# Of Full Time Employees:

# Of Part Time Employees:

# Of All Other (Volunteers/Seasonal) Employees:

Sheriff/chief

Chief/deputy/deputy chief

Personnel with rank of sergeant or higher

Full-time personnel with regular street/road duties, detectives, and investigators
Jail administrators

Police dogs

Police horses

Full-time or part-time jailers/matrons, including dispatchers performing as jailers on part-time basis

Civil security staff
Part-time/auxiliary/reserve officers armed or with arrest authority

Part-time personnel with regular street/road duties, detectives and investigators

# Of Employees Class A:

# Of Employees Class B:

BHS Insurance6/6/2023



20

€¢0z/9/99duEInNsU| SHY

ale( ainmeubis

4 auoyd

SSaIppYy |lews syl sweN

‘Bunum ul @aueinsu| sSHg Apou
0] 2albe | ‘sabueyo sjenplAlpul pazuoyine Jo 1si| SIYl | “swiej2 Bujjy pue suonjeujwie ‘suolonpal ‘suoljippe
‘sabueyo abeltanod Bunsanbal ul painsul 8y] 10 Jjeyaq uo 108 0] pazZioyine ale sjenplalpul Buimoljo) syl

STVNAIAIANI d3ZIbdOHLNY



21

£20¢/9/980uBINSU| SHY

:a1eq oL :aineubis s,painsu|

Jeljeq pue abpajmous Aw o 1saqg ay) 0] 1081100 8Je UOJJBWIOU| UOIBO0T PUB SaN|eA ||V

SANTVA ALd3d0¥d 40 LNIINIFOATTMONMIY

(papnjoxa Ajjeoyoads ssajun) sso| [eaisAyd 10a1ip JO Ysi ||V = |e1oads
(uoneioaldaq snuipy 1500 Juswaoe|day) aneA Yse) [endy = AJY -10 -
‘anjeA |In} syl jo abejusoiad uasoya ay) 0] painsul aq 0} Auadolid pasaaod Bulinbal UoISIACIY = @oUBINSU-09)

(eouEINSUI0D) paAIRAN) JUNOLWY pealby = AY paule}sNg $SO7 [enjay =
1500 juswade|dey = Y s|gnanpaq = paa uonen|eA = |BA

SNOILLINIdZA ALd3d0dd

¥8¢'8Y 6002 | AV/AH LOL'¥LL'P$ (A¥VHEIT M3N) L33HLS SNENNTOD L0¥ L L

8
ZE'6EE'0LS
n adueinsuj Teai aoueiInsuj m el
S en | o el oy | e

jusjuo) uonduosaqg sasiwaid

Buipjing

pajoaloid pajoaload

37NA3HIS NOILVIOT

ALld3d0Odd TVIOH3ININOD




22
GENERAL LIABILITY

EXPOSURES

| Projected
Class Code : Exposure | Exposures
C26 Mowing Operation — Contracted 0
ca27 | .Garbage Collection — Contracted 0
C103 Special Events — Downtown Grand Haven Historic 1

7 VTaveranour

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF GENERAL LIABILTIY EXPOSURES

All Information is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

Insured’s Signature: Title: Date:

BHS Insurance6/6/2023



23

f=11:1g|

£202Z/9/990ueinsu| SHY

Bl :aimeubig s painsu|

181]ag pue abpsmouy AW JO }s8q 8y} 0} 1081102 SI UonewIo| ||

SIHUNSOdX3 INFO0NOLNY 40 LNINIOATTMONMOIOV

ON/S®A ¢8|NPayos 8y} Uo pajsi| 10U ‘Ajjus ay} Ag paumo sojne Aue aisy) aly

S9|21YSA paumo oN

S3TOIH3A

oLNv 1VIOJd3ININOD




24
EQUIPMENT FLOATER

UNSCHEDULED EXPOSURES

° Insurance of Insurance

Miscellaneous Property & Equipment - ltems Over $25,000 $25 000
Must be Specifically Scheduled i E

Ancillary Equipment $0

Contractors Equipment Rent for less than 90 Days $0

SCHEDULED EXPOSURES

Current Limit Projected Limit of
Department of Insurance Insurance
FURNITUR
ANTIQUE E LIBRARY $25,000
STAINED GLASS WINDOWS | LIBRARY $8,000

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF EQUIPMENT FLOATER EXPOSURES

All Information is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

Insured’s Signature: Title: Date:

BHS Insurance6/6/2023



25

ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING

SCHEDULED EXPOSURES

Current Limit of Projected Limit of
" Insurance Insurance

Miscellaneous Equipment $100,000

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING EXPOSURES

All Information is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

Insured’s Signature: Title: Date:

BHS Insurance6/6/2023



26

WORKERS COMPENSATION

Classification Description g?j: Current Exposures

Projected Estimated
Exposures

Clerical Office Employee 8810 $908,297

Janitorial Operations & Custodial Care 9015 $18,252

Locations

Address Add/Delete/Change

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF WORKERS COMPENSATION EXPOSURES

All Information is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

Insured’s Signature: Title: Date:

Would you like a quote: Yes No

BHS Insurance6/6/2023



27

COVERAGE CONSIDERATIONS

The Coverage Considerations listed below are not intended to be an exhausted list nor is this list intended
to identify all potential exposure. Please advise us if a proposal for any of these coverage’s is desired.

FOR ALL POLICIES
e Review the Named Insured, Additional Insured(s), Mortgagees and Loss Payees.
s Review the Premium Basis for each coverage such as payrolls, sales, areas, cost or schedules.
e Review any Co-insurance requirements that may apply.

Co-insurance Formula: Insurance value carried / Insurance value required x value of the loss (less
any applicable deductible) = settlement value.

Please see the policy language for further details on the coinsurance clause and potential co-
insurance penalties.

e Advise us of Any Changes or New Developments in your Operation such as mergers or
expansion in new states or countries, new entities or DBA’s, new products or services, contractual
agreements granting indemnity and/or hold harmless agreements, equipment owned, transportation
needs or any changes to your building or occupancy of your premises such as vacancies.

PROPERTY

e Building & Contents values and coverage forms should be reviewed regularly to ensure they are
insured adequately and any coinsurance requirements are satisfied. An appraisal of your building &
contents are recommended. Improvements and Betterments should be considered too for any
leased locations.

¢ A business interruption worksheet should be completed to assist in determining an adequate
coverage limit. Also any Extra Expense coverage needs should be considered when determining an
adequate coverage limit.

e Building Ordinance or Law Coverage. The endorsement is used to include protection for three
additional coverage exposures: Coverage A — payment for the value of the undamaged part of a
building when a building code requires its demolition following a partial loss; Coverage B — coverage
for the expense of demolishing the undamaged portion of a building damaged by an insured peril
including the cost of removing debris; and Coverage C - coverage for the increased costs of
construction resulting from enforcement of construction or building laws. This applies to both the
damaged and undamaged portion of the structure.

e Property of others or employees’ in your possession must be scheduled, as the basic form may
exclude or provide a low sub-limit for each.

¢ Bailee Customers Goods Floater. This form is used to insure against loss to property of others
that is in your possession, regardless of your legal liability.

BHS Insurance6/6/2023



28

o Utility Services — Direct Damage and Time Element. This coverage extends Direct Damage and
Business Income and Exira Expense insurance to protect against losses due to the interruption of
services by a facility that provides you with power, water or communications when caused by a
covered peril.

¢ Debris removal limit may be increased.
» Coverage for Backup of Sewer or Drains, Flood & Earthquake may be available.

« Mobile equipment may not be included or limited coverage under your contents coverage.
Examples are tools, cameras, fine arts, musical equipment, and other mobile property.

+ Builders Risk & Installation coverage’s may be available.

+ Boiler & Machinery/Equipment Breakdown. This coverage provides protection for the repair or
replacement of equipment, pipes, vessels, air conditioning, and refrigerated equipment, electrical
panels, etc. that would be damaged or destroyed from a sudden and accidental breakdown. This
coverage can also include coverage for Production Equipment as well as resulting Business Income
loss.

» Vacancy Clause. Please note that when a building is as little as 33% unoccupied/vacant, there is
language in all property policies, which limits coverage. Some policies reduce the payout, some
exclude coverage for such perils as broken pipes, vandalism and other. If you experience this
situation, please notify your agent to see if there are other options for you.

CRIME

+ Computer Fraud, Fund Transfer Fraud, Social Engineering, Forgery or Alteration and Money
& Securities should be considered.

« 3rd Party Employee Dishonesty is recommended if your employees have access to client
property.

» Fiduciary Liability, Directors & Officers Liability, Kidnap/Ransom, Extortion and Identity theft
may be available.
INLAND MARINE
« Motor Truck Cargo, Property in Transit, Ocean Cargo, Installation Floaters, Misc. & Scheduled

Equipment coverage and Rented, Leased, Borrowed Equipment coverage and Employee Tool
coverage should be considered.

BHS I'nsurance6/6/26’2§' o



29

LIABILITY

A formalized program to review certificates should be established. Your company should require,
from any subcontractor doing work on your behalf, certificates of insurance requiring that the
subcontractors have limits of liability for General Liability, Automobile, and Workers Compensation at
least as high as the limits you have. If you fail to do this, payments you make can be charges
against your Workers Compensation or General Liability policies. This could result in substantial
additional premium charges.

Any subcontractors should name your company as an Additional Insured, and this should be
noted on the certificate of insurance.

Hold Harmless Agreements should be included in any contracts. Your atiorney should review
these.

Fire Legal Liability fimit should be reviewed. The building lease may include contractual transfer of
loss.

Warehouse Legal exposure. Employee Benefits Liability — this protects against suits alleging
damage because of handling of smployee benefits. As an example, this coverage would protect the
insured if an employee, by error, is not added to the group health plan. This can be added to the
present plan at a nominal cost if not included now.

Claims Made — any situation that you feel could lead to a claim must be reported to the carrier prior
to the policy expiration or extended reporting period to avoid potential claim denial.

Professional Liability, Directors & Officers Liability, Employment Practice Liability, Pollution
Liability, Cyber Liability and Multi-International coverages shouid be considered.

AUTOMOBILE

State Law requires that the owner or registrant of a motor vehicle registered in this state must have
insurance or other approved security for the payment of no-fault benefits on the vehicle at all times. An
ownher or registrant who drives or permits a vehicle to be driven upon a public highway without the
proper insurance or other security is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Drive Other Car coverage and schedule of individuals should be reviewed.
Broadened PIP including names of family members

Higher limits of liability and uninsured & underinsured motorist should be considered.
Towing & Rental Reimbursement coverage is available.

All aftermarket equipment on vehicles must be scheduled.

T T T E . i e e = e A T

BHS Insurancé6/6/2023



30

s Hired Auto Physical Damage

o Assure proper coverage for your hired/rented auto physical damage. You need to have a
clear company procedure for employees’ short-term hired/rented car physical damage.
Adopt one of the following procedures (each may have a limit for the value of any one
vehicle):

= Add Hired Auto Physical Damage to your existing automobile policy, if not currently
provided.

= Employees place rental contracts only on credit cards providing this rental physical
damage coverage.

= Require employees to accept physical damage coverage through the auto rental
company. This is the most expensive option of the three.

» Because of high value exposures, an established company procedure is important.

o Any autos you lease, hire, rent, or barrow from any of your employees or partners or
members of their household should be reviewed.

WORKERS COMPENSATION

Workers Compensation Insurance is required by Law. There are severe consequences to an
employer who fails to carry workers’ compensation insurance.

+ Stop Gap Coverage can be added to extend employers liability coverage for monopolistic states,
However, workers comp for monopolistic states must be purchased directly from the State Fund and
cannot be added to your policy.

+« Endemic Disease and Repatriation coverage should be added if foreign travel exposure exists.

+ Advise your agent if you will be traveling to other states or countries.

UMBRELLA

* Higher limits should be considered.

ACTIVE SHOOTER WORKPLACE VIOLENCE

» Workplace violence is becoming an ever increasing liability in the workplace. Despite the presence
of workplace violence prevention programs intended to avoid this hazard entirely within the
workplace, it is becoming all to frequent that there may be an active shooter incident at the
workplace. Key items for consideration in a policy:

o Any weapon including brandishing a weapon

No Fault response

Domestic Violence dispute is not covered by Workers Compensation (not work related injury)

The General Liability policy may or may not respond — negligence needs to be established

Business Income response

Crisis hotline with immediate response to provide public relations. Also includes Social

Media monitoring, trauma counseling, funeral and medical expenses, and a possible death

and dismemberment benefit.

0 0 00

BHS Insufance'6/6/2023 -




31

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT
TO SHARE SERVICES OF GHAPS TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT

This agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into between the Board of Education of the Grand Haven
Area Public Schools (“GHAPS™), and Loutit District Library (“Library™) {collectively be referred
to as the “Agencies™) for the purpose of enabling the Agencies to enter into a cooperative
agreement with each other to utilize the shared services of the GHAPS Technology Department.

PREMISES

A. Pursuant to §11a(3) of the Revised Schoo! Code, the general powers accorded to GHAPS
expressly include the powers to hire, contract for, schedule, and supervise employees. Pursuant
to §11a(4) of the Revised School Code, the general powers accorded to the School Districts
expressly include the power to enter into cooperative programs with other entities, public or

private (including other school districts), as part of performing the functions of the School
District.

B. The Agencies share interest in achieving cost savings and cost efficient management practices

by entering into a cooperative agreement to share the services of the GHAPS Technology
Department.

C. GHAPS employs members of the Technology Department ("Employees"). Library has
requested that GHAPS make its Employees available to Library, in consideration of Library
paying a contracted share of the costs incurred by GHAPS in employing the members of the
technoiogy department.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Premises and their obligations to each other, the
Agencies agree as follows:

AGREEMENT
1. Contract Term
a. This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2023 and terminate on June 30, 2025,
b. Beginning October 1, 2023, and every three months thereafter, Library shall, if not in
breach of this Agreement, have the right to request, by written notice to GHAPS, that this

Agreement be re-opened.

2. Assignment, Qualifications, and Shared Services of Emplovees

a. The Employees shall be employed by, and shall be considered employees of, GHAPS only
and not employees of the Library. The parties agree that GHAPS is an independent
contractor and the services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall not create an
employer/femployee relationship between Employees and Library and shall not create a
partnership or joint venture between the parties. GHAPS shall make the Employees



32

available to Library to preform duties, responsibilities and services for Library as directed
by the Director of Technology for GHAPS and Library Director, or his/her designee for
Library. GHAPS represents that the Employee hold all certification and qualifications
required by law or policy for the services provided under this agreement. The Employees
shall comply with all applicable rules, regulations, policies and directives of the Agencies
(whether issued by their Board or their authorized administrators) for the work performed
on behalf of the respective Agency, and shall perform all other duties and responsibilities
of his assignment(s). The Employees shall comply with all applicable background checks
required by Library.

. GHAPS will provide the following services (“Basic Services™) to Library as more fully
described in Attachment A which is incorporated herein by reference:

Level 1 Help Desk Support

Level 1 Workstation Support (Onsite)
Online Ticketing System

Backup System

Installation of Replacement Parts and Repairs
Software Installation and Updates

Tier 3 First Level Telephone System Support
Local and Long Distance Telephone Service
Telephone DID Provisioning

Hosted Virtualized Servers

Hosted Security Camera System

The Employees will provide the hours for Basic Services as described in Attachment A.

In addition to the Basic Services, GHAPS will provide Emergency Support, System
Engineering, and Strategic Planning (“Level 2 Services”) as mutually agreed by GHAPS
and Library. Prior to commencement of any Level 2 Services, GHAPS and Library will
agree on the scope and number of hours o be spent by Employees. No Level 2 Services
will be performed without the prior written approval of Library’s Director or his/her
designee.

. The Employces shall be required to keep daily time records through the IncidentlQ work
order system. Such records or logs shail be provided to the Superintendent of GHAPS and
Library Director, or his/her designee, as requested.

While performing services for Library, the Employees shall report to the Director of
Technology for GHAPS, or to those persons designated by the Superintendent of the
GHAPS. Work requests will be handled using the IT Direct work order system and special
projects will be with the collaboration of the Director of Technology for GHAPS or his/her
designee and Library Director or his/her designee.



33

3. Pavyment for Services

i,

In consideration of the Basic Services performed under this Agreement, Library  shall
pay GHAPS an amount equal to the services performed for Library.

The 2023 payment amount is 4.5% greater than the cost of services in 2022. In 2024, the
payment will increase by 2.5%. This will conclude the 2 year extent of this agreement.

GHAPS shall invoice Library on a monthly basis. The monthly cost for Basic Services to
be paid by Library for the year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024, will be
$4,126.98 ($49,523.71/12). The monthly cost for Basic Services to be paid by Library for
the year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025, will be $4,230.15
($50,761.80/12).

GHAPS will provide the Level 2 Services at the rate of $80 per hour as provided in
Paragraph 2.d. GHAPS will invoice Library on a monthly basis for any Level 2 Services
performed in the preceding month.

4. Expense Reimbursements

When the repair or service work requires hardware or software that requires an expense, it
shall fall to Library to purchase said hardware or software to complete the repair. GHAPS
and Library hardwate and software shall remain separate and in accordance with licensing
agreements. The Employees shall follow all purchasing guidelines for Library. The Library
shall not be required to pay or reimburse any other expenses pursuant to this Agreement,

5. Termination

This Agreement may be terminated prior to the end of the term as follows:

a.

b.

at any time upon mutual Agreement of the Agencies;

by either party giving the other party one (1) month advance written notice of its intent to
terminate for any reason;

by the non-defaulting party in the event that a party defaults in the performance of any of
its obligations under this Agreement, if the defaulting party fails to cure such default within
ten (10) days after receiving written notice of such default.

6. Insurance

GHAPS shall procure and maintain the following insurance during the term of this Agreement:

a.

Workers Compensation Insurance as prescribed by the laws of the State of Michigan.



10.

11.

b. Comprehensive General and Automobile Liability Insurance, with combined single limits
of $1,000,000.00 for any one occutrence in which bodily injury or property damage is
alleged.

GHAPS shall furnish Library with a Certificate of Insurance evidencing such coverage naming
the Library as an additional insured on the Comprehensive General Liability Policy.

All insurances policies shall provide that they shall not be canceled or modified unless thirty
(30) days prior written notice is given to the Library.

Notices

The parties shall be provided any notice required or permitted under this Agreement at the
addresses listed below, or at such other address as may be designated by a party upon written
notice to the other party:

Grand Haven Area Public Schools
Attention: Superintendent

Grand Haven Area Public Schools
1415 Beechiree Street

Grand Haven, Michigan 49417

Loutit District Library
Attention: Director

407 Columbus Avenue

Grand Haven, Michigan 49417

All notices to be given under this Agreement shall be served personally, by deposit in the
United States mail, first class postage pre-paid by registered or certified mail with an overnight
courier with charges pre-paid. Any such notices shall be deemed to have been given on the
day of personal service, one (1) business day after deposit with an overnight courier or three
(3) business days after deposit in the United States mail, as applicable.

Assignment, Delegation, Subcontract

GHAPS shall not assign, delegate, subcontract, or other transfer its obligations under or
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of Library.

Compliance with Law

In performing the services under this Agreement, GHAPS shall at all {imes comply with all
federal, state and local laws, statutes, rules, regulations, and ordinances.

Amendment
Any amendment of this Agreement shall be made in writing and executed by the Agencies,

Entire Agreement

34



36

ATTACHMENT A

Grand Haven Area Public Schools & Loutit District Library
Technology Consolidation Proposal

In an effort to promote cost savings and a spirit of consolidation we, Grand Haven Area Public
Schools, propose utilizing personnel from Grand Haven Area Public Schools to support Loutit
District Library in the area of technology. This proposal defines support in several areas. Each
area is generally defined below, but can be altered in the best interest of both organizations,

BASIC SERVICES (as defined in the Agreement):
Level 1 Help Desk Support:

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will provide over the phone and remote support to
users at Loutit District Library. Help Desk will be available from the hours of 8 am to
4:30 pm, Monday through Friday. Users at Loutit District Library would be able to cal! a
phone number and receive Level 1 support from the Help Desk or have the issue elevated
to Level 2 Services (as defined in the Agreement) subject to the prior approval of Library
Director or his/her designee in accordance with Paragraph 2.d. of the Agreement. In
addition, GHAPS will provide Level 2 Services after hours (i.e. other than between 8§

a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday) as requested by and with the prior approval of
Library Director or his/her designee in accordance with Paragraph 2.d. of the Agreement.

Level 1 Workstation Support (Ounsite):

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will provide a minimum of eight (8) hours per week of
workstation level support in two (2) blocks of four (4) consecutive hours. This level of
support is an onsite technician to troubleshoot issues with workstation level computers
and standard software as well as remote support. This level of support includes iPad
management via Mosyle and iPad hardware support from the onsite technician, Loutit
District Library will be responsible for the ordering of replacements parts.

Online Ticketing System:

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will provide access to the IncidentIQ work order
system, Users at Loutit District Library have web access to IncidentIQ to submit work
order tickets directly and the GHAPS Help Desk will assign the ticket to the appropriate
technician,




37

Backup System:

Grand Haven Are Public Schools will provide a secure outside back-up solution

including hardware and software, Space can be determined as needs increase but starts at
2.5TB.

Installation of Replacement parts and Repairs:

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will be responsible for trouble shooting problems with
Loutit District Library PCs, servers, and other equipment, and will provide ordering
information and sources for Loutit District Library Staff to order. GHAPS staff will
install parts and make any necessary repairs.

Software Installation and Updates:

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will be responsible for managing sofiware updates,
licenses and installation of new software as needed.

Tier 3 First Level Telephone System Support:

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will provide for the use of a server and access to Call
Manager capacity and the 12 month use for the server (including rack space, power,
maintenance, and SmartNet subscription); System administration to manage the
move/add/change process; and help desk and software troubleshooting. The response
time for help desk is 24 hours and the response time for move/add/change requests is 1 to
3 business days. Special Projects, Higher Level Instailation of New Equipment or
Services (i.e. Server Level Installations and other projects that cannot be handled by
GHAPS normal level IT Technician), or any other activity not considered “routine
maintenance™ shall be billed on an hourly rate of $80.00. GHAPS will provide an
estimate of hours for project work prior to starting the work.



38

Local and Long Distance Telephone Service:

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will provide for the use of multiple telephone lines to
support simultaneous inbound and outbound telephone calls. This includes both local and
long distance calling.

Telephone DID (Direct Inward Dialing) Provisioning:
Grand Haven Area Public Schoois will provide for the use of a multiple sequenced DID

numbers, which allow direct dialing of Library phones rather than requiring additional
extensions. The provided numbers are in the 850-6900 block of GHAPS-owned DIDs.

Hosted Virtualized Servers:

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will provide for the use of a VMware Host cluster
(including rack space, power, storage, maintenance, and VMware software); and system
administration to manage (4) Virtual Machines configured as Windows Servers,

Hosted Security Cameras:
Grand Haven Are Public Schools will provide for the use of a cluster of servers for
security cameras (including rack space, power, storage, maintenance, and Avigilon

software); and system administration to manage (36) security cameras. The server cluster
will store at least (30) days of motion detected security camera footage.

LEVEL 2 SERVICES (as defined in the Agreement)

Emergency Support
System Engineering
Strategic Planning

Grand Haven Area Public Schools will provide the Basic Services and Level 2 Services under
the Agreement as follows:

Basic Services (as defined in the Agreement):

Level 1 Help Desk Support:

Hours: 40 hours per
week/Monday-Friday

8:00 a.m. 1o 4:30 p.m.

Level 1 Workstation Level Support (onsite):

8



Hours: Minimum of 8 hours
per week in two (2)
four (4) hour blocks of
time

Oftsite Backup: 2.5TB

Total Support Cost

$49,523.71 in 2023

Level 2 Services (as defined in the Agreement)

Rate:

$80 per hour

Hours:

TBD

39



% DYKSTRA | Proposal #716

2023 Landscape Services Monthly Installment

Date 6/212023

Customer John Martin | Loutit Library | 407 Columbus Ave. | Grand Haven, Ml 49417
Property  Loutit Library | 407 Columbus Avenue | Grand Haven, Ml 49417

PO#

TER-M OF AGREEMENT: The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2023 and
shall continue until June 30, 2026 unless socner terminated by either party with 90 days written
notice.

There will be a 3% increase for each year of the contract.

Fixed Payment Services

Description Frequency Cost per Occ. Annual Cost
[Winter: Retainer
“Soasonal Plowing T T T Twiamead | §130824
‘Seasonal Bulk Salt P11 $2,354.52 $2,364.52;
'Seasonal Shovierling ) i 1 : $5,0'5?.37? $5,057.372
Green Season: Weekly Maintenance
Sprmg Cioen up R R v
Fall Cleanup _ 11 $1661.75 $1,661.75
| Summer Weekly Service - 25 ' $54.45  $1,361.25
|Green Season: Fertilization - |
‘Round One - - 1 T $11ee. $111.66)
‘Round Two 1 $111.86;  $111.66
'Round Three 1 $111.66,  $111.66
‘Round Four 1 $111.660 $111.66!
Green Season: Bed Maintenance
Pruning 2 $736.97°  $1,473.94
:Shrub Bed Weed Control _ I A $239.10° $1,195.50
‘Mulch Install ' ' 0 1 1 8920410 $929.10
Green Season: Irrigation |
Irigation System StartUp ' 1T 318000 $180.00°
Irrigation System Winterization o ' _ R $;I80.90; o $18000
Annual Maintenance Price $17,012.64

Dykstra Landscape Management | PO Box 857 | Grand Haven, Ml 49417 Page | 1



41

2023 Landscape Services Monthly Installment at Loutit 8/2/2023
Library

Services

Seasonal Plowing

Seasonal snow plowing of all assessable areas after 1". Within reasonable timing of snowfall.

Seasonal Bulk Salt

Seasonal bulk rock salt application.

Seasonal Shoveling

Spring Clean up

Clean up all debris and repair snow damage, remove anything left from fall, prepare Iandsdaping
for new season. This includes cutting all ornamental grasses throughout property.

Fall Cleanup

Removal of leaves from the planting beds and lawn areas including any branches, twigs, and
other debris. Will blow all walkways, driveways, and parking lot{s).

Summer Weekly Service

Includes weekly mowing, concrete blade edging, line timming, blowing and cleaning of all
debris. Clippings to be mulched.

Round Cne

Round Two

Round Three

Round Four

Pruning

Pruning and maintaining of all shrubs, grasses, perennials and evergreens smaller than 12 ft.
This will be done in a timely manner according to professional standards.

Shrub Bed Weed Control

Dykstra Landscape Management | PO Bax 857 | Grand Haven, M1 49417 Page | 3



2023 Landscape Services Monthly Installment at Loutit 6/2/2023
Library

Regular visits during May through September, includes using selective and non-selective
spray, including handpicking and removal of dead weeds.

Mulich Install

One-time per year prior to installation of bark mulch all beds will be redefined and

edged. Approximately 1 inch of coverage of premium hardwood bark mulch to be installed April
or May. Once bark mulch is installed an application of granular pre-emergent will be applied.
Cost is $78.00 per yard installed.

Irrigation System Start Up

Start up irrigation, program clock and inspect system for proper operation.
Additional service(s) to be billed time and material @ $78 per man hour plus
material.

**Repairs over $250 must be authorized by customer prior to completion.

Irrigation System Winterization

Winterization of sprinkler system.

Dykstra Landscape Management | PO Box 857 | Grand Haven, M| 49417 Page | 4

42



2023 Landscape Services Monthly Installment at Loutit 6/2/2023
Library

Terms & Conditions

This writien agresment contains all cenditions and describes all work to be done. This agreement supersedes all previous
agreements and any verbal commitments made prier to date of this agreement.

Contract will be billed in equal payments. White Season billing will go out as needed uniil retainer has been used, per occurrence
pricing will then be billed with Net 10 payment terms.

Late Fees: A service charge of ane and one-half percent (1.5%) per month shall automatically accrue to all payments received flve
(5) days after the due date thereof.

Contractor carries Worker's Compensation and full liability insuranca. Contractor is licensed by the State of Michigan to apply
fertilizer and pesticides.

Contractor price adjustment: The contract price is calculated based on current markst prices and due fo the nature of the market
with sudden Inflation cost increasing more fraquently we cannct guarantee pricing year to year, Contractor agrees to use their best
efforts to obtain the lowest prices and maintain pricing when possibly based on current global inflation rate. This will be looked at
yearly, reviswed and recalculated prior to your annual renewal date to determine if an increase and or decrease is needed to cover
current market pricing.

“Per accurrence” rate is for snow accumulations up to 6" (approximatsly). Accumulations greater than approximately 8" may result in
additional charges to compensate for additional fime required to adequately clear snow from lot. Customer understands that the
trucks may have to go thru lot once to clear heavy snow and then re plow lot to clear remaining snow. Customer agrees to pay such
additional charges.

A “full plow” is described as all units and roadways as described. A partial plow is described as less than quoted work. All plowings
shall be considered "full plows” unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties hersto, prior te plowing being dene, Partial plows may
be charged at a prorated lower amount than quoted-depending upon amount of work required. Quoted rate is for snow plowing of
parking areas (or driveways) only. Unless specifically stated, sidewalk snow removal is not part of the quoted rate. Quoted rate does
not include salt spreading services or front end loader services untess specifically stated, however these services are available at an
additional charge.

Quoted rate is for plowing that is done as part of regular service when all other accounts are being checked or plowed. Special
request plowing (for examplie-a phone request to plow driveway or lot at mid-afternoon) is subject to a minimum charge. This is due
to the fact that our drivers gel paid a ane-hour minimum when called out for “special plowings”. The Customer shall be advised of
the minimum charge at time of “special request” and the customer agrees to pay the quoted rate.

Contracter will not be held responsible for damage to landscape or irrigation system if customer requests snow to be piled or pushed
off of paved surfaces.

Contractor will exercise Its best judgment based upon weather forecasts and existing conditions at the time. Customer is aware that
weather conditions in the West Michigan area may change rapidly and without notice. Changes in weathar are to be considered an
“Act of God™ contractor assumes ho liability for Acts of God. Reports of damages for which it believes the contractor or its agents are
responsible must be reported fo the coniractor within forty-eight {48) hours. Failure to report damages consiitutes a waiver and the
contractor is released from liability.

Customer agrees to allow contractor to decide if snowplowing Is warranted based upon snow accumulations at customers particular
iocation. Custoemer understands that snow accumulations may vary throughout the West Michigan area, and the accumuiations in
ane section are not necessarily indicative of the accumulations at the customers’ location. Customer also understands that drifting
snow may necessitate plowing of their particular location, regardless of the total snowfall at the location. in any event customer
agrees to allow contracior the sale discretion to decide if plowing is necessary.

Accounts that are past due will not be plowed until account is brought up-to-date. Customer understands and accepts the fact that
delays in paymants made fo Dykstra Landscape Management, Inc. may result in appropriate legal action, including, without
limitaticn, lawyers' fees, including all cests and expenses of filing suit or attempting to recover the unpaid amounts, which may be
passed on to the customer. The customer agreed to be bound by this condition. Contract shall be binding inure to the benefit of the
parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns.

Customer understands that plowing (or salting) of a parficular location may not clean the area to “bare pavement” and that slippary
conditions may continue to prevail even after plowing (or application of salt). Customer understands that Dykstra Landscape
Management, Inc. assumes no liability for this naturaily occurring condition. Customer agrees to defend and hold harmless the
contractor for any and all trespasses or suits that may arise as a result of this naturally occurring condition, or from the removal of
the snow.

If sidewalk snow removal is selected as an option: Customer understands sidewalk crews may not work safely if temperature and
wind conditions combine to make Wind Chill factors below 0 degrees Fahrenheit. Customer agrees and undsrstands that Dykstra
Landscape Management, Inc. reserves the righi to stop working in these severe conditions {without penalty) so as not to force these
work canditions upon our employees.

Dykstra Landscape Management | PO Box 857 | Grand Haven, MI 49417 Page | 5

43



2023 Landscape Services Monthly Instaliment at Loutit 62/2023
Library

Payment Schedule

Schedule Price Sales Tax Total Price
July $1,417.72 $0.00 $1,417.72
August $1,417.72 $0.00 $1417.72
September $1,417.72 $0.00 $1.417.72
October $1,417.72 $0.00 $1,417.72
November $1,417.72 $0.0C $1,417.72
December $1,417.72 $0.00 $1,417.72
January $1,417.72 $0.00 $1.417.72
February $1,417.72 $0.00 $1,417.72
March $1,417.72 $0.00 $1,417.72
Aprit $1,417.72 $0.00 $1,417.72
May $1,417.72 $0.00 $1,417.72
June $1,417.72 $0.00 $1.417.72

$17,012,64 $0.00 $17,012.64

By By

Michael Dykstra

Date 6/2/2023 Date

Dykstra Landscape Management Loutit Library

Dykstra Landscape Management | PO Box 857 | Grand Haven, M1 49417 Page | 2



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between
Ottawa Area Intermediate School District
And
Loutit District Library
For
Internet Bandwidth

THE PARTIES TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

o Ottawa Area Intermediate School District (OQAISD), 13565 Port
Sheldon, Holland, M| 49424

e Loutit District Library, 407 Columbus Ave., Grand Haven, MI 49417

TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Memorandum of Understanding will be valid, from July 1, 2023 through
June 30, 2024.

PURPOSE and TERMS

Purpose

The purpose of this agreement is for Loutit Library to acquire Internet bandwidth
via Ottawa Area ISD as a member of FOG-Net. OAISD purchases Internet
bandwidth from various ISP’s in bulk and Loutit Library has expressed an interest
in compensating OAISD for access to its Internet bandwidth so as to take
advantage of volume pricing rates.

Terms

o OQAISD will provision 30 Mbps of Internet bandwidth for Loutit Library’s
use. The bandwidth will be delivered via FOG-Net.

o Louitit Library will compensate OAISD at current rates. 2022/2023 rate
was $5.49 per Mbps per month.

« QAISD will monitor the connection between OAISD and Loutit Library and
will make best efforts to provide high available access to the Internet
bandwidth.

¢ Each party indemnifies the other party for any loss real or otherwise due
to a disruption of the services described herein.

» OAISD will invoice Loutit Library on a quarterly basis and Loutit Library
will pay said invoices in a timely manner.

IV. TERMINATION OF THE MOU

All parties will work to identify and resolve issues that are negatively affecting the
parties’ ability to meet any or all financial, procedural, or other objectives. If
either party determines that a problem cannot be adequately resolved or believes

45



46

that continued participation in the Partnership will negatively affect the initiative,
either party can terminate the MOU with 30 days written notice.

V. NOTICES

All notices concerning the MOU will be presented in writing by either party to the
other at the addresses as follows:

Michael Rohwer Ellen Peters

Ottawa Area |SD Loutit District Library
13565 Port Sheldon 407 Columbus Ave.
Holland, M| 49424 Grand Haven, M| 49417

VI. CHOICE OF LAW

This MOU shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of
Michigan.

Vil. EXTENSION AND MODIFICATION OF THE MOU

This MOU is a complete representation of the responsibilities of the parties to this
agreement.” Modification or extension of the terms of this agreement may be
made only in writing and only if signed by both parties.

VIl. Signatures
Ottawa Area ISD

Michael Rohwer
Asst. Superintendent, ITIS

Date:

Loutit District Library
Executive Director

Signature

Printed name

Date:




47

848°6L EL°0OTL8T PGS 0TO’L LZ 6BT VL 00°000E6 ¥d ¥oId 00" LTL-06L-TLE
§S LS 8T FP9 ‘9 00°0%9 ZB°S00‘s 00°089°GT ¥d LGP SHERW 20 9TL-06L-TLEZ
TE EED (g2°999"9) 0E"9TR'T 9279998 00°000°2 ¥l 0d ¥I0F SHEAW TO"9TL-06L-TLZ
€6 7L F6 966 9€ 6T°GLL'8 90°€0F ‘60T 00°000°9¥%T ¥d NOISNEd €d SYdEW 00 9TL-06L-TLZ
S0 80T (00°69T) 00°0 00°692°C 00°00T‘2 ¥H HONYHNSNI dWOD SHIANEOM 00 " FPTL-06L-TLZ
v S8 8F " BLE €6 ETE zs'1ze‘e 007009 ‘€ ¥ AONVHASNI ALITIEYSIQ ONV FAIT 00 ETL-06L-TLZ
LT LS8 0€£°096°T PZ 8F6 0L 709701 00°69T°2ZT g3 FONVEASMI TYINEd 00 2TL-06L-TLZ
00°00T (LO"LTI8E) £Z°69L L0 LTRITE 0070 ¥3 XYLEYd YSH €0 TTIL-06L-TLE
66°29 6T #9L 9% TFT T8°00€°T 00°590°2 g3 FONYEOSMI NMOISIA TO TTL-06L-TLE
LO"6L 68°898°¢€¢ TGTEE0’L IT°TGAL'0& 00°090'FTT ¥E FONVINSNI HITYIH 00 TTL-06L-TLE
00°00T (00-zoL) 00°0 00°z0L 00°0 HINYISISSY HAAOTAWE 00°60L-06L-TLEZ
00°00T (09" ¥8E) 26 9L 09°p8E 000 INO ILd0 FONYENSNI HITYEH 00°80L-06L-TLE
8G°ZZT’'T (20" PLI'EG) 02°606 Z0 FLE'8C 00°00Z°‘Ss Av¥d ¥DIS 00" LOL-06L-TLZ
00°00T (68" TEZ'ST) T0°v0F‘E 6B TET'S 00°0 A¥d NOILYOYA 00°90L-06L-TLEZ
00°0 00°00S 000 0o°0 007008 HATILEIAO 00" P0L-06L-TLZ
LL"Z8 ZT 9F6'ZL £0° gL 0. §L°8LF'0GE 00°SZh’E€CF SHOYM HWIL I¥v¥d 00 E0L-06L-TLZ
96" 8L 6E£°925°FP9T €L°796'8S e ELE LTS 00°006‘T8L SHOYM HWIL TI0d 00" Z0L-06L-TLZ
AIVdEIT LILOOT - 06L 3dad
saxnaitpuadxyg
8T°06 LG G0L"89T BE 8GR ET EF FEQ L9V T 00°0FE‘9EL’E SHNNIATY TYLOL
BT1°06 LG°50L"89C 8E€°BGFET EFFEQ LIV ’T 00°0FE‘9EL'E SINOCDDY ANNIATT 0F0 3dsg Te30L
ST LT 00°G60°TL 0075068 00°5S06°8 00700008 aNQd FONYNEINIYW NI SHIASNYYL 6T°669-0F0-TLE
00°0 00°06F ‘2L 00°0 00°0 00°06F‘CL $000dd QY SNIFdOY LIWHOD Qd¥0d NI SNVML 90°669-0F0-TLZ
00°00T (z1°62) £6°E ZT1 62 o000 LYOHS % YIAD HSVD 00" 689-0F0-TLE
00°00T (GL"BET) GL"BET GLTBET 0070 FUYMNOISIANT SNOILYNOQ 90" ¥L9-0FO0-TLE
00°00T (eL°82) ZERL gLge 00°0 SONZETEd 05 dEMO S0 PL9-0FO-TLE
00°00T (0T FEFR) 0z Z9 0T WEPR 00°0 SNOILVYNOQ JINSISSYNO PO ¥L9-0F0-TLZ
00°00T (0T°88L°T) 000 0T 88L°T 00°0 SNOTLYNOd JANDISSY €0 PL9-0FO0-TLE
00°00T (00-ocLL) 0070 00" 0LL 000 SNOILYNOd dENODISSYNN - SANIIYA 20°PL9-0F0-TLE
00°00T (z1"8E) 0070 Z1°8¢ 00°0 SNOIIYNOd dENDISSY - SANIIHA TO #L9-0%0-TLZ
9T1°'6Z P2 LEG'RE 00°0 9L°290°0T 00°000°0F Adv¥ddIT 0L SNOILYNOQ 00°97L9-0F0-TLZ
00°0 007061 00°0 00°0 00°06T SLESSY 40 FIVS T0"EL9-0V0-TLZ
00°00T (£2°682) £Z2°68¢ EZ 68T 00°0 SANEAIATIA 00°999-0%0-TLZ
LG ZLY (z9-8z9'8¢%) 00°0 z9°8zo‘ce 00°000°S HWOONI LSHIHINI 00°699-0%0~-TLZ
0P 10T (8L°69) 6L°90F 8L 690°S 00°000‘S STYIYALYN XdYdIgIT - SHILTYNAL % SHNIA 00°6S9-0F0-TLZ
0070 00°000°2TT 00°0 00°0 00°000‘2TT SHENIA TYNIJ 00°8S9-0%0~TLT
ZF 90T (90°58¢€) 50°6SS 90°G8E ‘9 0070009 X¥d ¥ ONIINIMd 00 SF9-0%0-TLE
v 0ET (9" 16€) BE 2L 92°T69 00°00¢€ OSIW % SINIWISYAEWINY ‘SANOJAEYT 00 629-0%0-TLE
L8°9FT (00"1€0"L) 00°000°€ 00°"TE0'ZE 00°000°GT SLNYY9D T¥20T 00°686-0%0-TLZ
LG TS 98°86Z°'6 00°0 FT 1066 00°00Z'61 HOIAYES 400D AYVMAIT - QI¥ HLVLS 10 ¥#FS-0P0-T1LE
L5 TG 98 86Z'6 00°0 P11 T06°6 00°00Z°6T AMYMEIT - JIV HIYLIS 00" ¥#5-070-TLE
89°Z8 ETHBET 00°0 £8°928 00"000°T SHXYIL NO LSEYEINI % ALTVNEd 00" SPF-0F0-TLE
EETLL 60°8FL 00°0 16°166°2 0D 00E’E XYL AIITIOVA TVIMISONANI - IJI 00" LEF-0%0-TLZ
L6 LE FT 0TE 000 98°68T 007008 XYL AIMAJIOENd TYNOSYAd ININONITIEA 00 2TF-0%0-TLE
66766 6T FOF‘C gL I8°66G°LS 00700009 LNAAFISHNGWIEY FALYLS VI do¥d TYNOSHEd €0 E0P-0%0-TLE
9Z°00T (B9 EZ9'T) 00°0 89°EZ6'LTY 00°00E‘9T9 ALID NIAYH ANVES - XYL AIMEJOEd LNEE¥END 90 Z0F-070-TLE
£G°66 EE"TB6 000 L9°BIE'90CZ 00°00€E°LOT OMNESAYEHEd —- X¥I ALYEJ0™d LNEHEHE0D S0 Z0F-0F0-TLE
7986 19°829°¢€ 00°0 BE TLL"E9T 00°00F‘99¢C NOQTEHS IMO0d - X¥I AIMEJONd LNEMEND 70" 20F-0F0-TLCT
96766 SE°90T 00°0 G9°E60'882 00°00Z'882 dMI NOSNIFOY - XVI ALYAd0dd LINIHEAD 20" Z0FP-0%0-TLE
SZ 00T (gL oLz'2) 000 ZLDLE " TIEs 00°000‘6T6 dMI NIAVH ANYED - X¥I AI¥EJIOEd INIVEAD T0°Z0FP-0%0-TLE
SINQCDOY IONIATI - 0F0 3dad
sanusaay
aNQd TYIENED AYYIEIT - TLZ Pund
agsn (TYWEONEY) TYREON (FSYIEDEQ) HSYAYONI (TYWEONEY) TYHION LA9ANE QHANHNY NOILdI¥ISHEd HEEWAN 19
19ad % HONYIVE €20Z/TE/SO HLNOW €c0e/Te/50 £g-220¢

HTHYTIVAY

9/1 :abeg

404 ALIAILOY

HONVTIVE dIA

AYYELIT LOIYLSId LILNOT ¥d0d LYOdHY HYNLIANHdXH dNY HONIAFAD

€20Z/T€/50 DNIANIE dOI¥Id

ArxeaqrT 3TaneT :dd
sussiba :1a9sQ

Wd L0:20 EZOZ/TE/SO



48

ZE" BT GB8 E0B‘GZ LLDLE"T ST"96T°0T 00°000‘9€E SIOVMINOD HOIAYES SANNOYED ¥ HNIATING €0°608-06L-TLZ
6V 0L TZ2°06S 00°0 6L°60F'T 0070002 SHITAANS 3 INAWIINDHE SANNOYED 3 ONIATING 20°608-06L-TLC
0% 69 09°8S6°L G9E68 0% 150‘8T 00°0T0‘9E HONYNIZINIVA SANQOYD ¥ 9NIATING T0°G08-06L-TLZ
9G°299 (€g"LZT1'82) 00°0 S8 ULATT e 00°000°S SANNO¥D 3 SNIATING 00°S08-06L-TLZ
19 %L 9% 6B8Z'GT 00°T88'F PG FI6 ‘P 00700209 SHITAANS 3 HDIAYES T¥IAOLSAD 00°P08-06L-TLZ
TO"62T“Z (LL"809'L) 00°0 LLTEBE“L 00°SLE SHSNAdXH QHALIYTIHEE INIWAOTAWE 00 €08-06L-TLC
6L°TOE (ET°8T6°8T) 8G EZT '8 ET"EBZ “82 00°GLE'6 SIOVYINOD FDIAYES - LNOD/J0¥d E0"T08-06L-TLE
G5 EOT (6E°9L6T) 867906 ‘SE 6E°0L6 TS 00°000°0S I140d4dNS ® FOIA¥ES II - INOD/J0¥d Z20°T08-06L-TLT
00 zZL PETLLT'S 00°0 89 E2g0"1Z 0000262 JO0D AMVMHEIT QNYTIEMYT - INOD/J0¥d T0°T08-06L-TLZ
ELTELL'T (ZE"BFT'SE) (69 1ST'Z€) ZE"BFZ'LE 0070012 TYALOYYINOD /TYNOISSHEIONd 00 T0B=-06L-TLZ
F8°FS 00°62T°T (00"66F°T) 00F TLEYT 0070062 HONYNIINIVA 3 EDIAYHES A9OTONHDAL TE TSL-06L-TLE
000 00°000°T 000 000 00" 000°T SNOENYTTIOSIN ADOTONHOEL 0E"TSL-06L-TLZ
LB EE 92 TEL'9T F1°895°8 FL B9G'8 00-00£‘Ge LNIRdINDHE ADOTONHOEL 02 TGL-06L-TLE
000 00°00€°T 000 00°0 00" 00£"T SNOILAINISENS ? TYMIAOS AUVIHIT 2T TISL-06L-TLZ
6S THT (6T 0L9’E) 99-gze’et ST G6F‘TT 00°5¢8‘8 SNOTILATMOSENS ¥ TUYMIIOS ONIIVYIIO TT IGL-06L-TLE
0070 007009 (00 96€) 000 00°009 TIYMIAOS ADOTONHDEL 0T TSL-06L-TLZ
LB TFT (66 525’L) £EET9FL 65°005°S¢e 00°SL6 LT SEITAINS 3 SLSOD ‘SIVIYEIVW HNILVYIIO 00 0SL-06L-TLE
£€2°68 EL°669 6G°0LT LE 008°C 0070059 SEITIANS ¥ HONYMHLNIVYW NOILOETICD 00 6FL-06L-TLZ
0070 00°006°T 0070 000 0070081 INIWAYYOOEd ADOTYENID 0G 8FL-06L-TLE
00°00T (ge-Lgo’‘g) 9T LEG'T BE"LBO'E 0070 ONIHAYEOCYd 9NICYEY YEWWAS 07" 8FL-06L-TLT
8z ¢k 9z 180’8 19°9L6 FL*BTIE'S 00°000"FT ONIWATIO0Yd FAIM-XUVMEIT 0€°8FL-06L-TLZ
6% T9 L9°626°T LZ EOL EENFLO‘E 00°000‘S ONIWNTEO0Ed HINOX 02 8FL-06L-TLZ
ZE' 60T (8L°G9%) F6°GBL BL GBF 'S 00°000°G INIWNYEO0dd LTNd¥ 0T " 8FL-06L-TLZ
00°0ZT (00°0T) 0070 0009 00°06 1¥80dEY S, YIHNSNOD €0 9FL-06L-TLE
21" 19 LLT09E'T 00°0 EZ'6ET'T 00°00G‘€E HOIAYHS HENIZYOYH Z0 9FL-06L-TLT
08°GST (L0"9v9'T) 00°6F€E L0 966 0070662 STYNYNOL TYIONYNIA ‘SYEIVISMAN T09FPL-06L-TLE
8679 G0 T0T'2Z 0E"0FF G6°868°¢E 00°000‘9 (YIQEW ONIWYINIS) SOTIAIA AJONVH SO0'SPL-06L-TLZ
9E"ZRT (Lz-zLv'8) €Z°0LZ'E LZELR B 00°000°02 0FQIA ‘DISOW ‘SM0O0H0IAAVH ‘SM00dd ¥IJOCH PO GhL-06L-TLZ
8G 66 GEFT 00°0 S9°GER'E 00°0GF‘E SANTZYOVH FATIAIITAO €0°GPL-06L-TLZ
00°SL 00°000'6 00°000°€E 00°000°LE 00°000 ‘%€ (SNOWIYd TdT ¥0d) HOVLNYAAY FATHAYIAO Z0°GPL-06L-TLE
66766 TLYT 0070 vl B Sl A 00" 008‘LE SY0090TANY ¥ SMOO0"d HATHAHIAO T0"SPL-06L-TLZ
007 00T (0F - 297 '9) 0070 0F"29F ‘2 00°0 STYIYALYW OTMOYMLOETE 00" GFL-06L-TLZ
00°0 go-ooL’z 0070 000 00°00L‘2 SEATEHES AL FEPFL-06L-TLZ
000 00°00S8°T 00°0 00°0 00°00S°T SHIIA S,NIFEQTIHD CEPFL-06L-TLT
000 00°00E‘E 00°0 00°0 00°00E‘E SWIId A¥YINZWNI0A ZEVPL-06L-TLE
00°0 00-000°S 0070 000 00°000°S SWIId TENIVHI TE PFL-06L-TLE
007 00T (ZF GST'0T) LB ZST'L TV GST0T 000 SOEAIA 0E " ¥FL-06L-TLT
Z0°§ GLTBET'T 00°0 5Z2°09 00°002‘T DISON 02 PFL-06L-TLE
82 %S €1°008 00°0 L8 6F6 00°06L'T $¥0040IANY HINOX ZT ¥FL-06L-TLZ
8288 €T F80°T Sv 926 L8°691’8 00°058Z2°6 $¥0040IANY ITINA¥ TT #FL-06L-TLE
00°00T (60°E0Z) 00°0 60°E0Z 00°0 SHMO0E0IaNY 0T " PPL-06L-TLE
00°00T (80" 0) (00°562"'9) 80°0 00°0 SHWYD OHAIA €0 PFL-06L-TLT
£6°€ PL OLE 00°0 9Z°6¢ 00°000°T NOILDITIOD TYNOTISSHIOUd £ EFL-06L-TLT
P98 09°EGT 0070 07 9%8 00°000°T HONFEHATT ADOTYENID TV EPL-06L-TLE
S0'6L LF 60T 00°0 £G°06L 00°000°T HONFYHATY TYHENED TV EvL-06L-TLE
00°00T (€2-98%) 0070 £z 98F 00°0 HONEYHEATY $M00d 0F"EFL-06L-TLE
L9 %8 96 6GL‘E 81" €96 PO 0FZ’ST 00°0008T HIOOA SMo0E 0E"E€FL-06L-TLE
19" %6 88°LLO'T G6°EGST’'T ET ZER“HT 0000002 NMOIIDIA NON LI0d¥ S$M00d 02 EFL-06L-TLT
92" 16 S 06F 2T L9°G9F ‘T 9v 600792 00°00682 NOTIDIA IT0d¥Y SM00d 0T €PL-06L-TLZ
0Z° €6 68°25€'T (GE"929) TT ZEG ‘BT 00°588°6T SHSYEVIYA DINCYLIETE 00" ZFL-06L-TLZ
£0° g LEZ GE9FT 00" 0 €L POE 00°000°ST ASNAAKT SINYYD SNOIIYNOd AUYHEIT 06 TPL-06L-TLT
00°00T (8L°0L9) 8L°0L9 8L°0L9 00°0 ASNIAXH SNOILYNOd dENOISSYNA SANTTIA PO TPL-06L-TLE
000 00°00G‘6E 0070 0070 D0 0066E ASNIIXT SNOIIVYNOUT TANDISSYNN E0°TPL-06L-TLE
00°00T (sg-g19'p) Gg IER‘E 5z°219°'y 000 HSNAdXE SNOII¥NOJ JINDISSY 20 THPL-06L-TLT
£0°8 F8°6SF 0070 9T " 0F 00°006 ASNIIXT SNOILYNCA QINDHISSY SANITHI TO"TPL-06L-TLE
00°00T (F0"63F'F) 000 70 69F ‘Y 0070 ISNEAXE SNOTIYNOd A¥vddIT 00" TPL-06L-TLEZ
sazniTpusadxyg
aNnd TYIENID A¥¥EEIT - TLZ PUund
agsn (TYWIONEY) TYHION (ASYIMDEQ) HASYAIONI (TYWIONEY) TYWION 139009 JEANIRY NOIIdI¥DSHEA HEGHON 19
9ad % HONYIVE €Z0C/TE/SO HLNOW £202/TE/SO €2-2202
ATEVTIIVAY ¥0d ALIAILDY HONVYIVE dLA

9/2 :8beg

AdvddIT LOIYLSIC LIINOT ¥0d

£202/TE/S0 ONIANE dOIddd

J¥0dEY HENLIANEdAXE ONY dANIAEY

AzexqrT 21TinoT :4d

auaaxbs :I19sn

Wd L0:Z0 EZOZ/TE/SO



29

LE'F (28°%29°091) (88°609°8LT) (8T-GEE'L) (00°0967L9T) SHANLIANIIXE 3 SENNIATT IO IEN
ZZ¢°G8 GE'DEE‘6REZF 9Z°8907Z6T 19°696°'PLV T 00°00€E'F06°E SHYNLIANIAXE TYIOL
81706 LG G0L 89T BE BGF'ET EP FEQ L9V ’E 00°0FE‘QEL’E SHONIATY TYLOL
1ANAd TRIENED XEVHEIT - TLZ Pund
2Z°68 6E°0EE‘6EP 9278907261 19°696'PLY'E 00°00€E'F06°E SHMALITANIIXE TYLOL
22768 GE"DEE‘6CH 92°890°Z61T T9°696°'VLF T 00°00E'F06E AMYYEIT IIL0NOT - 06L 3dsa Te3Ool
00°00T 00" 0 0070 DO"0ST’0EE 00°0ST0EE aNnd F0IA¥ES I99d 1IN0 SYFASNYYL G0"S66-06L-TLEZ
29 70T (0E"9T6°T) 00°0 0€°9Th‘EPR 00°00G‘T¥k AYYddIT ONVIHHIZ 100 SHHAASNYEL Z0°566-06L-TLE
LY 76 8L°089 0070 CETBLSTT 00°00E°ZT AYYEETT F¥VT ONIYNdS 100 SYAISNVML T0"G66-06L-TLZ
0GP Z9°6%S G8°6 8E 0GP 00°000°T I0O YHASNYEL SHNIJ 00°086-06L-1LZ
197092 16°996'6 8T°61€ 6Y " EEE’GT 00°00€‘gE LNIWAIN0E 3 FEAIING0I IO TL6-06L-TLZ
ET°TT 00°S60'TL 0070 00°G06‘8 00°000‘08 SINIWIAOEIWI TYLIAYD 00°TL6—06L-TLE
€E°TOT (00°6LT) 00°0 DO"GZEET 00°0GT‘€T FONYEASNI AIITIAVIT/ALEEIONd 00°G96-06L-TLZ
ZL ¢ 0L°GF6’T 0070 DE"BG 00" 0002 SINZWISNLAY XYI ALYITd0dd 00°096-06L-TLT
000 007052 00°0 00°0 00062 ROOTYANAD £0°8S6-06L-TLZ
SF 82 00 EGL'T 00°0LT 00°L69 00°0SF‘Z SAIHSYIGHIN TYI0T Z20°8G6-06L-TLZ
LS 0 LT 6EG'F £8°6 £8°6¢ 00°695'% SNOIIVZINYIYO TYNOISSEIOHd T0°8S6-06L-TLT
00°00T (66°0Z£’S) 00°0 66°0ZE’S 0070 SNOILAIMOSENS ‘SHENd ‘SITHSUIIWIN 00°8S6-06L-TLZ
8g°¢zZ¢ 91" €088 007062 P8 96T F 00°000ET INAHdOTHAEG TYNOISSHAOHUA 00°LS6-06L-TLZ
9L"L98 (08-8e8’¢) ST '66E 08°BEE'F 00°00S SNOENYTITIDSIN 00°966-06L-TLT
09° % FT LZE'ES (9L°T8Z'1E) 9B°ZLS T 00700665 HONYNIINIYH LNENdINDH 00" 0E£6-06L-TLZ
B GS P8 EGL’E LY 0SE'F 9T 9FL'F 00°005°8 HOYLSCd 00" %26-06L-TLZ
8T 96 Fv 98¢ Tz 9ge 9G-E1Z’L 00°00S‘L MAMIS 3 YIIYM 00°ZZ6-06L-TLZ
76 8 06 FE9‘C 90" ZZF 0T°698°FT 00"00S“LT SY9 TYEAIYN 00°TZ6-06L-TLZ
59°¢€8 F8-092°21 LP 6€C'9 ST 6EL'TY 00" 000‘GL ALIDIEIDATH 00°026-06L-TLZ
PET R 89°%6£’S 66°880°¢C ZETOLE'F 00"CSZL’'6 SNOILOWOYd ? ONILEMYYW ‘ONIINIYd 00°006-06L-TLT
0€°FE Z0"6T9°€ EEPTIF 86°088°T 00°00G°S ONISDQOT ¥ NOILYIMOdSNWIL 00°098-06L-TLT
LG 98L (£6°TTI9°6) £9°625'6 €65 ETa8" TT 00"00% ‘T LANIAINI 00°258-06L-TLE
0070 0070 (18°059 1) 000 00" 0 INTNASINGWNIFTE EINOH TTHAD T0 0S8-06L-TLE
ZEE1E (28°655°2) 6L°0G6°T 78 6GLE 00°002°T ANOHAETHL 00°068-06L-TLE
627211 (9g°L0E) 00°0 9€°L08'2 00°005°‘¢ SHDIAYES HSYHL 00 0T8-06L-TLZ
ST LIE (00" EFPE'TT) 00 €ZF 00 EPF'LT 00°006°Sg SEAd TYOIT 00°808-06L-TLE
08°60T (oo"szL) 00°0 00°621’8 007000 L OMILNAODOY % SNILIAAY 00" L0B-06L-TLZ
G9°E9 T8°L1B 06°8 6T ZER'T 00°052°2 SHEA Q¥V¥D IIQTED ANV MNVYd 00°908-06L-TLE
soanaTpuadxy
aNQd TYIENED AdYdEIT - T[LZ pung
adsn (TYINMIONTGY) TYWEON (ISYAEDHAA) HASYHUONT (TYIIONEY) TYHION 1¥9ang JEANIRY NOILdIHISEA dEGWAN 19
19ad % FINYIVE £202/TE/S0 HINOW £20Z/TE/S0 £E-2202
ATAYTIVAY ¥0d ALIAIIOVY FONYTIVE dIX

g/¢ :abeg

AdYddIT IDI¥LSIA IILNOT ¥04d I¥0ddY HdNLIANEdXH ANV HONIATI

€Z0Z/TE/S0 DNIANE JdOIY¥Ed

AzeagTT 2TINOT 4d

ausaaxba :a1esn

Wd L0:¢0 €208/1E/G0



30

I6°L (P2 167 'G8T) (E0"PTIS‘LBT) (9L ES0'ST) (00"Ss%S‘002) SHANLIONAEIXE 3 SHOANIATY J0 LEN

LE"G8 6E€°GLY 008G 92 €L6°002C 19°%29/990¢€ 00"00T“L9S°E SANOd TTIY - SHINLIONEdXE TY¥IOL

7906 ST ¥86°F1E EZ 6SP'ET G8°0LS‘TS0’E 00°6685‘99¢€’¢€ SANNAd TTY - SEANIATY TYIOL

£0°SL (687687 'LT) (00" 606 °8) (TT-095‘2S) (00"0s0‘0L) SHYALIANAIXE 3 SHONIATY J0 LEN

2T 11 00°GFT’'TL 00°506°8 00°G06‘8 00°0G0‘08 SEMALIONEAYT TYIOI

GG 9t TT°GG9€S 00°0 (TT°569°¢€r) 00°000°0T SHAANIAZY TYLOL

THONYNALNIVA dNOA I0H00¥d TYLILYD - T0%F pund

2T 1T 00°"GFT'TL 00°G06°8 00°5068 00°050°08 SEUALIONEAXE TYIOT

BTNLE 00°"GRPT'TL 00°506'8 00°G068 0005008 AONYNAINIVH - A¥IIN0 TYLIIAYD - T06 3dag Te3ol

ET T 00°G60'TL 00°G06'8 00°G06°8 00°000°08 aNAd TYIENTD L0 SUTASNVEL 00°G66-T06-T0F

00°0 00068 00°0 0070 00708 SEEA g¥¥D LIOEMD ONY MNYd 00°908-T06-T0F

HONYNIINIYW - A¥IIN0 T¥IIdYD - 106 3deg

sainjtpuadxy

(GG 9¢€¥!) TT°G59°¢€S 0070 (TT°669'¢€w) 00700001 SHONIATY TYIOL

(65°9¢€7) TT'G59 ‘€S 00°0 (TT°689°¢€¥w) 00°000°0T SINAODOY INNIARY - 0%0 23deg 1E30L

00°00T TL°91T 0070 (TL"9TT) 0070 SINZWLSIANI SSOT/NIVS UHZITVEH 00°6L9-070-T0F

00°00T LZ 191’59 0070 (LE2°"T19T°69) 000 SINIWNISTIANI SSOT/NIYD AQIZITVIINA 00°699-0F0-T0F

€Z°912 (L8 229’11 0070 LB Zea ‘12 00°000°0T HAOONI LSHIEINI 00°699-0F0-TOF

SLNNODDOY ANNFATY - 0F0 3d=2a

sanuaAsy

TONYNIAINIVH aNOJ LDI0OWd T¥LIAYD - T0F pund

agsn (TYWIONEY) TYWION (IS¥YTUDEA) FSYTUONI (TYHEONEY) TYHREION 139008 QHANIWY NOILdI¥ISHET YHERAN T9
19ag % HONYTYH €202/TE/50 HLNOW £Z02/1£/60 £z-220e

ATIYTIVAY ¥0d ALIAIIDY AONVIVE dLA

3/9 :obeg

€202/TE/G0 DNIONIT dOI¥Ed

AdYddIT IO0IELSIA IILN0T ¥0d Ld0d3d FdNLIANIdXE ANV HNNIATY

AxexqrT 3TIncT :9d
suasxba :assn

Wd L0:20 €20C/TE/S0



91

89°6TT (80" ¥LE'L) S8°0 B0 6E8'FD 00°G9F'LE SHANLIANIdXE ¥ SHONIATY A0 IIAN
00" 00T 00°0 0070 00°009‘egse 00009252 SEMAIIONIIXT TYIOL
PG 20T (80°FLE'L) 58°0 80 6EF'LEE 00°S90‘06¢ SHANIARY TYIOL
PAMVEEIT (SANOE QII0A) ¥ FDIAWES IdEd - TLE pung
00°00T 0070 00°0 00°009°262 00°009‘25¢2 SHYALIONIAXT TYIOL
007001 00°0 000 007009 ‘252 0070097252 LE3d - 906 3dag Te30g
00°00T 0070 00" 0 00°009ZE 00°009°Z€E LSTYTINI ONOE 00 €66-906-TLE
00°00T 00°0 000 00°000‘022 00°000‘022 TYdIINIYd aNOod 00°T66-906-TLE
rg"ga - 906 3dsg
saanaTpuadxy
7S 20T (80 wLE"L) 58°0 80°6EF'L6C 00°690'06¢ SEOANIATY TYIOL
FS20T (80 ¥LE"L) S8°0 80°6EV“L6T 00°620°062 SLNOODOY HAANIAZY — QF0 3dsa Tel0L
TG TRT'E (16 TRO'E) 00°0 TG TFT’E 00°00T HHOONT ISHMEINT 00°699-0F0-TLE
00°00T (FPEFT) 00°0 PETBT 0070 SAXYL NO LSTMEINI 3 ALTYNAJ 00" GPF=-0F0-TLE
66°0L F0°9TT 0070 96 £8Z 00°00F XYL ALITIOWI TYIMISNANI - I4T 00°LEFP-0F0-TLE
£9°811 (€9°BT) 0070 £9°817T 00001 XYL AL¥HdOWd TYNOSHEd LNANONITHC 00" ZTP-0F0-TLE
GG9ZT (8T LPF'T) S8 0 9T L6879 D0°0SF‘S INIHISYAIHNITEY IIVIS XYL d0odd TYNOSHII €0 E0FP-0FD-TLE
68766 0£°26 0070 0L"LGL'08 0006808 ALID NIAYH ONVYD - XV¥IL ALMEA0¥d INTHEND 90" 20F-0F0-TLE
98" 86 €£°98¢ 00" 0 L9°E€T18°'FT 0000152 OdNESAYIHAd — XYL ALYEd0¥d LNIHEND G0 Z0P-0P0-TLE
0T"0TT (zL B8vz'c) 000 ZLTETR'SE 00°69T‘ZE NOQTIHS IMOd - XYL ALNIJIOWd INFEMAD PO Z0F-0F0-TLE
£6°66 LT ET 0070 ERTGLLYYE 00°008'FE dML NOSNIHOY - XYL ALYEd0¥d LNIEHEND Z0°Z0P-0F0-TLE
TT°00T (967 12T) 0070 95 T  TIT 00" 00T‘TTT dMIL NIAVH ONVYD - X¥I AIMIJOMd INTIIND T0°Z0FP-0F0-TLE
SINOODDY HANIAEY - 0%0 3d=a
snuzsaay
AMYMEIT (SUNOY JHLOA) ¥ HDIAMES 1EHd - TLE pund
assn (TYIIONEY) TYRION (ASYEYDHEd) HSYHMONT (TYHEONEY) TYHON 1839008 AAANIRY NOILJIY¥ISHT HHENAN 19
1909 % AINYTIVE £EZ0Z/TE/S0 HINOW £202/T€/50 £2¢-220¢
FTIVTIYAY ¥0d AIIAILOY TONYIYE ALA

/%

:abeg

AGVIEIT LOIFLSIA LILNOT ¥Od IMOddd HdNLIANEdXA

€C¢0Z/TE/S0 DNIONE dOI¥Hd

AIeIQTT 3ITINOT :dd
aussxba :1x898n

ANV TANIATH Nd (0320 £20C/TE/SO



92

00°00T (6p-2) 00°0 SF-2Z 00°0 SHINLTANIIKE ¥ SHANTARY J0 IEN

007 00T 00" 0 Q0°0 00°0GT'0EE 00°0ST‘0EE SHINLIANEdXE TYLOL

00°00T (sv-2) 00°0 GF 2ZGT'0EE 00°0ST‘0€E SANNIATY TYLOL

AMYEEIT (SANOY QHLOA) d HOIAMAS IgHd - ZLE pung

00°00T 00°0 000 00" 0ST'DEE 00 0ST‘0EE SHINLTANAIXE TY.LOL

00°00T 00°0 000 00°0ST‘0€EE 00"0ST'0EE 1gEd - 906 3dsa TE3OL

00°00T 00°0 000 00°06T°GH 00"0GT’‘SH ISHUIALNT aNOd 00" €66-906-CLE

00"00T 00°0 000 00°000'G8Z 007000682 TYAIONTHd dANOY 00" T66-206-2LE

Ig9d - 906 2dag

saanitpuadxyg

00°00T (gp-2) 000 G¥ ZST/0EE D0 0ST‘DEE SHANIAHYE TVLOL

00°00T (5p-2) 0070 SF 28T 0EE 00°0ST‘0EE SINNODOY HNNHAATY - 0F0 3ded Te3ol

00°00T 00°0 go-"o 00°0GT'0EE 00" 0GT‘0EE aNOd TYIINED NI SHHIASNYYL T0"669-0F0-2LE

00" 00T (sv-2) 00°0 Sh-2Z 000 HWOONI LSHYELNI 00°G699-0F0-CLE

SINNODOY IANIATI - 0F0 3dsa

sanuzAaYg

AMYEEIT (SANOE QHLOA) € HDIA¥ES Id3d — gLE pung

azsn (TYAEONEY) TYWION (ASYEI0HEA) HSYIYONI (TYWEONEY) TYREON 135008 QIANIWY NOILdI¥DSHa HHIHON 19
19ad % HONY'IYd £20Z/TE/S0 HLINOW EZ0Z/TE/SO £g-2e0¢c

ATIYTIYAY ¥0d AIIAILOY HONYTIYE dLA

9/G tabeg

AdYddIT LOIYLSIA LILNOT ¥04 1d0ddd HINLIANIdXH ANV HONIAEL

£202/TE/GS0 ONIANE dOI¥dEd

AzeaqTT 3TINOT dEQ
sussIbs :Ixasn

Wd L0:20 €Z0ET/TE/S0



05/31/2023 02:07 PM
User: egreene
DB: Loutit Library

BALANCE SHEET FOR LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY Page:
Period Ending 05/31/2023

Fund 271 LIBRARY GENERAL FUND

GL Number Description Balance
kX Assets * k&
271-000-001.00 CASH - HUNTINGTON CHECKING 623,222.4¢6
271-000-002.00 CASH - LMCU MONEY MARKET 2,589.46
271-000-004.00 PETTY CASH 200.00
271-000-004.01 CASH IN DRAWER 174.55
271-000-017.00 CASH - MI CLASS GENERAL FUND 617,248.46
271-000-017.04 CASH - MI CLASS ROBBINS ROAD PROCE 30652783
271-000-017.50 CASH - GHACF NON-ENDOWMENT FUND 26,890.78
271-000-040.00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 109.78
271-000-123.00 PREPAID EXPENSES 11,510.52
Total Assets 1,588,873.91
*4x% Tiabilities ***
271-000-231.00 FICA EE AND ER 1711120
271-000-231.01 FEDERAL TAX EE 923.34
271-000-231.02 STATE TAX EE 52215
271-000-231.04 GENERAL PENSION EE 2,380.67
271-000-231.10 HEALTH INSURANCE EE (493.52)
271-000-231.11 DENTAL INSURANCE EE (47.16)
271-000-231.19 COLONIAL LIFE EE 16.54
271-000-257.00 ACCRUED WAGES PAYABLE 13,548.62
271-000-260.00 ACCRUED VACATION PAYABLE 2., 31 154
271-000-261.00 ACCRUED SICK LEAVE PAYABLE 2,052.60
271-000-262.03 MERS PENSION ER 10,318.4¢9
271-000-262.10 HEALTH PREMIUMS ER (4,365.70)
271-000-262.11 DENTAL PREMIUMS ER (707.64)
271-000-262.12 VISION PREMIUMS ER {55.91)
271-000-262.15 LIFE INSURANCE ER (8.07)
271-000-262 .17 LONG-TERM DISABILITY ER (6.23)
Total Liabilities 27,561.32
*** Fund Balance ***
271-000-390.00 FUND BALANCE 179307471 ;198
271-000-390.50 ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE (73,760.00)
271-000-392.00 RETAINED EARNINGS (7);296.759)
271-000-399.00 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS INVESTMENT (3,767.48)
Total Fund Balance 1,568,647.77
Beginning Fund Balance 0.00
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures (7,335.18)
Fund Balance Adjustments 1,568,647.77
Ending Fund Balance 1,561,312.59

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

1,588,873.

91



05/31/2023 02:07 PM BALANCE SHEET FOR LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY Page:

User: egreene Period Ending 05/31/2023
DB: Loutit Library

Fund 371 DEBT SERVICE A (VOTED BONDS) LIBRARY

GL Number Description Balance

*%* Assets * % %

371-000-001.01 CASH - DEBT A CHECKING ACCQUNT 51,639.99
371-000-017.02 CASH - MI CLASS DEBT A FUND 95,797.56
Total Assets 147,437.55

**% Liabilities ***

Total Liabilities 0.00

*#** Fund Balance ***

371-000-390.00 FUND BALANCE 7%,:659:17
371-000-392.00 RETAINED EARNINGS 22,939.30
Total Fund Balance 102,598.47
Beginning Fund Balance 0.00
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures 44,839.08
Fund Balance Adjustments 102,598.47
Ending Fund Balance 147,437.55

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 147,437.55



55

05/31/2023 02:07 PM BALAMCE SHEET FOR LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY Page:
User: egreene Pericd Ending 05/31/2023
DB: Loutit Library
Fund 372 DEBT SERVICE B (VOTED BONDS) LIBRARY
GL Number Description Balance
**% Dggetg *¥H
372-000-017.03 CASH - MI CLASS DEBT B FUND 81.41
Total Assets 81.41
#%% Liabilitles ***
Total Liabilities .00
*** Fund Balance ***
372-000-390.00 FUND BALANCE 78.89
372-000-392.00 RETAINED EARNINGS 0.07
Total Fund Balance 78.96
Beginning Fund Balance 0.00
Net of Revenues V& Expenditures 2,45
Fund Balance Adjustments 78,96
Ending Fund Balance 81,41

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

81,



05/31/2023 02:07 PM BALANCE SHEET FOR LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY

User: egreene Period Ending 05/31/2023
DB: Loutit Library

Fund 401 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND MAINTENANCE

Page:

56

GL Number Description Balance
XEF ASdely HH#
401-000-002.00 CASH - LMCU MONEY MARKET 518 .24
401-000-002.01 FIFTH THIRD MONEY MARKET 275,990.30
401-000-002.11 FIFTH THIRD SECURITIES 352,057.70
401-000-017.01 CASH - MI CLASS LIBRARY MAINTENANC 286,518.65
Total Assets 915,0B4.89
**% Tiabilities ***
Total Liabilities 0.00
*** Fund Balance ***
401-000-3%90.00 FUND BALANCE 1,020,428.89
401-000-3%92.00 RETAINED EARNINGS (52,783.89)}
Total Fund Balance 967,645.00
Beginning Fund Balance 0.00
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures (52,560.11)
Fund Balance Adjustments 967,645.00
Ending Fund Balance 915,084.89
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 915,084.89



o7

05/31/2023 02:08 PM CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY Page:
User: egreene
BHy Taieat TABEAEY FROM 05/01/2023 TO 05/31/2023
FUND: ALL FUNDS
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS
Beginning Ending

Fund Balance Total Total Balance
Account Description 05/01/2023 Debits Credits 05/31/2023
Fund 271 LIBRARY GENERAL FUND
001.00 CASH - HUNTINGTON CHECKING 750,978.92 106,3%90.51 234,146.97 623,222.46
002.00 CASH - LMCU MONEY MARKET 2,589.46 0.00 0.00 2,589.46
004.00 PETTY CASH 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00
004.01 CASH IN DRAWER 174.55 0.00 0.00 174.55
017.00 CASH - MI CLASS GENERAL FUND 617,241.33 7.98 0.85 617,248.46
017.04 CASH - MI CLASS ROBBINS ROAD 37%,017.83 0.00 72,490.00 306,527.83
617 .50 CASH - GHACF NON-ENDOWMENT FUND 26,890.78 0.00 0.00 26,890.78

LIBRARY GENERAL FUND 1,777,092.87 106,398.49 306,637.82 1,576,853.54
Fund 371 DEBT SERVICE A (VOTED BONDS) LIBRARY
001.01 CASH - DEBT A CHECKING ACCOUNT 42,237.68 25,664.09 16,261.78 51,639.99
017 02 CASH - MI CLASS DEBT A FUND 95,796.71 0.85 0.00 95,797.56

DEBT SERVICE A (VOTED BONDS) 138,034.39 25,664.94 16,261.78 147,437.55
Fund 372 DEBT SERVICE B (VOTED BONDS) LIBRARY
017.03 CASH - MI CLASS DEBT B FUND 81.41 0.00 0.00 81.41
Fund 401 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND MAINTENANCE
002.00 CASH - LMCU MONEY MARKET 518.24 0.00 0.00 518.24
002.01 FIFTH THIRD MONEY MARKET 2755990 .30 0.00 0.00 275,990.30
002 .14 FIFTH THIRD SECURITIES 352,057.70 0.00 0.00 352,057.70
017 .01 CASH - MI CLASS LIBRARY MAINTENANCE 295,423.65 0.00 8,905.00 286,518.65

CAPTITAL PROJECT FUND MAINTENANCE 923,989.89 0.00 8,805.00 915,084.89

TOTAL - ALL FUNDS 2,839,198.56 132,063.43 331,804.60 2,639,457.39



58

I Loutit District
Library

Expanding Horizons. Enriching Minds. Engaging

v

Memo

DATE: June 13, 2023

To: LDL Finance Committee

From: Ellen Peters, Executive Director

RE: Review of Director’s Proposed FY2023-2024 Budgets

Library service expanded during FY2021-2022 (post-COVID) to 6 days per week service with the building open for
full service — in-person programs, study rooms, public computers, and most other pre-COVID services. Staff has
been analyzing staffing needs and seeking input from the public during the second half of 2022 and early 2023 to
determine the ideal set of open service hours for the library moving forward. Based on that analysis, starting July
5, 2023, the library will add an additional two hours on each Wednesday and Thursday evenings, staying open
until 8:00 pm. Traditionally, Sunday hours did not occur over the summer, but we are reviewing the possibility of
additional weekend hours for Fall 2023. We also saw a need for Local History and Genealogy to be available to the
public outside of the traditional daytime hours, so we made the decision to open that space on Tuesday evenings
until 8:00 pm for the community. Now that we are at full staff, we will provide more robust hours, programs, and
services.

The primary focus of library service is providing an excellent customer service experience for all library users —
whether in-person visitors, users of online services, or out-of-town visitors. We aim to engage, delight, and
welcome the community. | was newly hired in December, and Anne Harrison, the Assistant Director, in April, so
we're just starting our LDL journey. We're both very excited to begin work with the staff and board to create a
new Strategic Plan that will guide LDL in its growth and explore new ways to serve our district.

With regards to our finances, inflationary pressures have led to increased costs for most products and services
purchased for the library. We've seen an increase across the board with our annual contracts. Union negotiations
will determine staff salaries, which we predict will rise as well. On the flip side, our revenue increased and we
escaped the usual annual Headlee Rollback that reduces our millage rate fraction, both of which helps offset the
rise in expenditures. We also made some budget-friendly organizational and purchasing changes which will be
detailed here.

Following are brief summaries of FY2023-2024 budget requests for the Debt Service, Maintenance and General
Fund Budgets.

407 Columbus Avenue, Grand Haven, MI 49417
Phone (616) 850-6900 ~ www.loutitlibrary.org



99

REVENUE ASSUMPTIONS

Library district total taxable value [TV} increased $169,501,068 to $2,637,553,464 representing an overall TV
increase of 6.87%, higher than last year’s increase. Revenue from property taxes and Personal Property Tax
reimbursement is projected to increase to a total of $2,512,600 representing an increase of 6.38% from the
current FY2022-2023 budgeted revenue of $2,362,000. The prior year's increase was a lower 4.97%. There will be
no Headlee reduction due to inflation, so our millage rate remains at .9523 mills. The tax rate for debt service
millage will also remain .1150 mills.

In March 2018, a Michigan Tax Tribunal (MTT) case brought by Consumers Energy challenging Port Sheldon
Township’s property assessments for 2016 and 2017 was settled. The library joined Port Sheldon Township and
other taxing authorities which receive tax funds from the Port Sheldon Consumers plant in challenging Consumers
at the MTT. In the settlement the taxing authorities agreed to adjust the way Consumers property and equipment
is taxed and to lower their assessments for 2016, 2017 and years going forward through 2022, Tax income from
Port Sheldon Township is anticipated to increase by approximately 6.6% this year (up from 2.00% last year), from
$262,750 to $280,000.

In addition, Consumers announced in July 2021 that the JH Campbell plant in Port Sheldon will stop producing
electricity in 2025, well ahead of the previously announced closures in 2031 and 2040. Beginning in FY2023-2024,
the library expected a reduction in property tax revenues from Port Sheldon Township based on the anticipated
closure of the Campbeli plant in 2025. This doesn’t seem to be effecting LDL this budget year.

Penal fines collected from the County Court system and distributed by the County Treasurer are anticipated to
increase by approximately 7.14% (from 3.70% last year), to total annual revenue of $120,000.

State aid is revenue allocated by the Michigan legislature and distributed by the Library of Michigan to libraries
meeting state requirements. This revenue is based on the library district’s certified federal census population. In
February 2022, the Library of Michigan certified the library district’s service population from the 2020 census as
39,331, an increase of 10.67% or 3,791 from the 2010 census. This increase in population will result in an increase
of state aid revenues, State aid revenues increased $1,204 in FY2023-2024, from $38,400 to $39,604.

In early 2019, the library joined the Michigan Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (Michigan CLASS), an
investment pool of Michigan governmental entities. This “is a local government investment pool that emphasizes
safety, liquidity, convenience, and competitive yield. Since 1991, Michigan CLASS has provided Michigan public
agencies a safe and competitive investment alternative. Michigan CLASS invests only in instruments applicable to
Michigan state laws governing investment options for local agencies.” Interest income remains low and is
budgeted at a conservative estimate of $5,000 for FY2023-2024.

In December 2019, the library’s Robbins Road property was sold to a local developer. Funds were deposited into
Michigan CLASS and a transfer of $72,490 from the proceeds is included as revenue to offset debt service bond
payments from the library’s General Fund. It is anticipated that this amount will be transferred from committed
fund balance until May 2027 when the original 2007 construction bonds will be paid off.

Overall, library revenue will increase $249,204 in FY2023-2024 over the previous FY.

Page 2 of 11



60

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

in 2017, the library’s two building bonds, originally issued in 2007 to fund reconstruction and furnishings of the
library, were refinanced. This lowered the interest rates on each bond saving taxpayers approximately $500,000
over the remaining ten years of the bonds.

Debt Service A Fund is used to repay the 2017A bond which in FY2023-2024 will total $258,200, of which $230,000
is for principal and $28,200 is for interest. This bond is paid for through a separate voted tax levy on property
owners in the library’s district. For FY2023-2024, the library anticipates maintaining the miliage rate at .1150 to
generate adequate funds to meet principal and interest payments and leave a projected fund balance at the end
of FY2023-2024 of $182,379.

Debt Service B Fund is used to repay the 2017B bond. This bond is repaid from the library’s General Fund. The
library is budgeting $326,600 from General Fund to cover $36,600 in interest and $290,000 in principal payments.
No funds are being appropriated from the Debt Service B fund balance which will have a small fund balance of $82
at FY2023-2024 end.

MAINTENANCE FUND

The library building will be 14 years oid on July 1, 2023. A number of building maintenance repairs have been
identified and the library contracted with Wiss, Janney and Elstner, a large Architectural and Engineering firm, to
prepare architectural drawings, solicit bids for repairs, and oversee projects. In FY2020-2021, bricks surrounding
three windows in Local History were removed to allow for installation of insulation, flashing and other
improvements to keep rain and snow out of the room. In FY2021-2022, window water diverters were installed on
all exposed library windows, except for the curtain wall above the Fourth Street entrance, to prevent interior
seepage. Resealing all windows and door frames around the huilding was completed in FY2022-2023. Some other
minor repairs were made to equipment and the building. A transfer of $80,000 from the Maintenance Fund to the
General Fund is anticipated to pay for window resealing, replacement of an HVAC chiller unit, resealing and
restriping of the Columbus parking lot, and other capital improvement projects. To date, most of those anticipated
expenses were not realized. The budget funds will be carried over Into FY2023-34 to cover preventative
maintenance and projects recommended by Wiss, Janney and Elstner.

GENERAL FUND

This budget includes staffing levels necessary to provide excellent public service to our residents and visitors. In
FY2021-2022, public service hours were increased to 52 hours per week. We are increasing hours to 56 hours per
week for the 2023-24 fiscal year, and may add two to four more hours per week in Fall 2023,

A salary study was compieted in May 2022 and the results were used to determine employee wages for FY2022-
2023. As a result, overall employee wages and benefits increased 4.82% or $73,362 in FY2022-2023, from
51,523,528 to $1,596,890. For FY2023-2024, we anticipate a 4% growth in salaries, but this will be determined
through union negotiations. For budgeting purposes, we allocated $1,846,400 toward overall employee wages and
benefits, which is 59.72% of the total budget expenditures,

This budget maintains expenditures for books for Youth at $18,000. Books for adults, fiction and non-fiction, are
budgeted at $46,500. We have budgeted $27,970 for additional materials for adults and youth, e.g. CDs, DVDs,
magazines, newspapers, etc.

In order to meet patron needs during the coronavirus pandemic, expenditures for electronic resources, books,
movies, music, magazines, etc., were increased in FY2021-2022. As patrons continue to utilize these digital

Page 3 of 11



61

materials, the library has maintained this increased budget for electronic resources in FY2022-2023. In addition to
print materials detailed above, we have budgeted $93,250 for electronic materials including OverDrive, Hoopla
and Kanopy. Together with the 512,085 budgeted for patron access to electronic databases, expenditures for
electronically accessible materials and information are expected to continually increase to meet library patron
needs.

As online digital usage grows, library staff have been creating more online content including updating the library’s
website, increased content and engagement on social media accounts {Facebook, TikTok, and Instagram) as well
as sending monthly e-newsletters to subscribers. Our Community Engagement and Marketing Manager is
promoting now on the radio, in the Tribune, and in the local neighborhood magazine. This proposed budget
continues to maintain a physical mailer in Spring and Fall that is sent to all households in the library's service area.
Expenses for printing and associated postage are budgeted at $18,225.

This budget includes an appropriation from the General Fund balance of $157,886. It is anticipated the unassigned
General Fund Balance will be approximately 25.06% of FY2023-2024 General Fund expenses, or $757,351 at July 1,
2023. {Note that Maintenance Fund transfers/expenses are excluded from this calculation). It is anticipated the
FY2023-2024 budget will finish June 30, 2024, with an unassigned fund balance of $634,756 and a total Fund
Balance of $1,109,156.

Library service in FY2023-2024 will need to be flexible, fluid, and open to change. We are remodeling the main
floor areain adult services to add the “Brooks Media Center.” This project is expected to cost $70,000. Burton
Brooks has donated approximately $40,000 that will be used toward this project. Additionally, | have applied for a
$30,000 grant from the Grand Haven Area Community Foundation, which will fully cover the project costs. If we
do not get the grant, we will use some of the Capital Improvements allocation. | anticipate this fiscal year will see
tmany changes to library service and programming, including the further expansion of open public service hours in
July 2023 and the start of Gutreach Initiatives we would like to see. With this budget we have positioned the
library to be adaptable and prepared to meet the challenges of satisfying the needs of our taxpayers and library
users.

Page 4 of 11



REQUESTED FY23/24 GENERAL FUND BUDGET SUMMARY

REVENUES: Requested

FY23-24 % of Total
Property Taxes 2,512,600 85.63%
County Penal Fines 120,000 4,059%
Appropriated from Property Sale 72,490 2.47%
Transfers In Maintenance Fund 80,000 2.73%
State Aid 39,604 1.35%
Library Fines and Fees 11,000 0.37%
Donations and Grants 93,125 3.17%
Other 5,300 0.18%
TOTAL REVENUES 2,834,119 100.00%
EXPENDITURES: Reguested

FY23-24 % of Total
Employee Wages and Benefits 1,846,400 59.72%
Building/Grounds and Equipment Expenses 328,010 10.61%
Profassional/Contractual, Services, Fees 168,725 5.46%
Transfers Qut 383,100 12.39%
Library Collections and Programs 241,295 7.80%
Other 124,475 4.03%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,092,005 100.00%

Page 5of 11



REVENU ES .f\,er'upri.‘.w(J‘ from Property Sale
572,490

County Penal Fines_ 3
$120,000 = Transfers In Maintenance Fund

=

N \ $80,000

State Aid
$39,604

Library Fines and Fees

$11,000
Donations and Grants
$93,125
\\
RN
.. Other
N
$5,300

Property Taxes
$2,512,600

EXPENDITURES

Other
$124,475

Library Collections and Programs |
$241,295 M

Transfers Out
$383,100-_

Professional/Centractual,
Services, Fees T
$168,725

T~

Building/Grounds and _/
Equipment Expenses
$328,010

Employeé Wages and Benefits
$1,846,400

Page 6 of 11

63



64

COMMENTS ON REQUESTED FY23/24 FUND BUDGETS

GENERAL FUND:

Revenues:

Library’s taxable value (TV) increased $169,501,068 (6.87%) to $2,637,553,464. In 2022, TV increased
$144,751,738 (6.23%).

Property tax revenue is projected to increase $150,600 {(6.38%) to $2,512,600. The total includes the State
of Michigan’s reimbursement for personal property tax.

County penal fines are projected to increase to $120,000 (7.14%).

Fines & penalties for library materials are projected to decrease $200 (-3.85%).

Transfer from Maintenance Fund is projected to remain the same at $80,000.

Appropriation from sale of Robhbins Road property is projected to remain the same at $72,490.
State aid to libraries is projected to increase $1,204 to 539,604 (3.14%).

Donations to the library is projected to increase $27,000 (167.44%),

Total revenues are projected to increase $249,204 {9.24%).

Expenditures:

Employee wages and benefits are projected to increase $245,610 {15.38%) due to increases in staffing
{including hiring custodial staff}, wages, required Defined Benefit contributions, and overall higher benefit
expense costs.

Building/Grounds and equipment expenses are projected to decrease $75,650 (-18,74%) due to hiring
custodial staff and fewer capital, equipment and maintenance projects.

Library collections and programs are projected to decrease 552,040 (-17.74%) due to reorganization of
library operations, functions, and programming as well as digital materials expenses.

Transfers to the Debt Service Fund are projected to decrease $3,550 (-1.08%) in accordance with the bond
repayment schedule.

Other expenses are projected to decrease $101,145 (-81.26} due to decreases in operating materials and
supplies, employment-related expenses, teleghone and internet charges, and operation efficiencies.

Total operating expenses decreased $103,771 (-7.67%).

Page 7 of 11,



65

Fund Balance:
¢ The target minimum Unassigned Fund Balance is 25% of estimated expenses. (Note that Maintenance
Fund transfers/expenses are excluded from this calculation). It is projected the Unassigned Fund Balance
will be approximately 25.06% of proposed FY2023-24 General Fund expenses, or $757,351, at July 1, 2023.
+ ltis projected the Unassigned Fund Balance will decrease by $122,595 to $634,756 at June 30, 2024,

¢ Total General Fund Fund Balance is projected to decrease by $157,886 to $1,109,156 at June 30, 2024.

MAINTENANCE FUND:

®» Revenue: Projected to equal interest earned.
¢ Expenses: A transfer to the General Fund will pay for building maintenance and capital expenses.

¢ Fund Balance: Projected to decrease by $70,000 to {estimate) $794,338 at June 30, 2024.

DEBT SERVICE A FUND:

e Revenue: Tax revenue raised by levying ,1150 mill property tax is projected to be $297,515. Also, a portion
of the State PPT Reimbursement is allocated to Debt Service A Fund, projected at $7,000.

e Expenses; Scheduled principal ($230,000) and interest {$28,200} payments on Building Project bonds.

e Fund Balance: Projected to increase by $39,315 to (estimate) $182,379 at June 30, 2024 due to estimated
tax revenue, State PPT Reimbursement, IFT, miscellaneous taxes, and interest income.

DEBT SERVICE B FUND:

¢ Revenue: $326,600 is projected to be transferred in from the General Fund to pay the Debt Service B bond
payments.

e Expenses: Scheduled principal ($290,000) and interest {$36,600) payments on Building Project bonds.

s Fund Balance: No change in fund balance. Projected fund balance of $82 at June 30, 2024.

Page 8 of 11



66

PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX MILLAGES:

* General Fund:Operating millage--------- 9523 mills

e Debt Service Fund: Debt service millage------ 1150 mill

Fund balances will be at adequate levels at June 30, 2024,

The proposed requested FY2023-24 General Fund budget allows Loutit District Library to deliver to our patrons the
library services they expect and support.

All fund comments are based on comparison of the proposed FY2022-23 amended General Fund budget to be
adopted at the Library Board of Trustees meeting on June 13, 2023; proposed FY2022-23 amended Maintenance
Fund budget to be adopted at the Library Board of Trustees meeting on June 13, 2023, and proposed FY2022-23
Debt A and Debt B budgets as compared to the requested FY2023-24 budget.

Page 9 of 11



67

LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY (LDL) BACKGROUND

LDL is a district library established on February 24, 1999 in accordance with Act 24 of 1989 Public Acts of
Michigan.

LDL serves the residents of the City of Grand Haven, City of Ferrysburg, Grand Haven Charter Township,
Robinson Townshig, and that part of Port Sheldon Township which is in the Grand Haven Area Public
School District.

LDL serves a population of 39,331 as certified by the 2020 federal Census, covering an area of 81.18
square miles.

In addition to serving the residents of our district, LDL is open to the public wherever they live.

LDL is classified by the Library of Michigan as a Class V Library. Class V libraries serve populations from
26,000 to 49,999.

LDL is a member of the Lakeland Library Cooperative {LLC) which has offices in Grand Rapids. LLC has 42
member libraries, serving a total combined population of 1,399,372 in eight West Michigan counties.
Services provided by LLC to LDL include online catalog support, interlibrary loans, delivery of materials
between LLC libraries, data lines for access to the integrated library system, IT and wide area network VPN
support, continuing education and training opportunities, and other services. LLC receives revenue
directly from the State and the balance of its revenue from fees charged to member libraries.

The District Library Agreement under which LDL was established provides for LDL to make certain annual
payments to Spring Lake District Library and Zeeland Public Library.

Page 10 of 11



LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY OPERATING STATISTICS

Open hours:

e 52 hours per week starting July 5, 2023

Monday — Tuesday 10:00 a.m. — 8:00 p.m.
Wednesday -- Friday 10:00 a.m. — 6:00 p.m.
Saturday 10:00 a.m. = 6:00 p.m.
Sunday CLOSED

Number of employees:

¢ Full-time: 15

e Parttime: 18

e Total: 33

+  Full-time equivalents {(FTEs): 24

Building and Grounds:

e 50,000 square-foot building opened July 1, 2009

e 092 on-site parking spaces (34 in parking garage and 58 in surface lot)

e 1.72 acres total campus at 407 Columbus Avenue

68

e $7.9million in building, land, collections, furniture, and equipment {net of depreciation} at June 30, 2022

Usage Statistics

FY 2021/22
Cardholders Active 2021-22 11,208
Patron visits 76,011
Physical Items circulated 232,919
Number of Electronic Items Circulated 114,360
Total Circulation 347,279
Adult programs and classes attendance 3,245
Children programs attendance 2,314
Teen programs attendance 218
Computer usage 4,801
Patron Wireless Sessions 20,003
Patron Assistance 51,572

Page 11 of 11



NEW GL NUMBER

271-040-402.01
271-040-402.02
271-040-402.04
271-040-402.05
271-040-402.06
271-040-403.03
271-040-412.00
271-040-414.00
271-040-437.00
271-040-445.00
271-040-528.00
271-040-528.10
271-040-528.20
271-040-541.00
271-040-544.00
271-040-544,01
271-040-585.00
271-040-585.01
271-040-629.00
271-040-645.00
271-040-658.00
271-040-659.00
271-040-665.00
271-040-666.00
271-040-673.01
271-040-675.00
271-040-674.01
271-040-674.02
271-040-674.03
271-040-674.04
271-040-674.05
271-040-674.06
271-040-699.06
271-040-699.19

271-790-702.00
271-790-703.00
271-790-704.00
271-790-705.00

271-790-706.00
271-790-707.00
271-790-708.00
271-790-709.00
271-790-711.00
271-790-711.01
271-790-711.03
271-790-712.00
271-790-713.00
271-790-714.00
271-790-716.00
271-790-716.01
271-790-716.02
271-790-717.00

Loutit District Library

69

FY2023/24
Budget Overview
Original Projected Requested
Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget % Change
OLD ACCT # 20-21 21-22 22-23 22-23 23-24 {+/-)
040.101 OPERATING REVENUE
402.01 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN TWP PT 836,480 872,577 919,000 921,250 982,000 6.59%
402.02 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - ROBINSON TWP PT 260,401 271,004 288,200 288,000 307,000 6.60%
402.04 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - PORT SHELDON PT 275,833 260,736 266,400 262,750 280,000 6.57%
402.05 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - FERRYSBURG PT 189,960 196,903 207,300 206,300 220,000 6.64%
402.06 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN CITY PT 570,098 581,762 616,300 617,900 659,000 6.65%
403.03 PERSONAL PROP TAX STATE REIMBURSEMENT PT 53,671 60,686 60,000 57,575 60,000 4.21%
403.00 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX PT 1,138 692 500 300 200 -33.33%
PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTMENTS PT; 0 a 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
403.01 IFT - INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX PT 4,088 3,797 3,300 2,550 3,400 33.33%
403.02 PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES PT 1,105 1,035 1,000 830 1,000 20.48%
FEDERAL GRANTS DG 0
FEDERAL GRANTS - IMLS DG 0
FEDERAL GRANTS - IMLS TECHNOLOGY DG 0
STATE GRANTS DG 0
544.01 STATE AID - LIBRARY SA 15,412 19,327 19,200 19,200 19,802 3.14%
544.00 STATE AID - LIBRARY COOP SERVICE SA 15,412 19,328 19,200 19,200 19,802 3.14%
675.04 LOCAL GRANTS DG 27,650 13,649 15,000 22,025 15,000 -31.90%
LOCAL GRANTS - GHACF DG 0 35,000
650.00 MISCELLANEQUS INCOME 0 252 2,626 300 690 300 -56.52%
649.90 PRINTING & FAX LFF 2,753 6,384 6,000 6,375 6,000 -5.88%
655.00 PENAL FINES CPF 109,628 116,153 112,000 120,000 120,000 0.00%
657.00 FINES & PENALTIES - LIBRARY MATERIALS LFF 5,153 5,811 5,000 5,200 5,000 -3.85%
665.00 INTEREST INCOME 0 2,678 2,020 5,000 37,000 5,000 -86.49%
DIVIDENDS 0 250
673.01 SALE OF ASSETS 0 o] 831 150 0 0 #oIv/0!
675.03 DONATIONS TO LIBRARY DG 13,379 40,820 40,000 13,000 40,000 207.69%
FRIENDS - ASSIGNED DONATIONS DG 50 50
FRIENDS - UNASSIGNED DONATIONS DG 750 750
ASSIGNED DONATIONS DG 1,750 1,750
UNASSIGNED DONATIONS DG 400 400
OWED TO FRIENDS DONATIONS DG 25 25
ENVISIONWARE DONATIONS DG 150 150
699.06 TRANSFERS IN BOARD COMMITTED ROBBINS RD PROCEEDS APS o] 0 72,480 72,490 72,490 0.00%
699.04 TRANSFERS IN MAINTENANCE FUND T 77,515 61,153 80,000 8,905 80,000 798.37%
Total 040.101 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 2,462,607 2,537,294 2,736,340 2,684,915 2,934,119 9.28%
Total Operating Revenue 2,462,607 2,537,294 2,736,340 2,684,915 2,934,119 9.28%
SALARIES/BENEFITS & OPERATING EXPENDITURES
101.790 EMPLOYEE SALARIES
701.000 SALARIES & WAGES
702.00 FULL TIME WAGES we 777,502 827,466 781,900 735,000 910,000 23.81%
703.00 PART TIME WAGES wB 214,084 259,446 423,425 410,000 436,000 6.34%
704.00 OVERTIME WB 0 547 500 0 0 #DIv/0!
705.00 MERIT PAY WB 0 11,235 0 0 0 n/a
Total 701.000 TOTAL EMPLOYEE SALARIES 991,586 1,098,693 1,205,825 1,145,000 1,346,000 17.55%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
706.00 VACATION PAY WB 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 0.00%
707.00 SICK PAY WB 4,730 57,445 5,200 60,000 20,000 -66.67%
HEALTH INSURANCE OPT OUT WB 0 0 0 540 1,500 177.78%
709.00 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE WB 594 648 1,100 750 14,500 1833.33%
711.00 HEALTH INSURANCE ER WB 108,683 118,369 114,060 105,000 118,500 12.86%
711.01 VISION INSURANCE ER WB 1,830 2,095 2,065 1,600 2,000 25.00%
711.03 HSA PRETAX ER WB 5,500 12,500 127.27%
712.00 DENTAL INSURANCE ER WB 12,156 12,293 12,165 11,500 15,000 30.43%
710.50 LIFE AND DISABILITY INSURANCE ER WB 2,670 2,461 2,600 3,200 3,500 9.38%
714.00 WORKERS COMP INSURANCE ER WB 2,017 2,017 2,100 2,300 2,500 8.70%
716.00 MERS DB PENSION ER WB 75,085 122,918 146,000 131,000 146,500 11.83%
716.03 MERS 401A DCER WB 10,244 10,621 2,000 11,500 20,500 78.26%
716.02 MERS 457 ER WB 11,201 11,673 15,650 10,500 15,500 47.62%
717.00 FICAER WB 74,472 84,295 93,000 88,500 104,000 17.51%
Total 706.000 TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 303,682 424,835 395,940 451,890 496,500 9.87%
TOTAL SALARIES/BENEFITS EXPENDITURES 1,295,268 1,523,528 1,601,765 1,596,890 1,842,500 15.38%




NEW GL NUMBER

OLD ACCT #

271-790-741.00
271-790-741.01
271-790-741.02
271-790-741.03
271-790-741.03
271-790-741.50
271-790-742.00
271-790-743.10
271-790-743.20
271-790-743.30
271-790-743.40
271-790-743.41
271-790-743.42
271-790-743.43
271-790-744.03
271-790-744.10
271-790-744.11
271-790-744.12
271-790-744.20
271-790-744.30
271-790-744.31
271-790-744.32
271-790-744.33
271-790-744.34
271-790-745.00
271-790-745.01
271-790-745.02
271-790-745.03
271-790-745.04
271-790-745.05
271-790-746.00
271-790-746.01
271-790-746.02
271-790-746.03
271-790-747.00
271-790-748.00
271-790-748.10
271-790-748.20
271-790-748.30
271-790-748.40
271-790-748.50

271-790-749.00

271-790-749.01

271-790-750.00
271-790-751.10
271-790-751.11

271-790-751.12

271-790-751.20
271-790-751.30
271-790-751.31

271-750-801.00
271-790-801.01

271-790-801.02

271-790-801.03

271-790-803.00
271-790-804.00
271-790-805.00
271-790-805.01

271-790-805.02

271-790-805.03

271-790-806.00
271-790-807.00
271-790-808.00
271-790-810.00

271-790-850.00

271-790-850.01

271-790-852.00

271-790-860.00

271-790-900.00

271-790-920.00
271-790-921.00
271-790-922.00
271-790-924.00
271-790-330.00
271-790-956.00
271-790-957.00

721.000
743.50

743.52
743.06
743.03
743.00
743.01
743.02

749.00

744.00
746.00

743.07

745.00

743.55
743.51
743.56

755.02

750.00

730.00
730.02

730.04
730.94
730.92

956.01
733.00
731.00

811.00
712.50
812.00
860.00
780.00
73093

820.00
933.00
956.00
870.00

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
LIBRARY DONATIONS EXPENSE
FRIENDS ASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
ASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
UNASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
FRIENDS UNASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
LIBRARY DONATIONS GRANTS EXPENSE
ELECTRONIC DATABASES
BOOKS ADULT FICTION
BOOKS ADULT NON FICTION
BOOKS YOUTH
BOOKS REFERENCE
GENERAL REFERENCE
GENEALOGY REFERENCE
PROFESSIONAL COLLECTION
VIDEO GAMES
AUDIOBOCKS
ADULT AUDIOBOCKS
YOUTH AUDIOBOOKS
MUSIC
VIDEOS
FEATURE FILMS
DOCUMENTARY FILMS
CHILDREN'S FILMS
TV SERIES
ELECTRONIC MATERIALS
OVERDRIVE EBOOKS & AUDIOBOOKS
OVERDRIVE ADVANTAGE (FOR LDL PATRONS)
OVERDRIVE MAGAZINES
HOOPLA EBOOKS, EAUDIOBQOKS, MUSIC, VIDEO
KANOPY VIDEOS (STREAMING MEDIA)
PERIODICALS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
NEWSPAPERS, FINANCIAL JOURNALS
MAGAZINE SERVICE
CONSUMER'S REPORT
LIBRARY OF THINGS
PROGRAMMING
ADULT PROGRAMMING
YOUTH PROGRAMMING
LIBRARY-WIDE PROGRAMMING
SUMMER READING PROGRAMMING
GENEALOGY PROGRAMMING
COLLECTION MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES
ARCHIVAL SUPPLIES
OPERATING MATERIALS, COSTS & SUPPLIES
TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE
OPERATING SOFTWARE & SUBSCRIPTIONS
LIBRARY SOFTWARE & SUBSCRIPTIONS
TECHNOLOGY EQUIPMENT
TECHNOLOGY MISCELLANEOUS
TECHNOLOGY SERVICE & MAINTENANCE
PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTUAL
PROF/CONT - LAKELAND LIBRARY COOP
PROF/CONT - IT SERVICE & SUPPORT
PROF/CONT - SERVICE CONTRACTS
EMPLOYMENT RELATED EXPENSES
CUSTODIAL SERVICE & SUPPLIES
BUILDING & GROUNDS
BUILDING & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
BUILDING & GROUNDS EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES
BUILDING & GROUNDS SERVICE CONTRACTS
BANK AND CREDIT CARD FEES
AUDITING & ACCOUNTING SERVICES
LEGAL FEES
TRASH SERVICES
TELEPHONE
CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT
INTERNET
TRANSPORTATION, LODGING & MEALS
PRINTING, MARKETING & PRCMOTIONS
UTILITY COSTS (OLD)
ELECTRICITY
NATURAL GAS
WATER & SEWER
POSTAGE
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
MISCELLANEOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Loutit District Library

FY2023/24

Budget Overview

LCP
LCP
LcP
LCP
LcP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCcP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
LCP
Lcp
LCP
Lcp
LCP

cOoo0oo0o0OO0OO0QO

o

PCSF
PCSF
PCSF
PCSF

BGE
BGE
BGE
BGE
BGE
PCSF
PCSF
PCSF
BGE

WB

o

BGE
BGE
BGE
BGE

BGE

70

Original Projected Requested
Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget % Change
20-21 21-22 22-23 22-23 23-24 (+/-)
8,132 12,615 40,000 5,000 Q -100.00%
500 500 0.00%
5,950 0 -100.00%
150 0 -100.00%
700 0 -100.00%
22,966 15,823 15,000 500 15,000 2900.00%
19,920 21,050 19,885 19,885 12,085 -39.23%
27,500 26,713 28,500 28,500 28,500 0.00%
19,294 20,000 20,000 20,000 18,000 -10.00%
16,926 17,902 18,000 16,000 18,000 12.50%
1,137 2,500 3,000 500 0 -100.00%
800 675 -15.63%
900 675 -25.00%
30 650 2066.67%
0 1,250
10,647 11,000 0 250 0 -100.00%
9,250 9,200 8,000 -13.04%
1,750 1,000 500 -50.00%
1,200 1,125 1,200 100 1,200 1100.00%
11,360 11,258 0 10,500 0 -100.00%
5,000 0 5,000 #DIV/0!
2,300 0 2,300 #DIV/0!
1,500 0 1,500 #DIV/0!
2,700 0 2,700 #DIV/0!
75,033 87,354 0] 6,500 0 -100.00%
27,800 27,800 27,800 0.00%
36,000 30,000 36,000 20.00%
3,450 3,450 3,450 0.00%
20,000 31,000 20,000 -35.48%
6,000 4,500 6,000 33.33%
5,648 4,337 o] 0 0 #DIV/0!
2,950 4,500 2,950 -34.44%
3,500 2,500 3,000 20.00%
50 60 60 0.00%
0 0 0 #DIV/0!
5,177 5,280 5,000 5,500 5,000 -9.09%
4,189 6,500 5,000 3,500 5,000 42.86%
0 0 14,000 6,350 5,000 -21.26%
0 9,000 8,000 0.00%
1,500 0 1,500 #DIV/0!
3,860 5,000 6,500 6,000 6,500 8.33%
0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/O!
21,531 20,873 17,975 26,075 17,975 -31.06%
600 0 0 #DIV/0!
8,825 12,900 18,035 39.81%
1,300 1,800 1,900 5.56%
25,300 10,000 10,000 0.00%
1,000 0 500 #DIV/Q!
2,500 1,575 3,475 120.63%
6,334 21,742 2,100 45,000 6,300 -86.00%
24,268 24,360 29,200 22,000 30,000 36.36%
50,000 56,000 56,000 0.00%
9,375 40,150 57,675 43.65%
6,118 7,500 375 8,000 500 -93.75%
49,685 54,420 60,200 60,200 4,000 -93.36%
61,814 71,774 5,000 40,000 0 -100.00%
26,010 26,010 26,010 0.00%
2,000 1,500 2,000 33.33%
36,000 36,000 36,000 0.00%
1,327 960 2,250 1,750 2,250 28.57%
6,900 7,150 7,400 8,125 9,000 10.77%
3,822 3,812 5,500 19,000 7,500 -60.53%
2,500 3,500 3,500 0.00%
1,335 1,200 1,200 5,000 1,200 -76.00%
4,680 3,800 1] 3,900 3,900 0.00%
1,149 1,050 1,400 13,400 7,400 -44.78%
176 470 5,500 3,000 5,500 83.33%
7,421 7,775 9,725 9,725 9,725 0.00%
85,743 104,109 #DIV/0!
75,000 75,000 75,000 0.00%
17,500 17,000 19,000 11.76%
7,500 7,500 7,500 0.00%
7,746 7,965 8,500 5,000 8,500 70.00%
50,072 50,822 55,900 5,000 10,000 100.00%
3,532 4,339 500 6,000 500 -91.67%
6,347 6,000 13,000 5,000 10,000 100.00%



MNEW GLNUMBER OLD ACCT #
271-790-958.00 785.00
271-790-958.01
271-790-958.02
271-790-958.03
271-790-958.04
271-790-960.00 960.00
271-790-965.00 910.00
271-790-971.00 970.10
271-790-971.01 970.00
271-790-980.00 964.00
271-790-995.01 965.01
271-790-995.02 965.02
271-790-995.05 965.05

Loutit District Library

MEMBERSHIPS, DUES, SUBSCRIPTIONS
PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
LOCAL MEMBERSHIPS
GENEALOGY

PROFESSIONAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS

PROPERTY TAX ADIUSTMENTS

PROPERTY/LIABILITY INSURANCE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

FINES TRANSFER OUT

TRANSFERS OUT SPRING LAKE LIBRARY

TRANSFERS OUT ZEELAND LIBRARY

TRANSFERS OUT DEBT SERVICE FUND

Total 721.000 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

TOTAL SALARIES/BENEFITS & OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures

Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

FY2023/24 7 1
Budget Overview
Original Projected Requested
Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget % Change
20-21 21-22 22-23 22-23 23-24 (+/-)
[0} 5774 5,950 0 6,000 Q -100.00%
o 4,565 50 4,565 9030.00%
0 2,450 1,000 2,450 145.00%
0 250 0 250 #DIV/0!
o} 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
0 251 545 2,000 100 2,000 1900.00%
0 13,360 13,509 13,150 13,325 13,500 1.31%
BGE T 1L 46,480 80,000 90,000 145,000 61.11%
BGE 30,953 33,853 25,300 20,000 0 -100.00%
TO 483 477 1,000 1,000 1,000 0.00%
TO 10,638 10,185 12,300 12,000 12,000 0.00%
TO 40,169 41,960 41,500 43,416 43,500 0.19%
TO 326,250 323,250 330,150 330,150 326,600 -1.08%
1,088,577 1,125,186 1,303,635 1,353,276 1,249,505 -7.67%
2,383,844 2,648,714 2,905,400 2,950,166 3,092,005 4.81%
78,762 (111,420) (169,060) (265,251) (157,886)
1,564,951 1,643,713 1,532,283 1,532,293 1,267,042
1,643,713 1,532,293 1,363,233 1,267,042 1,109,156



Unassigned Fund Balance June 30, 2020
Committed Fund Balance June 30, 2029
Fund Balance June 30, 2020

20/21 Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures
Audit Adjustment : Penal Fine Recognition
Less: Assigned/Committed Fund Balance Expended in CY
Less: Committed Fund Balance Robkins Road
Less; Committed Fund Balance Robhbins Road - Interest
Lass: Assigned Fund Balances & Prepald Expenses
Unassigned 20/21 Revenues Over {Under} Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance June 30, 2021
Committed Fund Balance June 30, 2021
Total Fund Balance June 30, 2021

21/22 Revenues over Expenditures
Less: Assigned/Committed Fund Balance Expended in CY
Less: Committed Fund Balance Rokbins Road
Lass; Committed Fund Balance Robbins Road - Interest
fess: Assigned Fund Balances & Prepaid Expenses
Unassigned 21/22 Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance June 30, 2022
Committed Fund Balance June 30, 2022
Total Fund Balance June 30, 2022

Est, 22/23 Revenues QOver {Under} Expenditures
Less: Est. Assigned/Committed Fund Balance Expendad in CY
Less: Est. Committed Fund Balance Robbins Road
Less: Est, Committed Fund Balance Robbins Road - interest
Less: Est. Assigned Fund Balances & Prepald Expenses

Est. Unassigned 22/23 Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures

Est. Unassigned Fund Balance June 30, 2023
Est. Committad Fund Balance June 30, 2023
Est. Total fund Balance June 30, 2023

Est. 23/24 Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures
Less: Est. Assigned/Committed Fund Balance Expended in CY
Less: Est. Committed Fund Balance Robhins Road
Less: Est. Committed Fund Balance Robbins Road - interast
Less: Est. Assigned Fund Balances & Prepaid Expenses

Est, Unassigned 22/23 Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures

Est. Unassigned Fund Balance June 30, 2024
Est. Committed Fund Balance June 30, 2024
Est. Total Fund Balance June 30, 2024

Loutit District Library

GENERAL FUND
FY2023/24

Fund Balance Overview

Ly | Uy

LT R Ve 70 R Vo i e i 7o e P Uy A

W [ A

L {4n U

A |4 N A AN

914,532

548,681

1,463,213

78,760
101,739
{434,940)

(4,153)

(94,815) E

(353,409)

1,109,805

533,907 ¢

1,643,713

{111,420)
{124,340)
{366,603)

(1,004)

(26,504)

1629,871)

1,013,842

518,451

1,532,293

{265,251}
(182,070)
{307,965)

(19,656)

{774,942)

757,351

509,691 &

1,267,042

{157,886)
(150,000)
(309,400)

(15,000)

(632,286)

634,756
474,400
1,109,156

Fund Balance as % of Expenditures

72

25% Goal

NOTE: Any expected expenditures from the Maintenance
Fund are excluded from caiculation to more accurately reflect

expenditures solely from the General Fund.

Unassigned Fund Balance June 30, 2020
2020/21 Expenditures

Less: Maintenance Fund Transfer

Net General Fund Expenditures

2020/21 Ratio

Unassigned Fund Balance June 30, 2021

Est. 2021/22 Expenditures

Less: Est. Maintenance Fund Transfer

Net General Fund Expenditures

2021/22 Ratio

Est. Unassigned Fund Balance June 30, 2022
Est. 2022/23 Expenditures

Less: Est. Maintenance Fund Transfer

Net General Fund Expenditures

Est, 2022/23 Ratio

Est. Unassigned Fund Balance june 30, 2023
Est. 2023/24 Expenditures

Less: Est. Maintenance Fund Transfer

Net General Fund Expenditures

Est. 2023/24 Ratio

$

| i |40 U [

L |40

914,532

2,383,845

(77,515)

2,306,330

39.65%

1,109,805

2,648,714

(61,153}

2,587,561
42,89%
1,013,842
2,992,896
(8,905}
2,983,991 .
33.98%

757,351

3,102,005

{80,000)

3,022,005

25.06%



OPERATING REVENUES

Loutit District Library
FY2023/24
Revenues

Original Budget

Projected Budget

Requested Budget

July '22 - June 23

July '22 - June '23

July '23 - June '24

NEW GLNUMBER  OLD ACCT
271-040-402.01 402.01  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN TWP 919,000 921,250 982,000
271-040-402.02 402.02  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - ROBINSON TWP 288,200 288,000 307,000
271-040-402.04 402.04  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - PORT SHELDON 266,400 262,750 280,000
271-040-402.05 402.05  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - FERRYSBURG 207,300 206,300 220,000
271-040-402.06 402.06  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN CITY 616,300 617,900 659,000
271-040-403.03 403.03 PERSONAL PROP TAX STATE REIMBURSEMENT 60,000 57,575 60,000
271-040-412.00 403.00  DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 500 300 200
271-040-414.00 PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTMENTS 0
271-040-437.00 403.01  IFT - INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX 3,300 2,550 3,400
271-040-445.00 403.02  PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES 1,000 830 1,000
271-040-528.00 FEDERAL GRANTS 0
271-040-528.10 FEDERAL GRANTS - IMLS 0
271-040-528.20 FEDERAL GRANTS - IMLS TECHNOLOGY 0
271-040-541.00 STATE GRANTS 0
271-040-544.00 544.01  STATE AID - LIBRARY 19,200 19,200 19,802
271-040-544.01 544.00 STATE AID - LIBRARY COOP SERVICE 19,200 19,200 19,802
271-040-585.00 675.04  LOCAL GRANTS 15,000 22,025 15,000
271-040-585.01 LOCAL GRANTS - GHACF 0 35,000
271-040-629.00 650.00 MISCELLANEOQUS INCOME 300 690 300
271-040-645.00 649.90  PRINTING & FAX 6,000 6,375 6,000
271-040-658.00 655.00  PENAL FINES 112,000 120,000 120,000
271-040-659.00 657.00  FINES & PENALTIES - LIBRARY MATERIALS 5,000 5,200 5,000
271-040-665.00 665.00 INTEREST INCOME 5,000 37,000 5,000
271-040-666.00 DIVIDENDS 250
271-040-673.01 673.01  SALE OF ASSETS 150 0 0
271-040-674.00 675.03  DONATIONS TO LIBRARY 40,000 13,000 40,000
271-040-674.01 FRIENDS - ASSIGNED DONATIONS 50 50
271-040-674.02 FRIENDS - UNASSIGNED DONATIONS 750 750
271-040-674.03 ASSIGNED DONATIONS 1,750 1,750
271-040-674.04 UNASSIGNED DONATIONS 400 400
271-040-674.05 OWED TO FRIENDS DONATIONS 25 25
271-040-674.06 ENVISIONWARE DONATIONS 150 150
271-040-699.06 699.06  TRANSFERS IN BOARD COMMITTED ROBBINS RD PRC 72,490 72,490 72,490
271-040-699.19 699.04  TRANSFERS IN MAINTENANCE FUND 80,000 8,905 80,000
040.101 - I TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 2,736,340 2,684,915 2,934,119
Total Operating Revenues 2,736,340 2,684,915 2,934,119
DEBT SERVICE A FUND
371-040-402.01 402.07  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN TWP 111,100 111,200 115,000
371-040-402.02 402.08  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - ROBINSON TWP 34,800 34,500 35,000
371-040-402.04 402.09  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - PORT SHELDON 32,165 35,000 35,000
371-040-402.05 402,10  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - FERRYSBURG 25,100 24,500 25,000
371-040-402.06 402.11  CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN CITY 80,850 80,500 80,000
371-040-403.03 404.00  PERSONAL PROP TAX STATE REIMBURSEMENT 5,450 6,850 7,000
371-040-412.00 403.00 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 100 120 120
371-040-437.00 403.01  IFT - INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX 400 280 280
371-040-445.00 403.10  PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES 0 15 15
371-040-665.00 665.00  INTEREST INCOME 100 100 100
TOTAL REVENUES 290,065 293,065 297,515
DEBT SERVICE B FUND
372-040-665.00 665.00  INTEREST INCOME 0 3 0
372-040-699.01 £99.01  TRANSFER IN GENERAL FUND 330,150 330,150 326,600
TOTAL REVENUES 330,150 330,153 326,600
MAINTENANCE FUND
401-040-665.00 665.00  INTEREST INCOME 10,000 20,000 10,000
401-040-669.00 669.00  UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS INVESTMENTS 0 (65,161) 0
401-040-679.00 679.00  REALIZED GAIN/LOSS INVESTMENTS (117)
TOTAL REVENUES 10,000 (45,278) 10,000

73



OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NEW GL NUMBER

OLD ACCT

Loutit District Library
FY2023/24

Expenditures
Qriginal Budget

Projected Budget

Requested Budget

271-790-741.00

271-790-741.01

271-790-741.02

271-790-741.03

271-790-741.04

271-790-741.50

271-790-742.00

271-750-743.10

271-790-743.20

271-790-743.30

271-790-743.40

271-790-743.41

271-790-743.42

271-790-743.43

271-790-744.03

271-790-744.10

271-790-744.11

271-790-744.12

271-790-744.20

743.50

743.52

743.06

743.03

743.00

743.01

743.02

749.00

744.00

LIBRARY DONATIONS EXPENSE

FRIENDS ASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
BluRay DVDs - Friends
Archival Supplies - Friends
Adult Express - Friends
Sci-Fi - Friends
Summer Reading Program - Friends
Total

ASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
Sunday Concert Series
One For the Foxes Concert Underwriting
Summer Reading Program - Museum
Total

UNASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
FRIENDS UNASSIGNED DONATIONS EXPENSE
LIBRARY DONATIONS GRANTS EXPENSE

ELECTRONIC DATABASES
Ancestry

ASLDeafined

Beanstack

Creativebug

Fold3

Heritage Quest (Bundle)
LinkedIn Learning
Newspapers.com (Bundle)
PastPerfect

Pronunciator

Total

BOOKS ADULT FICTION
Fiction

SciFi/Fantasy now Inspiration/Western
Graphic Novels

Large Print

World Languages

Book Club In a Bag

Total

BOOKS ADULT NON FICTION
BOOKS YOUTH

BOOKS REFERENCE
GENERAL REFERENCE
GENEALOGY REFERENCE
PROFESSIONAL COLLECTION
VIDEO GAMES
AUDIOBOOKS

ADULT AUDIOBOOKS

YOUTH AUDIOBOOKS

MUSIC

Jul '22 - Jun '23 Jul'22 - Jun '23 Jul'23 - Jun '24
0 5,000 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
500 500 500
500 500 500
0 5,950 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 5,950 0
39,500 150 0
0 700 0
15,000 500 15,000
1,455 1,455 1,455
700 700 700
1,600 1,600 1,100
1,000 1,000 0
1,550 1,550 1,550
1,280 1,280 1,280
6,300 6,300 0
3,000 3,000 3,000
1,500 1,500 1,500
1,500 1,500 1,500
19,885 19,885 12,085
16,500 16,500 16,500
2,000 2,000 2,000
900 900 900
7,000 7,000 7,000
650 650 650
1,450 1,450 1,450
28,500 28,500 28,500
20,000 20,000 18,000
18,000 16,000 18,000
1] 500 0
1,000 800 675
1,000 900 675
1,000 30 650
0 0 1250
0 250 0
9,250 9,200 8,000
1,750 1,000 500
1,200 100 1,200

74



OPERATING EXPENDITURES

271-790-744.30

271-790-744.31

271-790-744.32

271-790-744.33

271-790-744.34

271-790-745.00

271-790-745.01

271-790-745.02

271-790-745.03

271-790-745.04

271-790-745.05

271-790-746.00

271-790-746.01

271-790-746.02

271-790-746.03

271-790-747.002

271-790-748.10

271-790-748.20

271-790-748.30

271-790-748.40

271-790-748.50

271-790-745.00

271-790-749.01

271-790-750.00

746.00

743.07

745.00

743.55

743.51

743.56

755.02

750.00

Loutit District Library
FY2023/24
Expenditures

VIDEOS

FEATURE FILMS

DOCUMENTARY FILMS

CHILDREN'S FILMS

TV SERIES

ELECTRONIC MATERIALS

OVERDRIVE EBOOKS & AUDIOBOOKS
OVERDRIVE ADVANTAGE (FOR LDL PATRONS)
OVERDRIVE MAGAZINES

HOOPLA EBOOKS, EAUDIOBOOKS, MUSIC, VIDEO
KANOPY VIDEOS (STREAMING MEDIA)
PERIODICALS & SUBSCRIPTIONS
NEWSPAPERS/FINANCIAL JOURNALS
MAGAZINE SERVICE

CONSUMER'S REPORT

LIBRARY OF THINGS

ADULT PROGRAMMING

YOUTH PROGRAMMING

LIBRARY-WIDE PROGRAMMING

SUMMER READING PROGRAMMING
GENEALOGY PROGRAMMING

COLLECTION MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES
Labels (Spine, Genre, Owner, Barcode, Holds)
Book Jackets/Laminate

Book Tape

Archival Supplies - Library

Cases (DVD/CD)

Mending/Disc Repair Supplies & Service
Miscellaneous (Stamps/Book Cleaner/Goo Gone)
ARCHIVAL SUPPLIES

OPERATING MATERIALS, COSTS & SUPPLIES
COVID Supplies

First Aid/Safety Products

Ink Cartridges

Holiday Decorating

Meeting Expense

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous (Name Badges/Business Cards/Etc)
Office Supplies

Paper/Paper Products

Printing Charges
Safe Deposit Box Rental

Original Budget

Projected Budget

Requested Budget

Jul'22-Jun'23  Jul'22-Jun'23 Jul'23-Jun'24
0 10,500 0
5,000 0 5,000
2,300 0 2,300
1,500 0 1,500
2,700 0 2,700
0 6,500 (]
27,800 27,800 27,800
36,000 30,000 36,000
3,450 3,450 3,450
20,000 31,000 20,000
6,000 4,500 6,000
0 0 0
2,950 4,500 2,950
3,500 2,500 3,000
50 60 60
0 0 0
5,000 5,500 5,000
5,000 3,500 5,000
14,000 6,350 5,000
0 9,000 9,000
1,500 0 1,500
200 200 200
1,500 1,000 1,500
500 500 500
2,000 2,000 2,000
1,500 1,500 1,500
300 300 300
500 500 500
6,500 6,000 6,500
0 0 0
1,000 500 1,000
300 2,000 300
3,000 3,000 3,000
600 1,000 600
1,500 2,500 1,500
1,500 1,000 1,500
1,000 2,000 1,000
2,000 5,000 2,000
2,000 4,000 2,000
5,000 5,000 5,000
75 75 75
17,975 26,075 17,975

75



OPERATING EXPENDITURES

271-790-751.10

271-790-751.11

271-790-751.12

271-790-751.20

271-790-751.30

271-790-751.31

271-750-801.00

271-7590-801.01

271-750-801.02

271-750-801.03

271-750-803.00

271-750-804.00

271-7590-805.00

730.00

730.02

730.04

730.94

730.92

Loutit District Library
FY2023/24
Expenditures

TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE

OPERATING SOFTWARE & SUBSCRIPTIONS
Mconsole - Mobile Printing

Orange Boy (Savannah)

Rehmann Technology Selutions - Watchguard Security
Domain Renewal

Calendly Subscription

Deep Freeze License

Dymaxion Scheduling Software

Evanced Software

Survey Monkey Subscription

Zoom Subscription

Envisionware

LIBRARY SOFTWARE, SUBSCRIPTIONS & SUPPLIES
Computer Peripherals

Trello Subscription

Adaobe

TECHNOLOGY EQUIPMENT
Technology Plan Purchase - FY2022/23

TECHNOLOGY MISCELLANEOUS
Miscellaneous Repairs

TECHNOLOGY SERVICE & MAINTENANCE

Graphic Sciences Indus Scanner Software Maintenance

MK Solutions Self-Check Maintenance (Contract)

Sensource Counter Maintenance Library Network (Contract)
Envisionware Consulting Services for Setup

PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTUAL

Web hosting & Maintenance

Website updates/maintenance as needed
Miscellaneous Prof/Cont July-Dec 2022

PROF/CONT - LAKELAND LIBRARY COOP

PROF/CONT - IT SERVICE & SUPPORT
GHAPS - Camera System/File Servers/Wireless Controller

PROF/CONT - SERVICE CONTRACTS

Finance & HR Services

Office Machines - Printers/Copiers/Equipment Maint
Unigue Management Collection

EMPLOYMENT RELATED EXPENSES
Pre-placement Physicals, Drug tests, Dominion, Moving Fees
Employee Background Checks

CUSTODIAL SERVICE & SUPPLIES
Custodial Service (Including Carpet Cleaning)
Custodial Supplies

BUILDING & GROUNDS

Original Budget

Projected Budget

Requested Budget

Jul '22 - Jun '23 Jul '22 - Jun '23 Jul '23 - Jun '24
600 0 0
525 500 525

4,500 Q 4,500
1,000 950 960
50 50 50

100 100 100

50 50 50

150 150 150
1,600 1,000 1,600
500 500 500
350 350 350

0 9,250 9,250
8,825 12,900 18,035
100 100 100
600 1,200 1,200
600 500 600
1,300 1,800 1,900
25,300 10,000 10,000
25,300 10,000 10,000
1,000 [¢] 500
1,000 0 500
1,850 0 1,850
200 200 200
450 400 450

4] 975 975
2,500 1,575 3,475
300 300 300
1,000 1,000 1,000
800 43,700 5,000
2,100 45,000 6,300
29,200 22,000 30,000
50,000 56,000 56,000
50,000 56,000 56,000
7,500 37,475 55,000
1,875 1,875 1,875
4] 800 800
9,375 40,150 57,675
225 7,500 ¢}
150 500 500
375 8,000 500
55,000 55,000 0
5,200 5,200 4,000
60,200 60,200 4,000
5,000 40,000 0

76



OPERATING EXPENDITURES

271-790-805.01

271-790-805.02

271-790-805.03

271-7590-806.00

271-790-807.00

271-7590-808.00

271-7590-810.00

271-750-850.00

271-790-850.01

271-790-852.00

271-790-860.00

271-750-500.00

271-790-920.00

271-790-921.00

271-790-922.00

271-790-924.00

956.01

733.00

731.00

730.93

811.00

812.00

860.00

790.00

730.93

730.93

730.93

820.00

Loutit District Library
FY2023/24
Expenditures

BUILDING & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

Building Maintenance - Misc Repairs Electrical & Plumbing
Elevator Maintenance Otis Elevator (Contract)

HVAC Maintenance & Repair Estimated Costs

Pest Control Liberty Pest Control - Monthly Inspection
Roof Inspection Great Lakes Systems Inc.

BUILDING & GROUNDS EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES
Building Maintenance - Supplies

BUILDING & GROUNDS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Elevator License (Annual)

Fire Protection System Testing, Maintenance, Alarm Monitor
Generator Maintenance

HVAC Control Maintenance

HVAC PM

Interior Plant Service

Landscape - Including Snow Removal & Lawn

Window Cleaning

BANK AND CREDIT CARD FEES
AUDITING 8 ACCOUNTING SERVICES
LEGAL FEES

TRASH SERVICES

TELEPHONE

CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT

INTERNET
OAISD Internet
Hotspot Data & Service

TRANSPORTATION, LODGING & MEALS
Mileage
Meals/Lodging

PRINTING, MARKETING & PROMOTIONS

Annual Reports (Qty: 200)

Canva.com 3 Users - Adult/Youth/Marketing

Display Ads - RFPs/Legal Notices

Incentives (Magnets/Pencils/Window Clings/Etc)

Marketing FB Boosts/Social Media Marketing

Community Events Winterfest/Jingle Bell Parade/Coast Guard
New Reader Roundup Envelope Printing

Patron Mailings Large Card Mailer (Fall/Spring)

ELECTRICITY
NATURAL GAS
WATER & SEWER
POSTAGE

General
Patron Mailings

Original Budget

Projected Budget

Requested Budget

Jul'22-Jun'23  Jul'22-Jun '23 Jul'23 - Jun '24
11,410 11,410 11,410
3,500 3,500 3,500
10,000 10,000 10,000
600 600 600
500 500 500
26,010 26,010 26,010
2,000 1,500 2,000
2,000 1,500 2,000
200 200 200
3,350 3,350 3,350
1,500 1,500 1,500
2,500 2,500 2,500
8,000 8,000 8,000
1,500 1,500 1,500
16,450 16,450 16,450
2,500 2,500 2,500
36,000 36,000 36,000
2,250 1,750 2,250
7,400 8,125 9,000
5,500 19,000 7,500
2,500 3,500 3,500
1,200 5,000 1,200
0 3,900 3,900
1,400 1,400 1,400
0 12,000 6,000
1,400 13,400 7,400
3,000 1,500 3,000
2,500 1,500 2,500
5,500 3,000 5,500
250 250 250
375 375 375
200 200 200
1,475 1,475 1,475
3,500 3,500 3,500
725 725 725
200 200 200
3,000 3,000 3,000
9,725 9,725 9,725
75,000 75,000 75,000
17,500 17,000 19,000
7,500 7,500 7,500
1,500 1,500 1,500
7,000 3,500 7,000
8,500 5,000 8,500

77



OPERATING EXPENDITURES

271-790-930.00

271-790-956.00

271-790-957.00

271-780-958.00

271-790-958.01

271-790-958.02

271-790-958.03

271-790-958.04

271-790-960.00

271-7580-965.00

271-790-971.00

271-790-971.01

271-790-980.00

271-790-995.01

271-790-995.02

271-750-995.05

933.00

956.00

870.00

785.00

785.00

785.00

960.00

910.00

970.10

970.00

964.00

965.01

965.02

965.05

Loutit District Library
FY2023/24
Expenditures

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
MISCELLANEOUS

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
MEMBERSHIPS, DUES, SUBSCRIPTIONS

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

ALA Director; Asst. Director; Head of Youth; Head of R&lI
Book Browse Reference

Friends of MI Libraries

MCLS Required for OverDrive

MLA - Institution

MLA - Staff/Board (1 Board Member, 8 Librarians)
Professional Subscriptions

Miscellaneous

LOCAL MEMBERSHIPS

Chamber of Commerce (Membership & Event Attendance)
Lakeshore Nonprofit Alliance

Rotary (Director)

GENEALOGY

Great Lakes Historical Society
Historical Society of Michigan
Michigan Archival Association
National Genealogical Society

PROFESSIONAL BOOKS & PERIODICALS
PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTMENTS
PROPERTY/LIABILITY INSURANCE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Tunnel Roof Repair
Parking Lot Repairs
Replace HVAC Chiller Unit
Security Camera Update
Window Resealing

Brooks Media Center

FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

FINES TRANSFER OUT

TRANSFERS OUT SPRING LAKE LIBRARY
Penal Fines

State Aid

TRANSFERS OUT ZEELAND LIBRARY
TRANSFERS OUT DEBT SERVICE FUND

November 2021 & May 2022 Series B interest payment
May 2022 Series B principal payment

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES
TOTAL SALARIES/BENEFITS EXPENDITURES
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Original Budget

Projected Budget

78

Requested Budget

Jul'22-Jun'23  Jul'22-Jun '23 Jul '23 - Jun '24
55,900 5,000 10,000
500 6,000 500
13,000 5,000 10,000
0 6,000 0
1,100 0 1,100
30 0 30
35 0 35
150 0 150
1,625 0 1,625
730 0 730
895 0 895
0 50 Q
4,565 50 4,565
1,125 0 1,125
325 0 325
1,000 1,000 1,000
2,450 1,000 2,450
70 0 70
50 0 50
25 0 25
105 0 105
250 0 250
0 0 0
2,000 100 2,000
13,150 13,325 13,500
10,000 10,000 10,000
5,000 5,000 5,000
30,000 30,000 30,000
5,000 5,000 5,000
30,000 30,000 30,000
0 10,000 65,000
80,000 90,000 145,000
25,300 20,000 0
1,000 1,000 1,000
10,500 10,500 10,500
1,800 1,500 1,500
12,300 12,000 12,000
41,500 43,416 43,500
45,150 45,150 36,600
285,000 285,000 290,000
330,150 330,150 326,600
753,185 850,370 809,945
550,450 502,906 439,560
1,303,635 1,353,276 1,249,505
1,601,765 1,596,890 1,842,500
2,905,400 2,950,166 3,092,005



Loutit District Library

79

FY2023/24
Expenditures
OPERATING EXPENDITURES Original Budget  Projected Budget Requested Budget
Jul '22 - Jun 23 Jul'22 - Jun '23 Jul '23 - Jun '24

DEBT SERVICE A FUND

EXPENDITURES
371-906-806.00 727.00 FEES - BANK AND CREDIT CARD 0 0 0
371-906-260.00 960.00 PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTMENT 0 0 0
371-906-991.00 994.00 BOND PRINCIPAL 220,000 220,000 230,000
371-906-593.00 995.00 BOND INTEREST 32,600 32,600 28,200

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 252,600 252,600 258,200
DEBT SERVICE B FUND

EXPENDITURES
372-906-806.00 727.00 FEES - BANK AND CREDIT CARD 0 0 0
372-906-951.00 994.00 BOND B PRINCIPAL 285,000 285,000 290,000
372-906-983.00 995.00 BOND B INTEREST 45,150 45,150 36,600

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 330,150 330,150 326,600
MAINTENANCE FUND

EXPENSE
401-901-806.00 735.00 FEES - BANK AND CREDIT CARD 0 0 0
401-901-995.00 965.00 TRANSFERS OUT GENERAL FUND 80,000 8,905 80,000

TOTAL EXPENSE 80,000 8,905 80,000




Loutit District Library
FY2023/24
Budget Overview

80

Qriginal Projected Requested
Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget % Change
NEW GLNUMBER OLD ACCT # 20-21 21-22 22-23 22-23 23-24 (+/-)
DEBT SERVICE A FUND
Revenue REVENUES
371-040-402.01 402.07 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN TWP 95,613 104,356 111,100 111,200 115,000 3.42%
371-040-402.02 402.08 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - ROBINSON TWP 31,006 32,407 34,800 34,500 35,000 1.45%
371-040-402.04 402.09 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - PORT SHELDON 32,854 31,188 32,165 35,000 35,000 0.00%
371-040-402.05 402.10 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - FERRYSBURG 22,655 23,448 25,100 24,500 25,000 2.04%
371-040-402.06 402.11 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX - GRAND HAVEN CITY 73,149 75,325 80,850 80,500 80,000 -0.62%
371-040-403.03 404.00 PERSONAL PROP TAX STATE REIMBURSEMENT 6,379 7,237 5,450 6,850 7,000 2.19%
371-040-412.00 403.00 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 176 75 100 120 120 0.00%
371-040-437.00 403.01 IFT - INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX 424 411 400 280 280 0.00%
371-040-445.00 403.10 PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES 63 44 0 15 15 -
371-040-665.00 665.00 INTEREST INCOME 89 347 100 100 100 0.00%
Total Revenue TOTAL REVENUES 266,408 274,839 290,065 293,065 297,515 1.52%
Expense EXPENDITURES
371-906-806.00 727.00 FEES - BANK AND CREDIT CARD Q 0 0 0 0 =
371-906-960.00 960.00 PROPERTY TAX ADJUSTMENT 11 0 o] 0 0 2
371-906-991.00 994.00 BOND PRINCIPAL 210,000 215,000 220,000 220,000 230,000 4.55%
371-906-993.00 995.00 BOND INTEREST 41,100 36,900 32,600 32,600 28,200 -13.50%
Total Expense TOTAL EXPENDITURES 251,111 251,900 252,600 252,600 258,200 2.22%
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 15,297 22,939 37,465 40,465 39,315
Beginning Fund Balance 64,362 79,660 102,595 102,599 143,064
Ending Fund Balance 79,660 102,599 140,064 143,064 182,379
DEBT SERVICE B FUND
Revenue REVENUES
372-040-665.00 665.00 INTEREST INCOME 0 0 0 3 4] -
372-040-699.01 699.01 TRANSFER IN GENERAL FUND 326,250 323,250 330,150 330,150 326,600 -1.08%
Total Revenue TOTAL REVENUES 326,250 323,250 330,150 330,153 326,600 -1.08%
Expense EXPENDITURES
372-906-806.00 727.00 FEES - BANK AND CREDIT CARD 0 0 0 0 Q -
372-906-991.00 994.00 BOND B PRINCIPAL 265,000 270,000 285,000 285,000 290,000 1.75%
372-906-993.00 955.00 BOND B INTEREST 61,200 53,250 45,150 45,150 36,600 -18.94%
Total Expense TOTAL EXPENDITURES 326,200 323,250 330,150 330,150 326,600 -1.08%
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 50 0 0 3 0
Beginning Fund Balance 29 79 79 79 82
Ending Fund Balance 79 79 79 82 82
MAINTENANCE FUND
Revenue REVENUES
401-040-665.00 665.00 INTEREST INCOME 10,848 8,483 10,000 20,000 10,000 -50.00%
401-040-669.00 665.00 UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS INVESTMENTS {9,264) (49,124) 0 (65,161) 0 -100.00%
401-040-679.00 667.00 REALIZED GAIN/LOSS INVESTMENTS (781) (65) 0 (117) 0 -100.00%
Total Revenu¢ TOTAL REVENUES 803 (40,705) 10,000 (45,278) 10,000 -122.09%
Expense EXPENDITURES
401-901-806.00 735.00 FEES - BANK AND CREDIT CARD 0 50 0 0 o] #DIV/0!
401-901-995.00 965.00 TRANSFERS OUT GENERAL FUND 77,515 61,153 80,000 8,905 80,000 798.37%
Total Expense TOTAL EXPENDITURES 77,515 61,203 80,000 8,905 80,000 798.37%
Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures (76,712) (101,908) {70,000) (54,183) (70,000)
Beginning Fund Balance 1,097,140 1,020,429 918,521 918,521 864,338
Ending Fund Balance 1,020,429 918,521 848,521 864,338 794,338



Loutit District Library
DEBT SERVICE A FUND
FY2023/24
Fund Balance Overview

Fund Balance June 30, 2019 S 54,576
19/20 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures ) 9,786
Fund Balance June 30, 2020 S 64,362
Est. 20/21 Revenue Over (Under)} Expenditures $ 15,298
Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2021 § 79,660
Est, 21/22 Revenue Qver (Under)} Exbenditures $ 22,939
Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2022 $ 102,599
Est. 22/23 Revenue Over {Under} Expenditures $ 40,465
Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2023 $ 143,064
Est. 23/24 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures $ 39,315

Est. Fund Balance Juna 30, 2024 $ 182,379



Loutit District Library
DEBT SERVICE B FUND
FY2023/24
Fund Balance Overview

Fund Balance June 30, 2019 $ 50
19/20 Revenue Over {Under) Expenditures S (21)
Fund Balance June 30, 2020 S 29
Est. 20/21 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures S 50
Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2021 ) 79
Est. 21/22 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 5 -

Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2022 S 79
Est, 22/23 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 5 3
Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2023 S 82
Est. 23/24 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 5 -

Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2024 S 82



Loutit District Library
MAINTENANCE FUND

FY2023/24

Fund Balance Overview

Fund Balance June 30, 2019

19/20 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures
Unrealized Gain/Loss Investments

Fund Balance June 30, 2020

Est. 20/21 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures
Unrealized Gain/Loss Investments

Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2021

Est. 21/22 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures
Unrealized Gain/Loss Investments

Est, Fund Balance June 30, 2022

Est, 22/23 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures
Unrealized Gain/Loss Investments *

Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2023

Est. 23/24 Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures
Unrealized Gain/Loss Investments

Est. Fund Balance June 30, 2024

* Based on 4-30-23 Statement

$ 1,169,389
$ (84,944
$ 12,695
$ 1,097,141
$  (67,448)
$ {9,265)
$ 1,020,429
$  (52,784)
$  (49,124)
$ 918,521
$ 10978
$  (65,161)
$ 864,338
$  (70,000)
5 .

$ 794,338

83



VY £202/5T/S paibpdn 1507

<t
oo

(82) syanaL ey
(8z) AMawig zn
(gz) 1ouuo) As|ysy
S92INIBS YINOA
-1 Juessissy Aeaqi

(zg) uiio yiagezl|3
S92IAIBS YIno
-uerieiqn

(0g) yuapunpn axer
(0€) luewyey zeN
(0€) W00 uep Awy
(0g) ameag Asupno)
(0v) Asjme uinay
(I'2y) uonewuou|
3 93U134Y
-1] wueasissy Aleaqn

(O¥) uiqo] a1e))
(1'3y) s=180jouyda]
duidiew3 — ueneaqn

(ov) uspia anauesr
1sijeads ASojeauan

v (p31si] 10u) sgns S30IAJDS YINOA

0 dwa] uoIIBeWIOU| 1§ BIUaIR)RY

8T Swl-Hed S92IAJIS Y23 13 UOIIEINIID

ST awl]-||nd uollBIISIUIWPY
€20T°9T’'g —Heis ainug

(o%) exAws ezi|3
juelsissy
ulwpy @ Suiayiein

(ov) 49A0g uosI||y
S3JINIBS

YINo, jo pesH

(Ov) 1eeuayd|y aney
(1'3y) vonewaoyuj
13 30U313J3Y JO peaH

(ot) uoihed easjayn

(8) uayinyuep alueydais
uone[naai) -apiy Aleiqii

(8¢) pa1sw|O SUUOAA
(87) uysnoq uesnsg
(82) 19]AnH epun
(82) uoiss|ppNH ||Ir
(87) 18q|oH wes
(87) pio4 Jouea|3
(82) x0) eUUY
(82) 4eeuayd|y 3ijjoH
(o) swenm aynr
uonenain
-] 1uelsissy Ateaqn

S382IAIBS

(ot7) pledanziid Aluay

dui3ojeje) jo peaH

(8¢) uoyioN uar
241) '3 Suido|eie)
-] Juejsissy Aieaqi

(Op) siepr uie
ueniuyda
sa21A135 Sulp|ing

Jadeue|p Sunaxe
3 Juawaseduy
AMunwwo)

(0t) @seD auuenep
juBUNODDY

1

(O%) sma|d 3|l2yaIN
2413 g SuiSojere)
-11 aueasissy Aleiqi

F 3

(ot7) @21y wiry
pea7 :O_um_q_u‘__u

(ot) uosiuey auuy
1032341 JUB)SISSY

(0%) s49194 u9)|3
10323.41Q 3A1IIN23X]

ayvosd AdvdaI 1ai




85

June 13, 2023

RESOLUTION
TO AUTHORIZE THE LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY
2023 TAX LEVY

BE IT RESOLVED, THAT the Loutit District Library Board of Trustees does hereby authorize the
Loutit District Library 2023 Tax Levy, in accordance with the provisions of Act 532, Public Acts of
Michigan 1978 as amended (Headlee Amendment), and in accordance with the provisions of
Act 5, Public Acts of Michigan 1982 as amended (Truth in Taxation Act):

Library Purposes 9523 mill
Debt Service 1150 mill

Offered by Board Member

Seconded by Board Member

Yeas:

Nays:

Absent:

Resolution adopted.

June 13, 2023

Date Mary Jane Belter, Secretary



RESOLUTION
TO ADOPT A BUDGET FOR THE
LOUTIT DISTRICT LIBRARY
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024
AND TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS FOR SAID PURPOSES

WHEREAS, the Loutit District Library Board of Trustees (the “Board”) is required to adopt a
resolution covering the matters set forth in the title hereof, and

WHEREAS,  the Board Finance Committee has received and reviewed the proposed 2023-
2024 budget documents submitted by the Library Director on June 13, 2023, and

WHEREAS,  the Board has received and reviewed the proposed 2023-2024 budget proposal
as recommended by the Finance Committee, and

WHEREAS,  the Board has held a public hearing on the proposed 2023-2024 budget in
accordance with Act 43, P.A. of 1963 Second Extra Session, as amended, and
with Act 2, P.A. of 1968, as amended,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The revenue and expenditure budgets for the Loutit District Library

Revenues Expenditures
General Fund 52,934,119 $3,092,005
Maintenance Fund 510,000 $80,000
Debt Service A Fund $297,515 $258,200
Debt Service B Fund $326,600 $326,600

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2024, as
depicted in the attached Loutit District Library Budget 2023-2024 are hereby
adopted.

2. The expenditure amounts set forth in (1.) above are hereby appropriated for

the purposes of the Loutit District Library operations on a Fund {not line item)

basis.

3. The Library Director is authorized to make budgetary transfers between and
among the line item accounts as established by this budget within a Fund,
except for;

Salaries and wages — Full-time
Salaries and wages — Part-time
Equipment

Capital improvements

Page 1l of 2

86



87

4. Any budgetary transfer involving salaries and wages full-time, salaries and
wages part-time, equipment, and capital improvements line item accounts
may be made by the Library Director only with the prior approval of the Board
pursuant to the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, Act 2, P.A, of 1968, as
amended.

Offered by Board Member

Seconded by Board Member

Yeas:

Nays:

Absent:

Resolution adopted.

June 13, 2023

Date Mary Jane Belter, Secretary

Page 2 of 2



88

HpaP . . . .
1 Loutit District Library
™~ Expanding Horizons. Enriching Minds. Engaging Community.
p EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

May 30, 2023 in Program Room B of Loutit District Library

Present: Mary Jane Belter, Burton Brooks, Caryn Lannon, Cathy Rusco
Staff: Ellen Peters, Amanda Burnett

Brooks called the meeting to order at 4:34 p.m.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA — Motion to approve by Belter, second by Lannon; Passed 4-0
PUBLIC COMMENT - None
TRUSTEE COMMENT — None
Approve minutes from April 25, 2023 meeting — no minutes included
REVIEW AGENDA FOR THE June 13, 2023, REGULAR BOARD MEETING
New Business ltem:
A. Contract Renewals — will approve at June board meeting
B. Budget —discussed presenting to special meeting with regards to union negotiations
REVIEW MONTHLY PLANNER — Not done.

PUBLIC COMMENT - None

TRUSTEE COMMENT — None
ADJOURN: 5:03 p.m.

UPCOMING MEETING DATES:
Annual Budget Meeting (Public) — Tuesday, June 13 @ 5:00 p.m., LDL Program Room B
Board of Trustees — Tuesday, June 13 @ 5:30 p.m., LDL Program Room B
Executive Committee — Tuesday June 27 @ 5:00 p.m. LDL Program Room B

Respectfully submitted,

Ellen Peters
Executive Director

407 Columbus Avenue, Grand Haven, Ml 49417
Phone (010) 850-6900 ~ www.loutitlibrary.org



89

111 Loutit District Library

Expanding Horizons. Enriching
Minds. Enaaaina Community.

Memo

To: LDL Board of Trustees

From: Ellen Peters, Executive Director

Date: June 13, 2023

Re: Director’s Update for the June 13, 2023 meeting

Collections, Services, Programs, and Classes

Collections

No update

Services

We added 167 new OL library cards - not counting the other library cards we are issuing
We have 4,570 active patrons with 748 active Capira users

We borrowed a record 2209 items from other libraries

We loaned 1604 OL items to other libraries

Starting July 5, 2023, hours will be extended for Wednesday and Thursday evenings until 8:00 p.m.

Program Highlights:

Summer Reading Grand Adventure Planning Team:
Grand Adventure Challenge sign ups as of this morning:
1276 (580 adult, 696 youth) **much higher numbers than last year

Cheapstacks did great with their outside book sale, earning § 775.

Adult program and Service Highlights:

o May 4th Star Wars celebration was very popular. The Star Wars Film Festival (5/4/23, 20 attendees)
was a marathon showing of the original Star Wars Trilogy leading up to Star Wars Trivia (5/4, 158
attendees), a continuing successful partnership between Loutit District Library and Odd Side Ale.

« Michelle led Urban Sketching 101 (5/6,13 attendees), attendees loved Michelle's approachable
introduction to Urban Sketching and left with tips and tricks to continue sketching!

407 Columbus Avenue, Grand Haven, Ml 49417
Phone (616) 850-6912 ~ www.loutitlibrary.org

Page 1 of 4



90

¢ Hosting Butterflies with Melissa Eikenberry (5/9, 32 attendees), Melissa shared information and
resources about the relationship between milkweed plants, caterpillars, and butterflies. Each
attendee left with a milkweed plant to help with the efforts to increase monarch habitats.

» DIY Book Folding (5/13, 27 attendees), attendees raved about Kate's book folding program! Various
patrons stopped by the desk to share how much they loved the event and specifically highlighted Kate.
One patron even emailed us: "Kate is a fun and patient instructor. | really enjoyed this event."

o Historic Shipwrecks and Rescues on Lake Michigan (5/22, 31 attendees), local author, Michael
Passwater discussed his book and shared stories of the amazing rescue of the crews of five different
shipwrecks in one day, by the lifesaving crew in Grand Haven.

e Jeanette led a session for two days of the Ottawa County Parks Living History Day Program where she
educated students on the history of local fur trading - Jeffers School (79 attendees) and Mary A
White Elementary School (53 attendees).

Additional highlights:

Naz Rahmani was hired and started in late May!

Completed the bulk of transitioning some of Kate's work to Kevin, Kate is beginning technology training in June
for her new role as Emerging Technologies Librarian.

The team wrapped up collections purchasing for 2023, preparing collection development plans and budgets in
June for 2023-2034 fiscal year.

Jeanette picked up the last (probably) boxes of materials from Herrick District Library's Local History collection.
Jeanette and Kerry are working through sorting, evaluating, and cataloging the collection and the department
has begun long term planning for the large number of additional materials.

Youth programs and Services:

Irene Miller, Holocaust survivor program was a success. May 10, 2023

142 attendees as White Pines Intermediate school

Great partnership with GHAPS.

GHAPS was very happy with their programs on May 11 and 12 at GHHS and LMS.
Grades 7-11 were able to hear her speak.

Family Storytime at Pottawatomie Park was a great success. 6/6/23
90 people attended

6 New Reader Round Ups were scheduled out of a total of 11 invited.

Great for the first time back after a 3-year hiatus.

Walden Green, who has never attended, hopes to come next year. There was a scheduling conflict this year.
It was reimagined with an Elephant and Piggie skit, a tour of behind the scenes at the library, a program
experience, and time to browse. Teachers loved the refresh!

One teacher even shared that she had attended New Reader Round Up when she was in 1st grade.
Participating 1st grade classes:

St. John Lutheran

Griffin

Mary A White

Peach Plains

Ferry

Robinson

Total students only: 245

Page 2 of 4



Facilities and Equipment Maintenance

Facilities

& Maintenance —

s May Patron Visits - Attached as DR-1 show the daily average of pecople entering the building.
Equipment

Staff

® Open Positions:
o Janitorial staff — interviews in process.

Financial Management
¢ Financial and HR Transition te City:
o Marianne Case continues to work with Emily Greene and Nick Brown to transition different
financial functions to the city or to their software.
o Amended budget for FY2022-23 finished for June, and Proposed FY3023-34 budget finished.

Policies
e Burnett from COGH is reviewing or Personnel Handbook from 2013 and updating it to current legal
language and DEI practices.

Public Relations
For Marketing things:

We've been included in the Tribune multiple times this past month for Irene Miller (attached as DR-2), Summer
Reading registration starting, the Kick-Off party, Live on the Lakeshore (attached as DR-3}, and one of Jeanette's
history programs! Some of these things have also been on local news station websites. Many of our Summer
Reading programs are on community calendars, including Visit Grand Haven, the Chamber of Commerce, and
GRkids.

We also had the 20,000+ postcards sent cut to everycne within the Grand Haven school district for the Kick-Off
party, which was a huge success. We gave large stacks of the leftovers to the Tri Cities Museum & Chamber
building for people to pick up and the rest were around the library for people to pick up with the other Summer
Reading handouts. They were very popular!

Ellen will be on the radio with Erica from the museum Friday, June 9 promoting Live on the Lakeshore.

Relations with Other Agencies
¢ Peters is attending weekly Rotary meetings.
s Peters and Weiden working with Mulligan’s Hollow Plaque Dedication Committee.

91

¢ Still working on Live on the Lakeshore grant (with Char Seise from the Community Center and Erica Layton

from the Tri-Cities Historical Museum) for a summer educational series. It begins June 10.
¢ Peters met with Holly Cole and Molly from the Grand Haven Area Community Foundation to further
discuss the grant for Brooks Media Center (step#2). Step #3 is due June 28.
Page 3 of 4



92

Professional Development
« Staff Training — Staff all had access to a training webinar on de-escalation.
e MLA ~ Elizabeth Griffin {(Youth Librarian) is presenting at the MLA conference in Qctober 2023,
¢ ALA Exhibits Bus Trip - A few staff members are taking the bus to ALA in Chicago to tour the exhibits with
the Lakeland Cooperative.
» leanette had a productive genealogy conference in Virginia and won a scholarship to the Salt Lake City
{raining next year!

Other
* Annual Monthly Planner Qutline — Attached as DR-4 is the latest version of the Outline.
e Thank you card from Allendale Township Library — Attached as DR-5
* Naturalization Ceremonies: will start again in October and November. DAR will provide refreshments, and
speakers are being lined up.

Page 4 of 4



DR-1

9Z8'0T :S1sIA .10l




6/8/23, 4:25 PM image.png

HISTORY
S

DR-2

. Tribune photo / Lauren Formosa
Irene Miller answers questions from audience members Wednesday night at White Pines Intermediate School.

Holocaust survivor shares her story

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#inbox/QgreJHsHsHTgWHQTpVRFzmPgZVBQVxnrl?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1

17



6/8/23, 4:25 PM

image (1).png

Holocaust survivor shares her story

By LAUREN FORMOSA
Grand Haven Tribune

Irene Miller was one of
three members of her fami-
ly — both immediate and ex-
tended — who survived the
Holocaust.

It took her a long time to
speak about her experienc-
es with anyone, including
her children: now a retired
healthcare executive and
author, Miller uses her sto-
ry of survival to educate
others on the atrocities of
the Holocaust and show
how strength can help peo-
ple overcome the most dif-
ficult of times.

More than 130 people at-
tended a community event
Wednesday night, hosted
by Loutit District Library
in partnership with Grand
Haven Area Public Schools
at White Pines intermedi-
ate School. Loutit’s head
of youth services, Allison
Boyer, opened the event
by introducing Miller and

; <
Courtesy photo / Chelsea Payton
Irene Miller, center, speaks with several children attending her
speech with their parents.

her autobiography “Into No
Man’s Land: A Historical
Memoir.”

Approximately six mil-
lion Jews were killed in the
Holocaust, a million-and-

a-half of them Jewish chil-
dren. As Miller explained,
only 10 percent of Jewish
children survived the Holo-
caust.

“Those fortunate to have
survived are responsible
for telling the story of those
who did not.” Miller said in
her opening remarks.

She was only 5 years old
when the Nazis invaded
her hometown of Warsaw,
Poland. Miller told the au-
dience that while she was
too high up to see their fac-
es from the family’s fifth-
floor apartment window,
she remembers the soldiers’
glistening boots pounding
down the streets. Shortly
thereafter, her home would
be bombed: she was smug-
gled out of Poland with her
parents and sisters Lo cross
the border into the Soviet
Union.

Miller recounted sto-
rics of surviving about six

See SURVIVOR, page A3

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0f#inbox/QgreJHsHsHTtigWHQTpVRFzmPgZVBQVxnrl?projector=1&messagePartld=0.2

1



6/8/23, 4:25 PM

SURVIVOR

From page A1

weeks  in no-man’s-land
with [rostbitten feel, be-
ing captured by the Soviet
Union and taken Lo a labor
camp in Siberia, and living
in an orphanage in Uzbeki-
stan until 1946.

Miller moved 1o Israel
with her mother before she
immigrated (o the United
States when she was in her
early 20s. In her retirement,
she is a docent for the De-
troit Institute of Arts, a
courts mediator, and serves
on the Board of Directors of
the American Jewish Com-
mittee along with traveling
around the United States Lo
share her story. Her goal is
to educate on not only about
what happened but how it
happened 1o ensure history

does not repeat itself.

“*My mission now is to use
my Holocaust experience o
show what hate and preju-
dice did and what hate and
prejudice can continue Lo
do if we don’t learn from
it,” Miller said. “Once we
allow small injustice to go
overlooked, we encourage
the perpetrators to continue.
There is no such thing as a
small injustice that we can
be bystanders of.”

The floor was opened
to questions from the au-
dience, several of which
were from children attend-
ing with their parents. One
boy in the front row asked.
“What is your [avorite lan-
guage,” while another child
asked, “Do you have a la-
vorite memory from your
childhood?”

Miller promoted the mes-
sage she conveys in her her

image (2).png

book throughout the Q&A
segment, explaining to the
audience that her story in-
cludes essential information
for everyone, including the
younger generation. to know
— both from a historical and
motivational standpoint.

“When I talk to students,
I feel that not only will my
book give them a historical
perspective but it will tell
them what a person is able
o overcome and nol just
survive but flourish,” Mill-
er said. “In everyone’s life,
there will be difficult times.
I believe that each of those
young people — and prob-
ably you too- have more
strength than you realize
and I want to serve (o those
young people as an exam-
ple: you can overcome with
determination.”

As the questions conlin-
ued, one woman asked, “Is

there anything you see go-
ing onin America’s political
climate today that gives you
concern?”’

“I am very, very concerned
of whal goes on now in our
country,” Miller responded.
“As a public speaker, I can-
not talk about politics, but
I 1old you how things hap-
pened and I am very con-
cerned and scared, not just
for myself but for us and our
democracy.”

GHAPS Executive Direc-
tor of Instructional Services
Mary Jane Evink, asked a
question Miller says she has
been asked many limes be-
fore: “With all the hardship
you’ve experienced, Lo what
do you attribute your posi-
tivity and charisma?”

“I believe that we are each
born with a level of energy
and I was born with a lot ot
it; 1 must have been born

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#inbox/QgrcdHsHsHTtigWHQTpVRFzmPgZVBQVxnrl ?projector=1&messagePartld=0.3

with a great zest for living,”
Miller said. “I don’t carry
any hate or anger in me. My
revenge is to use my painful
experiences and covert them
into something positive to
influence and motive people
to positive actions, to find
jov in life.

“There is so much pain
and loss that I experienced
in life, and 1 ask myself
how can [ enjoy life? It’s
amazing how you can learn
to live simultaneously with
pain and joy. I am a great
believer in the human spirit
and a great believer that our
future is the young people.”

Miller gave a speech 1o
Grand Haven High School
students Thursday after-
noon and will be speaking
at Lakeshore Middle School
on Friday morning.

Contact Lauren at iformosa@
grandhaventribune.com.

171



ENTERTAINMENT

DR-3

Tribune. ot 2023-0527

Library, museum, city team up to
present ‘Live! On the Lakeshore’

CONTRIBUTED

“Live! On The Lakeshore”
is a new coilaboration that
will bring literature, art, and
history to life with a series of
live demonstrations of visual
arts, musical performanc-
es, and dramatic storytelling
about the lives, events, and
heritage of the Tri-Cities area.

Beginning Saturday, June
10 and continuing for 10 sub-
sequent Saturdays this sum-
mer, people of all ages can
experience the magical trans-
formation of a live special-ef-
fects makeup demonstration,
fee] transported by a student
dance performance, walch
the creation in real time of an
idyllic West Michigan scene
in oils, or hear the stories of
the musical fountain con-
struction, the development
of the boardwalk, the signif-
icance of USCG Cutter Es-
canaba and Woody, the Coast
Guard dog. :

These cultural encounters,
which will take place near the
entrance to Lynne Sherwood
Waterfront Stadium, are free
for all to enjoy, and fit into the
festive feel of the Grand Hav-
an shoreline in high summer.

A partnership among Cen-
tral Park Place, Loutit Dis-
irict Library, and the Tri-Cit-
ies Historical Museum, and
supported by a Community
Partners grant from the Mich-
igan Arts & Culture Council,
“Live! On The Lakeshore”
brings a diverse group of
local artists and performers
together to both educate and
entertain.

The project was envisioned

as short, live encounters with -

local ‘arts and. culture  that

connect viswally and emo-
tionally with the audience,
making a lasting impression
of the heritage of our lake-
shore community.

“*Live! On The Lakeshore’
is a wonderful opportunity for
the museum and our partners
to engage our audiences. in
a new way,” said Erica Lay-
ton, executive director of the
Tri-Cities Historical Muse-

um. “We are excited to bring

arts and culture right onto the
sidewalk of' our downtown,
meeting people where they
are with a wave -of “créative
expression.”

Char-Seise, community af-
fairs manager at Central Park
Place, added, “Art, in this for-
mat, will spark irnaginations
and touch people of all ages.
Understanding the culture of
where you live through litera-
ture, drama, the arts, and sto-
rytelling is a way to feed the
soul while learning.

“Knowing -the traditions,
chronicling bygone stories,
watching a local artist at
work, hearing a musician
play, or listening to a poet
read a beautiful piece of
verse, makes us a conumnuni-
ty.”
Much of West Michigan
history is tied to logging,
fur-trading, dnd water trans-
port, and the Tii-Cities is no
exception. The ared’s unique
history has been preserved
with objects, photographs,
and documents by the Tri-Cit-
ies Historical Museum and in
genealogical records at Loutit
District Library, Central Park
Place is home to Jocal theater”
and public-access art, and }Z a
hub of the Grand Haven com-
manity. {

-

“The library is thrilled- to
partner with the Tri-Cities
Historical Museum. and Cen-
tral Park Place to bring our

shared vision of a unique .

outdoor culural experience
to the community,” said Ellen
Peters, execitive director of
Loutit District Library.

Among the preseniers Is
local professional storyteller,
Denny Swartout. who will
comnect locals and tourists
alike to the Tri-Cities with
fascinating stories of past
eras. Swartout is known for
his “Tales of the Tri-Cities”
series hosted in partnership
with local station WAWL.,

Donn Werling, State of
Michigan Designated Culture
Bearer, will perform songs
of the Great Lakes, includ-
ing “Lake Michigan” and
“Catwalk,” which is about
the dangers of the Grand
Haven south pier. He
will also preseat a living
history. performance of an
old lighthouse keeper on the
lake, Captain Edwin James
Moore, who lived from 1860-
1923,

L.ook for this fusion of fine
arts, theater, literature, and
storytelling in  downtown
Grand Haven at the brass riv-
er instaflation at 1 8, Harbor
Drive, Performances will take
place Saturdays at 10 a.m. be-
ginning June 10. All encoun-
ters are free to the public, and
will flluminate the Tri-Cities’
heritage not only for locals,
but for visitors to our fair city.

Find out mere more-abont..
the partners and find a sched-
ule of the “Live! On The
Lakeshore” encounters at
bit.ly/encounter-live-on-the
-lakeshore.



DR-4

€ JO 1 93eq

modoy §,J010011(]
DATINAGXT UT S[ROL) ATRIqI] 9pn[ou] -

JetmiosIa (oonImImIoD) SAIMIIXY A[N[) J0310201]

SATINDOXH (M TOISSSs SUIISS [BOL) -
Lonjod SULIO, 1599301 JO WIJUOT S[H - VC/ETAL
SISOILIO JO UOII[H - Jo yeg

SONIUIIIO]) (¢ Bny-67 Aug) 000°5$ Ad
DANNIINH [eAISS,] plens) 1seo)) | uer 1e21d sisplo eseyaind peyedpng eaocxddy - AU JOJ a7npayos Surjesws sacxddy - Amnr

TUOAT YO0 B YONO] (oeoryH w

yazg2uUN, uoTeN[eAL IOJRI(] SATINDSX - | €707 ‘L7-77 SUN[) 20UIJUO;) [BNUUY

YIUOPY 2P1J spusumoop [esterdde Jo10911(] UOIJBID0SS Y ATBIQI| UBSLIOWY -

[euuosIa g WRIF0I] DATINIIXT MITAIIL O] SONTAWOT) JANNIIKT - Jepio

Fuipesy Jeumng NPV ee1 a3e(u 1q9p 2 Sunerado £707 198 - Ao ur metasl o) suondiosap qof

SOPIWITIO.) WeIS0IJ 108p1q $70Z-€707 Ad saoxddy - | pue sararjod Jo 1s1] sprauqns 1030941(T -
DATINDSXH Surpesy] Jouwramg Pnox | 188pnqg +707-£707 A To Sulmsy orqnd ploH - JusWISSeURIA] SPI0OTY MATASY - sunp

Jouue[J AJJIUON
AIVHLII'T LOTALSIA LILNOT




CJ0 7 a3y

UOINF] M0J
Ul [Z-6] 100 “90ULI8JUO)) [eNUTy

aotenr, UOIRI0SS Y ATRXqIT UBSIorfy - -
preoq 0 pajussard ypny -
2ONIUNaIO)) =EIEMI ()
SAIMOSXH QONILILIOY) SOURUL AG POMOIIALL JIPTLY - SAINDaX3] 0} §[e08 107 1sonbay - 100
e
- 81 1deg) yeop soog pauueg Surrodar pry o1e)s 1e1s-
suondirossp
(5110 —S§T qof pue sara1jod Postadt JO MAIASY -
1dag) muoty aSejey ommedsty {707 Aente 82g) 1010a1(]
QONIUITIO)) JIeIS AG PSMOIASI JIpTY - SAIINOSXT YIM JOIOAI(T SATINOSXY
DATINOXH uolA dn-uSig pre) Arexqry swdeq ppny - JO UOTIBNBAR SMOIASI PIBOg - dog
[PuuosIad
podsay enouy mBay -
Lorjod SOaNITUHIOD SUIPUL]S
SUONRZLIOINY 29 SSUNRY Yued malAny - | o1 stuounurodde s Juopisard saoxddy -
20NIUITO)) PIV S1BIS S Jeak Jolid JO 90UB[e( SAI909Y - SO2]STLI] 0 SJBIS PUS-IBS A -
DATINDIXH soury euad 2A1009Y - $o2)S1UY 0] SYels oung-[dy - 1sndny
SSUNA
APIIWO) SIHIAY —ﬂmuvmw jenyueul suonerdd IUOTA]
JOUUB|J ATJIUOA

AYVIELI'T LOTALSIA LILNOT



G Jo € ofeg

S0\ JOAIUTOA
SoUBUL,]
Joom AreIqQr] woneedaid 193png snmywo)) - S[EMOUDI JAQUIST
QONIUIOY) JUSTISSISSE OURUSJUTRUL [ A\ MOTAY - PIeoq Yy SHUT L A0 0] 901ION] -
SANNOORT JUOIA] A1120] sjuewaaIge 991A198 sa0xddy - SISQNIN[OA SZIUFO2SY - pdy
[suuosiod Y20T-£T0T A 10§ sgauaqy
20UBRUL] IUOIA AJOISTH S USUIO M pue sofem BULJeIS MOIAIL O] SOINIUITIO,)
SOpIWIWO)) [UUOSIS 2 99URUI] YILM 195 JOJII(] - — sympsuy Surdg
SATINOOXH JIuo Suipesy uoreredaxd 198pnq anumuoy) - UONEIN0SS Y ATeIql] UBSIYSIA - YoIBN
JPUUOSA3 J pAngLysip
pup paaoiddp joday ponuuly -
20UDUL] MDY UDd S04 -
YIAOPY SSOUPULY $22JSN41 OF SIVIS “23(] ~12() -
DIIIIUHUIO]) uv]J I132J043S WA0SUIDAG 0F AD(] 2o1A42G-14]- FC-ECOC LA Areniqe
BALNIBX YIHOPT A4OISIET o071 uonpawdaid 198png snupioy) - | 40 SJPOS — 22 1UUIO]) 2ALINIIX] -
291IUIWIO))
SpUNoIn aepdn Apnys s)yoUaq/AIR[RS [RNUTY/-
pue Surpiing sresodoxd 328png spunols) pue Surp[mng-
resodoxd
SOPIWUIO.) 1S9F JoIUIAN | 308pnq £7-07 A4 Sumedard pes Ajn/1010a1(] - 707 Arenuer
ATINOIXY ABDIFOH “If SITIN SIHSWPUAY 198png puncy |- -
sursaq suo(] poday upny [euly -
weiforg Surpeay IoTOIm P21 Moday 2Inso[asi(] Sumunuo)) a1 -
OITTIWIO)) PSIL Q8IS YHM PS[IY Juswaje)s Surdjifeny) - paInqLIsIp
BATINDIX JJe1s 10T Toayoun| pIeog paf] yoday pry aws - pue paaoxdde yoday enumy- “29(]
oday AMsoosI(] SENIIIEo) JL] -
IB3A [B9sI] snotasid
ur Jo pasodsIp sjesse (00°1$+ Modar 1030011
suorjenjeAy OIS -— 21R1§ WM Pa[L] Juammales SurkJeny) -
paiepdn ue[J [erourur] 129 X SAL] - 110day] [enuUy UO NIOA -
azoysaye] peoy Sig VAN Ie0k Sururen 201A108-01 JTe1S -
[e251) 31xou J0J uepd Sullyels JO Me1adl uldag - Jesk
SO0 OO PaILy Moday] pry a1Rls - | IRpUD[RD 707 10] 03] JUSpISaIIOU 12§ -
SAIMOSXT 9FeISH UBILISUIY QALBN seryedroruntx o paInqLusIp Apny - sesisny 03 sye)s )deg-Any - "AON

Jouur[J A[IUOIA
AAVEErT LOIELSIA LILNOT




[SUMOSIS

DOUBTH ]

CEIDN Gy
JATNIKH

stuonenyead ijels

¢ Jo p a8eg

SIUSWIPUSUIE 198P1q JO PUNOE T -

Sureol dr[qng 195png JO 910U [SHqR -
([puow-prur) AUne? WoL uonoely

uononpas SSe[[IW PUB SIM[BA J[(BXE]} ALY -
198png ,Z0Z-£TOT Ad U0 BULIBSEY dI[qnd 19§ -
QeNIUIIO))

S0UBUL] 0} 183p0g $TOT-£T0T Ad Pasodoig -

w0,y , J0103I(T

aATNOoxY Jo [esteiddy sousuLIonS .,
UE[q SSINAIRSIP JUSpIsald pIeoq -
SQISILI] OF SJB1S YOIRIA-"UB[ -

A xau 01 syeod saorddy -

AR

Jouue|d AfIUOIA
AGVIAI'T LOTAISIA LILNOT




¢ Jo g oFeq

wdpg:s — €707 “T1 AInf
wdpg:s — 70T “¢1 dung
wd(e:¢ — €207 6 A2
wdpg:s — €70z ‘11 [udy
wdpg:c — €70T V1 YorBN
wdpe:g — €707 1 Arenigeq
wdpg:s — £70T ‘01 Asenuer
wd(g:g — 7207 €1 42qunda(]
(7707 °1 I2qUIsAON 0} vownmau BmE H&o €16 — 70T ‘g IoqUIsAON
wdog:g — ZZ0T ‘11 1990120
wdpg:s —7z0o7 ‘¢ 1 Pqundag
wd(g:g — ZT0T 6 snsny
wd(g:s — 720z ‘S Amng

EU/TTAA
a[MPpaYdS SHIISA[ SAISILT, JO pIeog

£T0T “0€ QUN[ — J9PIA0I{ 9OIAISG 120N — (ISIVO

#Z0T 2unf—170Z Am[ — (SWalsAg AUnoag 29 IL{) S[oNUO.) UOSUYof

papus uadQ - ZOT 10 UESIY — (DVAH) UA( UeA

papus uwad() - 107 AON UeBag — Yimg ‘12150 — [efe]

#T0T Pue £70T sieak Jof suondo PpIm ZZ0T ‘0€ Sunf ‘SPpNe 92U | — P[2ASPaIA ~ Sunpny
£2T0T “0€ Aunf — 0] 2 MOUg “SPUNoIn — eNSYAQ

£20T “0¢ sun( — Suues])) seatey

€707 “0€ oun[ — sa01AIS I] — SAVHD
:suogeadxy] 1PB.OUO)

NOLISUSIA ‘193 — GT07

UOuuE| ‘Sulj[o)) WM -- ¥Z0T
09281y 19005800 ‘syjoolg -- £70T
:(0¢ 2unp) suoneadxy mMId], pIeoy

POOMISHS “TouIng S19194 ‘SUI[[O)) ‘03sMY “UOUUR ] ‘syoolg

smuesieq uon

SIMAJ “10005TUOT “HOLWUSA “IoA0E] “Joyeg Teeuaydyy ‘sumion Adrpod
$1919d ‘POOMIIYS NOLIDUSIA] TM (T “0osry [euuosIag

sI912d DUIZ “BZISUOTN ‘SIMPOOID) “Funo g (] ‘syjoolyg ‘UOUUER] souBUL]
81913 “02sIy ‘Uouue ‘Isjeq ‘syoorg QANNISXH

51919, J “YOLISUAIA] ‘STIRPIT ‘pleranZil] ‘SYooIg ‘0asny SpUNOIL) 29 SUIpIng
SINTNNDISSV HALLIATAIOD

Jouure]d A[JIUoA
AAVHET'T LOTYLSIA LILNO'T




DR-5

Deos Lowrit Libaey,

 Thankyow 0. mudh for ledtian us bortow
;You(‘ €SCaDe POOW\\ We V\od \6 Sm“P'S o¥ Peoph
“complete vt o\w'\%-ﬂw week o Sprincy breal.
\(oux‘ NSTrUGHoNS Made, o 6&3\{ ‘o é U
QNN OUC PO\JY(‘OV\S (\m\l\{ evgox{{o\ it We o
2 YhonkSul Sor other amoazive \ibrosies Vilce
Jou, Who  6re Mi\\ifg%o SMTL(%SOQV\C&S TThonks
C\So(\(\\. Sincerely,

Y'\Sh\uf 3alnson Nowdh Livtscian
Allendale. Tfup L bfar\{




